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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20:
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-26946

INTEVAC, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt
Delaware 94-3125814
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification N¢
3560 Bassett Street
Santa Clara, California 95054

(Address of principal executive office, includirig Zode)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(408) 986-9888
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which register¢
Common Stock ($0.001 par valt The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (NASDAQ Global Sele
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) diie Act:
None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbéturities Act. 1 Yes M
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. [0  Yes
M No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti8 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days. ¥ Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥steb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of tiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwvas required to submit and post such filesd Yes O No

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delinquidars pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-KE@205 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltbst of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive pyax information statements incorporated by
reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amernt to this Form 10-K. M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See definitions of “large acaked filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reping company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer (I Accelerated filer M Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company I
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). O Yes M
No

As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate market valwetofig and non-voting stock held by non-affiliatfshe Registrant, was
approximately $85,321,183 (based on the closingedor shares of the Registrant’'s Common Stoclepsrted by the Nasdaqg Stock Market
for the last trading day prior to that date). SeasECommon Stock held by each executive officeeatior, and holder of 5% or more of the
outstandingCommon Stock have been excluded in that such persay be deemed to be affiliates. This determinaticaffiliate status is n
necessarily a conclusive determination for otheppses.

On February 22, 2013, 23,769,658 shares of thesRagt’'s Common Stock, $0.001 par value, were anthhg.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement fer2813 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorfaatdy reference into Part lIl.
Such proxy statement will be filed within 120 dafter the end of the fiscal year covered by thisidal Report on Form -K.



CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

Certain information in this Annual Report on ForBH (report or Form 10-K) of Intevac, Inc. and $ighsidiaries (“Intevac” or the
“Company”), including “Management’s Discussion akhlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gems” in Item 7, is forward-
looking in nature. All statements in this reporluding those made by the management of Intextaer than statements of historical fact,
forward-looking statements. Examples of forwardkiog statements include statements regarding lotevature financial results, operating
results, cash flows and cash deployment stratelgiesiness strategies, costs, products, workingalapompetitive positions, management’s
plans and objectives for future operations, reseantd development, acquisitions and joint ventugesyth opportunities, customer contracts,
investments, liquidity, declaration of dividendaddegal proceedings, as well as market conditeotsindustry trends. These forwdabking
statements are based on management’s estimatgs;timas and assumptions as of the date herecoinghdle the assumptions that underlie
such statements. Forward-looking statements mataitowords such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could;'would,” “expect,” “plan,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “piential” and “continue,” the negative of these termr other comparable terminology. Any
expectations based on these forward-looking stattvare subject to risks and uncertainties and atygortant factors, including those
discussed in Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” below andeelkere in this report. Other risks and uncertasntigy be disclosed in Intevac’s prior
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filinglsese and many other factors could affect Intessadure financial condition and
operating results and could cause actual resullifer materially from expectations based on fomivbboking statements made in this report
or elsewhere by Intevac or on its behalf. Intevadartakes no obligation to revise or update amydiod-looking statements.

The following information should be read in conjtion with the Consolidated Financial Statements thirdaccompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included inriirt.

PART |

ltem 1. Business
Overview
Intevac’s business consists of two reportable se¢gne

Equipment: Intevac is a leader in the design, developmentraaidketing of highgroductivity process manufacturing equipm
solutions to the hard disk drive industry. Intewdsn offers highproductivity process manufacturing equipment far slolar photovoltai
(“PV") industry.

Intevac Photonics: Intevac is a leader in the development and manufactf leading edge, high-sensitivity imaging prcigu
and vision systems, as well as Raman spectrosospyments. Markets addressed include military,ioadscientific, pharmaceutical
and other industrial markets.

Intevac was incorporated in California in Octob88Q and was reincorporated in Delaware in 2007.

Equipment Segment
Hard Disk Drive Equipment Market

Intevac designs, manufactures, markets and seredtraplex capital equipment used to deposit thindiand lubricants onto substrates
to produce magnetic disks that are used in hatddtigses. Disk and disk drive manufacturers prodmagnetic disks in a sophisticated
manufacturing process involving many steps, inclggilating, annealing, polishing, texturing, sputtg, etching, stripping and lubrication.
Intevac believes its systems represent approximéth of the installed capacity of disk sputtersaygtems worldwide. Intevac’s systems are
used by manufacturers of magnetic media such aga8e@echnology, Western Digital, including its Wire@wned subsidiary, HGST, Fuiji
Electric, and Showa Denko.



Hard disk drives are a primary storage medium fgital data including on-line, cloud storage, am@&rine applications and are used
products and applications such as personal congueterprise data storage, and video players idied game platforms. Intevac believes
that hard disk drive media shipments will contitoigrow over time, driven by growth in digital sage, by the slowing of areal density
improvements, by the refresh of personal compdtersew operating and application software, byphaiferation of personal computers i
emerging economies, and by new and emerging apiplisa Continued growth in the amount of digitaladstored and the slowing in areal
density improvements are key factors in determitirgdemand for magnetic disks used in hard distesr

Intevac expects that hard disk drive manufacturéiextend their utilization of planar perpendiauimedia with the introduction of
thermal assisted magnetic recording (“TAMR”) exjgelctvithin the next three to four years. Intevaddwels that the transition to TAMR wiill
require disk manufacturers to upgrade their instbliase of equipment, which would result in inoedademand for equipment technology
upgrades to be performed by Intevac. The introdaadf patterned media is expected to occur seyegak after the transition to TAMR.
Intevac believes that the transition to patternedianby disk manufacturers, which introduces nese@sses and requires new equipment, is
expected to result in increased demand for Inteveguipment. Intevac introduced the 200 Lean GetcH and deposition system in 2009
which is being used by the industry for patternestlia application development.

Hard Disk Drive Equipment Products

Disk Sputtering Systems

Disk sputtering is the process of depositing a fitim of various materials on a substrate. Integgaipment deposits magnetic films,
non-magnetic films and protective carbon-basedaenats on disks that are to be used in hard dislesltising sputtering or chemical vapor
deposition (“CVD") technologies.

Intevacs 200 Lean systems began shipping in 2003, anfirth@00 Lean Gen Il systems shipped in 2008, withinstalled base of 2(
Lean systems reaching 155 systems by the end & 2@tevac estimates that approximately 90% ofilstalled base is used in production
with the balance used for research and development.

In 2009, Intevac shipped the first 200 Lean Gegtd¢h and deposition system to be used for pattemextia. Intevac provides a cost-
effective solution for high-volume manufacturing jpviding new etch and associated process modulé¢ise high-productivity 200 Lean
Gen Il platform.

Disk Lubrication Systems

Disk lubrication is the manufacturing step thatdals deposition of thin films. During lubricatioa,microscopic layer of lubricant is
applied to the disk’s surface to improve durabitityd reduce surface friction between the disk Aadead/write head assembly.

The Intevac AccuLubéeM lubricates disks by depositing a thin film of lutaint on the disk while it is under vacuum, thumelating the
use of solvents, which are environmentally hazasdand expensive to procure, store and dispose.
Non-Systems Business

Intevac also provides technology upgrades, spats pad consumables, installation, maintenancegpair services to Intevacsysten
customers. Intevac continues to develop and masgtupgrades to its installed base that supportdh&nued growth in areal density or
improve the manufacturing cost per disk. Nsystem business as a percentage of Equipment resv@as 27% in 2010, 66% in 2011 and
in 2012.

Solar Market

Intevac designs, manufactures and markets capjtépment for the PV solar manufacturing industry.

The cost of electricity generated from solar enghgynost cases, remains higher than that of étéigtgenerated from traditional enel
sources. However in some markets, the cost of géingrsolar electricity is
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now on parity with that of traditional energy socescin those countries or areas where the costlaf snergy generation remains higher than
traditional electricity, some governments have enpented various tax credits and other financiadntives to promote the growth in
alternative energy sources. As the cost of solarggnhas declined many of these governments haeee their incentives and this trend is
expected to continue.

Energy generated from solar amounts to less thaoflélectricity generated in the world today. Tharket for solar energy is expected
to grow from 30 gigawatts in 2012 to 44 gigawatt2015. Today the manufacturing capacity for thapction of solar cells and modules,
estimated at 40 gigawatts, far exceeds the demand.

Over the next few years solar is now being forexhsd approach the cost of traditional energy ssifor some applications. Demand
for solar energy is forecasted to grow at approsétyaa 20% compound annual growth rate through 2016

The continued focus in the PV market is on the grment of high-efficiency cell technologies aimadsimultaneously boosting
efficiency and reducing production costs. New vaxyarocess technologies and integrated processépg sre expected to become
increasingly important as companies search for tasst manufacturing solutions.

A solar cell (also called a PV cell) is a solidtstdevice that converts the energy of sunlightatiyanto electricity. Assemblies of cells
are used to make solar modules, also known as gafais. Solar panels have broad-based end mapktations for solar farms, integrated
building PV arrays, rooftop grids and portable desi

Intevac offers products for wafer-based crystallilieon (“c-Si”) solar cell manufacturing process&lore than 90% of solar cells
produced are made using c-Si wafers.

Solar Manufacturing Products
Solar Cell Processing System

Intevac offers vacuum process manufacturing salstfor c-Si applications. Intevac’s platform, LEAOLAR™ is a high-productivity
process equipment solution enabling low-cost sméirmanufacturing and high cell efficiency.

Intevac has developed three vacuum process apphidatchnologies for the LEAN SOLAR platform: fooping by ion implant, for
etching or texturing the surface of a solar celt] for deposition of thin films such as transpa@rtductive oxides. Intevaxproducts incluc
LEAN SOLAR ENERGI™ ion implant, NanoTexture™, amdagrated physical vapor deposition (“PVD”). Inte\.aENERGI ion
implantation system is based upon technology deeeldy Solar Implant Technologies, Inc. (“SIT”) whiwas acquired by Intevac in
November 2010. These systems are designed to highathroughput and can be integrated into neexsting solar processing line

LEAN SOLAR ENERGiI

lon implantation is a technique being introduceddtar cell lines as a means to increase overtikfficiency. lon implantation can
replace existing diffusion processes and is al$engbable to new advanced cell structures with fgwecessing steps and therefore at lower
cost. The ion implant process developed with IntsfaEAN SOLAR ENERGI product enables precision ieegring of the dopant elements
such as Phosphorous and Boron to form the emittérei solar cell.

LEAN SOLAR NanoTexture

Texturing is a method used in solar cell procesasg means of lowering surface reflectance anéftre capturing more light or
photons resulting in higher overall solar cell @fincies. Today, texturing is typically carried ostng wet chemicals such as acids that
produce a rough textured surface on the solarEel. LEAN SOLAR NanoTexture is a dry etch procegsipstem that enables lower
reflectance and therefore higher cell efficiency.



LEAN SOLAR PVD

PVD is a process used in multiple steps in the rfzanturing of solar cells such as for electrical teats, conductor layers, reflective
layers, and transparent conductive oxides all aElware critical to the efficiency of solar cellthe LEAN SOLAR PVD system can deposit
all of these layers for a variety of c-Si PVD apptions as well as thin film solar layers.

Semiconductor Equipment Market

Prior to January 2012, Intevac designed, manufadtand marketed vacuum wafendling automation equipment to the semicondt
manufacturing industry. In January 2012, Intevaestied the semiconductor mainframe technology altticertain assets comprising its
semiconductor mainframe technology to Brooks Autiimma Inc. (“Brooks.”)

Intevac Photonics Segment
Intevac Photonics Market

Intevac Photonics develops, manufactures and aaitgpact, cost-effective, high-sensitivity digitadtwal products for the capture and
display of low-light images and materials identifion. These products incorporate high resolutigital image sensors operating in the
visible and near infrared (“NIR") light spectrumsdaare based on Intevac’s proprietary EBAPS (EdecBombarded Active Pixel Sensor)
technology.

Intevac Photonics products primarily address tigh Iperformance military nightision market. Key applications provide digital igeay
in extremely low-light level conditions. Intevacopides these products for military aircraft, growmthicles, and soldier head-mounted and
weapon-mounted applications. In additional to muilitnight-vision products, Intevac also developd aranufactures Raman spectroscopy
systems for the detection and identification ofeniats in the chemical, biological and explosiie®at detection (“CBNRE"),
pharmaceutical, plastics and law enforcement imhsst

Military Products

Intevac’'s EBAPS sensors are incorporated into castesigned products for high performance militgsplecations. Intevac’'s EBAPS
sensors can be integrated at various levels witlegelectronics, software, and displays basedh wpstomer specifications and requireme
Customization typically occurs in the areas of gtedcs, near-eye micro-displays, and mechanicekgging. Product configurations include
sensors, cameras, and complete systems. Intevadagis by application are:

Rifle Sight
Intevac offers low-light 1.3 mega-pixel EBAPS maghithat are integrated by our customers into a @reajght attached to weaponry
including rifles for night time aiming and targedin

Helicopter Pilotage
Intevac offers a night-vision camera with a 2.0 meiel resolution EBAPS module which is gimbal-unted on the helicopter. The
low-light level digital video is then viewable blyet helicopter pilot on a head mounted display eéngtthe pilot to fly at night time and in
adverse conditions.
Fixed Wing Aircraft Pilotage
Intevac offers night-vision cameras with 1.3 ar@lr2ega-pixel resolutions which are embedded irftgtder pilot’'s helmet and enables
the pilot to fly at night time and in adverse cdiudis.
Long-Range Target Identification

Intevac offers the Laser llluminated Viewing anchBimg (“LIVAR ©”) shortwave-infrared camera for lomgnge military night time
surveillance systems that can identify targetdstadces of up to twenty kilometers. Intevac PhitgiiLIVAR camera is incorporated into
long range target identification systems manufaciury major defense contractors.

5



Soldier Mobility

Both the U.S. Army and Special Operations Commagedponsoring programs to develop binocular niggiom goggles incorporating
digitally fused low-light level and thermal imagensors. Both head-mounted digital imaging systeiti@llow low-light level and thermal
imagery to be viewed individually or to be overlaid

Simulation and Training

Near-eye display systems are high-performance ordigplay products for near-eye, portable viewifigideo in military and
commercial markets. Intevac’s eyeglass and helnwetrted display systems provide high definition angide field-of-view in miniaturized
light-weight and portable designs. Intevac’s I-Prhelmet-mounted display provides solutions for sdislerse markets as medical,
industrial, commercial and military, including tnizig and simulation.

Commercial Products
Raman Materials Identification Instruments

Products include Raman spectroscopy systems thfarrpenon-destructive identification of solid magts, powders and liquids by
illuminating the sample with a laser and measutirggcharacteristic spectrum of light scattered fthentested sample. Raman spectroscopy
can be used in forensics, homeland security, ggolpgmology, medical, pharmaceutical and industyigllity assurance applications. Intevac
has developed a series of Raman spectroscopyrmstits that incorporate Intevac’s core NIR senspeable the detection and
identification of critical materials in the CBNRREharmaceutical, plastics and law enforcement imihsst

Low-Light Cameras

Intevac Photonics’ MicroVist&@ product line of conmtial compact and lightweight low-light Complemeantdletal-Oxide—
Semiconductor (“CMOS”) cameras provides high sarisitin the ultraviolet, visible or NIR regions d¢tie spectrum for use in industrial
inspection, bio-medical and scientific applicatiofibese cameras are primarily sold through didtidouchannels and to original equipment
manufacturers.

Backlog

Intevac’s backlog of orders at December 31, 2012 $&5.2 million, as compared to $32.9 million atBaber 31, 2011. Backlog at
December 31, 2012 consisted of $8.9 million of Bqueént backlog and $26.3 million of Intevac Photerhacklog. Backlog at
December 31, 2011 consisted of $17.9 million ofipment backlog and $15.0 million of Intevac Photsrbacklog. The decrease in
Equipment backlog was primarily the result of desed orders for 200 Lean disk sputtering systepgrages and LEAN SOLAR systems.
Backlog at December 31, 2012 does not include &di2an systems or LEAN SOLAR systems, as comparede LEAN SOLAR system
in backlog at December 31, 2011. Backlog includdg oustomer orders with scheduled delivery dates.

Customer Concentration

Historically, a significant portion of Intevac’swenue in any particular period has been attribetébkales to a limited number of
customers.

The following customers accounted for at least é@ent of Intevac’s consolidated net revenues k220011, and/or 2010.

201: 2011 201
Seagate Technology 51% 41% 40%
U.S. Governmer 1C% * *
HGST * 12% 26%
Fuji Electric * * 12%

* Less than 109

Intevac expects that sales of Intevac’s productsltdively few customers will continue to accotmta high percentage of Intevac’s
revenues in the foreseeable future.



Foreign sales accounted for 63% of revenue in 263%; of revenue in 2011, and 77% of revenue in 20h@ majority of Intevac's
foreign sales are to companies in Asia or to Uoghganies for use in their Asian manufacturing oreli@ment operations. Intevac anticip:
that foreign sales will continue to be a significportion of Intevac’s Equipment revenues. Integatisk sputtering equipment customers
include magnetic disk manufacturers, such as Hagtiic and Showa Denko, and vertically integratadd disk drive manufacturers, such as
Seagate, Western Digital and HGST. Intevac’s custeshmanufacturing facilities are primarily locat@dCalifornia, China, Taiwan, Japan,
Malaysia and Singapore.

Competition

The principal competitive factors affecting the kets for Intevac Equipment products include primeduct performance and
functionality, ease of integration, customer suppod service, reputation and reliability. Inteves one major competitor, Canon Anelva, in
the hard disk drive equipment market and has héstily experienced intense worldwide competitionftagnetic disk sputtering equipment.
Intevac primarily faces competition from large éditthed global competitors in the PV equipment reaitkcluding Applied Materials,
Centrotherm Photovoltaics, Amtech, Jusung and VafeAne. These competitors may have substantiaigtgr financial, technical,
marketing, manufacturing and other resources apaozd to Intevac. Furthermore, any of Intevac’s jpetitors may develop enhancements
to, or future generations of, competitive produbttt offer superior price or performance featuhesddition, new competitors, with enhan
products may enter the markets that Intevac cuyrestves.

The principal competitive factors affecting Inte\Rieotonics products include price, extreme lowtlighel detection performance,
power consumption, resolution, size, ease of iatigmn, reliability, reputation and customer sup@ortl service. Intevac faces substantial
competition for Intevac Photonics products, and ynrampetitors have substantially greater resousogisbrand recognition. In the military
market, ITT Exelis and L-3 Communications are laagd well-established defense contractors ancharprimary U.S. manufacturers of
analog image intensifier tubes used in Generatiomight vision devices and their derivative prothudntevac expects that other companies
will develop digital night vision products and aggsively promote their sales. Furthermore, Inteyat/AR target identification sensors and
cameras face competition from CMC Electronics, DRSR Systems, Goodrich and Raytheon, establisbetpanies that manufacture
infrared sensors and cameras which are preserdtyindong-range target identification systems.hidithe near-eye display market, Intevac
also faces competition from Rockwell-Collins andzi#) both of which can offer cost-competitive prothi

Marketing and Sales

Equipment sales are made primarily through Intevd@’ect sales force. Intevac also sells its prtgitirough distributors in Japan and
China. The selling process for Intevac’s Equipm@ptucts is multi-level and lengthy, involving im@luals from marketing, engineering,
operations, customer service and senior management.

Installing and integrating new equipment requirssilastantial investment by a customer. Sales e/att's systems depend, in
significant part, upon the decision of a prospectiustomer to replace obsolete equipment or t@#&ser manufacturing capacity by upgrading
or expanding existing manufacturing facilities grdmnstructing new manufacturing facilities, allvalfiich typically involve a significant
capital commitment. After making a decision to stlatevac’s equipment, Intevac’s customers typycpilirchase one or more engineering
systems to develop and qualify their productiorcpss prior to ordering and taking delivery of nplétiproduction systems. Accordingly,
Intevac’s systems have a lengthy sales cycle, dwvinich Intevac may expend substantial funds andagement time and effort with no
assurance that a sale will result.

The production of large complex systems requirésvic to make significant investments in inventooyh to fulfill customer orders a
to maintain adequate supplies of spare parts tacegpreviously shipped systems. In some casesdntmanufactures subsystems and/or
complete systems prior to receipt of a customeeiota smooth Intevac’s production flow and/or regliead time.

Intevac maintains inventories of spare parts inthéed States, Singapore, Malaysia, China and figito support its Equipment
customers. Intevac often requires its Equipmentorasrs to pay for systems in three installmentth wiportion of the system price billed
upon receipt of an order, a portion of the pridieBiupon shipment, and the balance of the prickaay sales tax due upon completion of
installation and acceptance of the system at tetomer’s factory.



Intevac provides process and applications suppoestomer training, installation, start-up assistéaaied post-installation service support
to Intevac’s Equipment customers. Intevac has fiffides in Singapore, China, and Malaysia to suppdevac’s customers in Asia.

Warranties for Intevac’s Equipment products tygicednge between 12 and 24 months from customespance. During the warranty
period any necessary non-consumable parts areisd@pid installed without charge.

Sales of Intevac Photonics products for militarplagations are primarily made to the end user thlolntevac’s direct sales force.
Intevac sells to leading defense contractors sadtbakheed Martin Corporation, Northrop Grummanpg@oation, Raytheon, DRS
Technologies, BAE and Sagem.

Intevac is subject to long sales cycles in the @tios segment because many of Intevac’s produat, & Intevac’s night vision
systems, typically must be designed into Intevaa'stomers’ products, which are often complex aatestf-the-art. These development
cycles are generally multi-year, and Intevac'ssale dependent on Intevac’s customer succesgfitéigrating Intevac’s product into its
product, completing development of its product #reh obtaining production orders for its produetleS of these products are also often
dependent on ongoing funding of defense progranthdy).S. government and its allies. Additionadlgles to international customers are
contingent on issuance of export licenses by tf& government.

Sales of Intevac Photonics commercial productsrerde through a combination of direct sales, distdts and value added resellers
and can also be subject to long sales cycles.

Intevac Photonics generally invoices its researchdevelopment customers either as costs are awusr as program milestones are
achieved, depending upon the particular contraoigeAs a government contractor, Intevac invoiecegamers using estimated annual rates
approved by the Defense Contracts Audit Agency (ABQ.

Research and Development and Intellectual Property

Intevac’s long-term growth strategy requires caundith development of new products. Intevac worksetyowith Intevac’s customers to
design products that meet their planned techniwdipeioduction requirements. Product developmenteamgiheering organizations are located
primarily in the United States and Singapore.

Intevac invested $31.8 million (38.1% of net revesiun fiscal 2012, $34.3 million (41.3% of neteaues) in fiscal 2011, and
$27.9 million (13.8% of net revenues) in fiscal @QGa&r product development and engineering progremeseate new products and to improve
existing technologies and products. Intevac hastsgpe average of 28.2% of net revenues on prodastldpment and engineering over the
last five years.

Intevac’'s competitive position significantly depsnzh Intevac’s research, development, engineemiagufacturing and marketing
capabilities, and not just on Intevac’s patent {msi However, protection of Intevac’s technologiassets by obtaining and enforcing
intellectual property rights, including patentsinigortant. Therefore, Intevac’s practice is te filatent applications in the United States and
other countries for inventions that Intevac consdmportant. Intevac has more than 250 paterifseifiunited States and other countries, and
additional applications are pending for new invemsi. Although Intevac does not consider Intevaasiiess materially dependent upon any
one patent, the rights of Intevac and the produade and sold under Intevac’s patents along withrahtellectual property, including
trademarks, know-how, trade secrets and copyriggiken as a whole, are a significant element @vat’'s business.

Intevac enters into patent and technology licenagngements with other companies when managemtarhdees that it is in Intevac’s
best interest to do so. Intevac pays royalties uagisting patent license agreements for use dgéicepatented technologies in several of
Intevac’s products. Intevac also receives, fronettmtime, royalties from licenses granted to tipiadties. Royalties received from or paid to
third parties have not been material to Intevaoissolidated results of operations.

In the normal course of business, Intevac peridigicaceives and makes inquiries regarding posgibtent infringements. In dealing
with such inquiries, it may be necessary or uskiuls to obtain or grant licenses or other righiswever, there can be no assurance that
licenses or rights will be available to us on comoiadly reasonable terms, or at all. If Intevandg able to resolve or settle claims, obtain
necessary licenses and/or successfully prosecutefend Intevac’s position, Intevac’s businessiiitial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected.



Manufacturing

Intevac manufactures its Equipment products dai#ities in California and Singapore. Intevac'guipment manufacturing operations
include electromechanical assembly, vacuum proogs&ibrication of sputter sources, and systermaisise alignment and testing.

Intevac Photonics products are manufactured atvdwete facilities in California and Wyoming. Intev&bhotonics manufactures sensors,
cameras, integrated camera systems, compact Raeeinascopy instruments and near-eye display systising advanced manufacturing
techniques and equipment. Intevac’s operationsidlecl/acuum processing, and electromechanical aichbpystem assembly.

Employees
At December 31, 2012, Intevac had 387 employeeljding 12 contract employees.

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

Intevac is subject to a variety of governmentalitatjons relating to the use, storage, dischargedling, emission, generation,
manufacture, treatment and disposal of toxic oetise hazardous substances, chemicals, materialaste. Intevac treats the cost of
complying with government regulations and operatirgafe workplace as a normal cost of businesskbochtes the cost of these activities to
all functions, except where the cost can be isdlated charged to a specific function. The enviromialestandards and regulations
promulgated by government agencies in Californigpiving and Singapore are rigorous and set a hagidard of compliance. Intevac
believes its costs of compliance with these regurigtand standards are comparable to other congapérating similar facilities in these
jurisdictions.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
Certain information about our executive officerco@&ebruary 22, 2013 is listed below:

Name Age Position

Executive Officers

Norman H. Pont 74 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Jeffrey Andreson 51 Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratio
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre’

Andres Brugal 55 Executive Vice President and General Manager, &tev
Photonics

Michael Russak 66 Executive Vice President and General Manager, Hard
Disk Equipment Produc

Christopher Smitl 53 Executive Vice President, Emerging Mark

Other Key Officers

Babak Adibi 58 Vice President and General Manager, Solar Img

Verle Aebi 58 Chief Technology Officer, Intevac Photon

James Birt 48 Vice President, Manufacturing and Customer Support,
Equipment Produci

Terry Bluck 53 Vice President, Technology, Equipment Prodi

Kimberly Burk a7 Vice President, Human Resour¢

Timothy Justyr 50 Vice President of Operations, Intevac Photo

William Maffucci 56 Vice President of Strategic Development, Intevac

Vision System:



Mr. Pondis a founder of Intevac and has served as Chaiohtre Board since February 1991. Mr. Pond haseseag Chief Executive
Officer from November 2012 until the present. MonE also served as President and Chief Executified®from September 2001 through
January 2002 and from February 1991 until July 2000 Pond also held executive management positiNarian Associates and
Teledyne. Mr. Pond holds a BS in physics from thiedduri Institute of Science and Technology andi&in physics from the University of
California at Los Angeles.

Mr. Andresorjoined Intevac in June 2007 and has served as Exedlice President, Finance and Administrationig€Rinancial
Officer, Treasurer and Secretary since August 280idr to joining Intevac, Mr. Andreson served aarndging Director and Controller of
Applied Materials’ Global Services product groumc® joining Applied Materials in 1995, Mr. Andresbeld a number of senior financial
positions, including Managing Director, Global Ficéal Planning and Analysis; Controller, Metron Sidliary; Controller, North American
Sales and Service; and Controller, Volume Manufauogu From 1989 through 1995, Mr. Andreson heldaas roles at Measurex
Corporation. Mr. Andreson holds an MBA from Santar@ University and a BS in finance from San Jas¢eSJUniversity.

Mr. Brugaljoined Intevac as Executive Vice President and Gdidanager, Intevac Photonics in January 20120ejbining Intevac,
Mr. Brugal was employed at Vision Systems Inteinal, a joint venture between Rockwell Collins &ibiit Systems of America, from 2006
to 2012, serving as President and Chief Executiffiedd from April 2007 to January 2012. From 20@52006, Mr. Brugal was employed a
consultant for DRS Technologies, a subsidiary ahtéccanica SPA. Mr. Brugal retired from active g@rwith the U.S. Navy in
October 2005 with the rank of Captain. Mr. Brugalds an MS in strategic studies and security affiom the U.S. Naval War College; and
a BS in general engineering from the U.S. Navald&cay.

Dr. Russakoined Intevac in July 2008 and currently serveExescutive Vice President and General Manager, Bésk Equipment
Products. Before joining Intevac Dr. Russak sea®&resident and Chief Technical Officer of Komagrf 2000 to 2007. From 1993 to 20
Dr. Russak served as Vice President of Researcbawdlopment at HMT Technology. Previously, Dr. Ralsheld management positions in
the Research Division of IBM Corporation. PriolBM, Dr. Russak worked for Grumman Aerospace Caafion as a contributing scientist.
Dr. Russak holds a BS in ceramic engineering aBt2in materials science from Rutgers University.

Mr. Smithjoined Intevac in August 2010 as Executive VicesRtent, Emerging Markets. Mr. Smith has over 25ye# executive-level
experience in the semiconductor and solar capifaipenent markets. Prior to joining Intevac, Mr. 8mserved as Senior Vice President Sales
and Customer Support at Oerlikon Solar, from Noven#907 to August 2010. From 2006 to 2007 he seage8enior Vice President of Se
and Service with Cymer. Previously, Mr. Smith wagptoyed by Applied Materials from 1994 to 2006. ghat Applied Materials he held a
variety of executive-level customer support andrapens positions. He also served as product basigeoup general manager for Chemical
Mechanical Polishing and was managing director lob@&l Business Development for the Dielectric ahgidfcal Vapor Deposition Product
Business Groups. Mr. Smith earned his BS in Busigbninistration / Material Management from SaneJ8tate University.

Dr. Adibi joined Intevac in November 2010 as Vice Presidedt@eneral Manager, Solar Implant. Prior to joininggvac, Dr. Adibi
was President, Chief Technology Officer and Co-Flaurof Solar Implant Technologies. Prior to fourgdBolar Implant Technologies,
Dr. Adibi worked for Silicon Genesis Corporationrn 2006 to 2008 as the General Manager of the &njaipment Division. From 2003 to
2006 he served as Vice President in the Laser Aimgearoduct Division of Ultratech. Previously, Dkdibi was employed by Applied
Materials from 1985 to 2003. While at Applied Ma#ds he held a variety of executive-level enginegipositions. Dr. Adibi holds numerous
patents in the area of ion implantation, a PhDbmimplantation and semiconductors and a MS ingargbower from Surrey University in
England and a BS in physics from the Imperial Gumlef London.

Mr. Aebihas served as Chief Technology Officer of the latel?hotonics business since August 2006. PreviohBlyAebi served as
President of the Photonics Division from July 2@800uly 2006 and as General Manager of the Phatddiidsion since May 1995. Mr. Aebi
was elected as a Vice President of the Compangitetnber 1995. From 1988 through 1994, Mr. Aebi thasEngineering Manager of the
night vision business
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Intevac acquired from Varian Associates in 1991emgthe was responsible for new product developinghe areas of advanced
photocathodes and image intensifiers. Mr. Aebi 8@dBS in physics and an MS in electrical engimgefiom Stanford University.

Mr. Birt joined Intevac in September 2004 and currentlyeseas Vice President, Manufacturing and Custompp@&t of the
Equipment Products Division. Before joining Inteyhr. Birt was employed by Applied Materials fromlyl 1992 to September 2004, most
recently as Director, Field Operations/Quality Nioftmerica. Mr. Birt holds a BS in electrical enginimg from Texas A&M University.

Mr. Bluckrejoined Intevac as Vice President, TechnologyhefEquipment Products Division in August 2004. Bluck had previously
worked at Intevac from December 1996 to Novemb@2d6 various engineering positions. The businessMr. Bluck worked for was sold
to Photon Dynamics in November 2002, and he wadmrag there as Vice President, Rapid Thermal PeoPesduct Engineering until
August 2004. Mr. Bluck holds a BS in physics froanSlose State University.

Ms. Burkjoined Intevac in May 2000 and currently serve¥iae President of Human Resources. Prior to joinimigvac, Ms. Burk
served as Human Resources Manager of Moen, Ino. 1809 to 2000 and as Human Resources ManagemafdraMardon from 1994 to
1999. Ms. Burk holds a BS in sociology from Northdtinois University.

Mr. Justynhas served as Vice President of Operations, IntBhatonics from October 2008. Mr. Justyn servedias President,
Equipment Manufacturing from April 1997 to Octol2808. Mr. Justyn joined Intevac in February 199d has served in various roles in our
Equipment Products Division and our former nigtsiam business. Mr. Justyn holds a BS in chemicgineering from the University of
California, Santa Barbara.

Mr. Maffuccijoined Intevac in November 2007 as Managing Direofdntevac’s Creative Display Systems subsidimg currently
serves as Vice President of Strategic Developnietgyac Vision Systems. Mr. Maffucci was the co+idar, Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer of Creative Display Systems uitsilacquisition by Intevac in 2007. Prior to foimgl Creative Display Systems,

Mr. Maffucci worked for Rockwell-Collins OptronidsKaiser Electro-Optics from 1993 to 2006 in a ggyriof executive-level management
positions where his most recent position was Sedr, Displays Business Unit. Mr. Maffucci hol8S in Mechanical Engineering from
the University of California, Davis.

Available Information

Intevac’s website ittp://www.intevac.conintevac makes available free of charge, on or tifindts website, its annual, quarterly and
current reports, and any amendments to those g@xsoon as reasonably practicable after eléctiynfiling such reports with, or
furnishing them to, the SEC. This website addresstended to be an inactive textual reference anty none of the information contained on
Intevac’s website is part of this report or is immrated by reference herein.

Trade Marks

“200 Lean® ,” “AccuLuber™,” “DeltaN¢ ,” “EBAPS® ,” “BIERGI™,” “ExaminerR™,” “I-Port™,” “LEAN SOLAR™,”
“LithoPrime™,” “LIVAR ©,” “MicroVista ®,” “NanoVista™”, “NanoTexture™Etch,” “NightVist® ,” “Night Port™ “PHARMA-ID™ "
and “RAPID-ID™" among others, are our trademarks.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following factors could materially affect Int/s business, financial condition or results oérgpions and should be carefully
considered in evaluating the Company and its bgsiria addition to other information presentedwlsse in this report.

The industries we serve are cyclical, volatile amdpredictable.

The majority of our revenue is derived from theesafl equipment used to manufacture commodity telclgygoroducts such as disk
drives and PV solar cells. This subjects us tormss cycles, the timing, length and volatility dfieh can be difficult to predict. When
demand for commodity technology products exceeddymtion capacity, then demand for new capital gaeint such as ours tends to be
amplified. Conversely,
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when supply of commodity technology products exsegginand, then demand for new capital equipmemt gasiours tends to be depressed.
For example, sales of systems for magnetic disdymtion were severely depressed from mid-1998 umtF2003 and grew rapidly from

2004 through 2006, followed by a downturn in theleyin late 2007 which continued through 2009. mbeber of new systems delivered
increased in 2010 as customers increased theiuptiod capacity in response to increased demandifital storage, but decreased in 2011
and 2012, as the hard disk drive industry did wiot he same level of capacity that it did in 200& cannot predict with any certainty when
these cycles will begin or end. For example, whigepreviously believed that our sales would corgitmibe depressed through 2012, we now
believe that the cycle will continue through atsie2013.

Our equipment represents only a portion of thetahpkpenditure that our customers incur when thyrade or add production
capacity. Accordingly, our customers generally cantonmaking large capital expenditures far in esscef the cost of our systems alone
when they decide to purchase our systems. The tualgnof these capital expenditures requires ouoouer's to have access to large amounts
of capital. Our customers generally reduce theiellef capital investment during downturns in thve@ll economy or during a downturn in
their industries.

We must effectively manage our resources and ptamucapacity to meet rapidly changing demand. Business experiences rapid
growth and contraction, which stresses our infaastire, internal systems and managerial resoubng#ng periods of increasing demand for
our products, we must have sufficient manufactudapgacity and inventory to meet customer demanidicaf retain and motivate a sufficient
number of qualified individuals; and effectively nzae our supply chain. During periods of decreadamand for our products, we must be
able to align our cost structure with prevailingrked conditions; motivate and retain key employaed effectively manage our supply chain.

Sales of our equipment are primarily dependent amr @ustomers’ upgrade and capacity expansion plarsl whether our customers
select our equipment.

We have no control over our customers’ upgradecapacity expansion plans, and we cannot be suyentiieselect, or continue to
select, our equipment when they upgrade or exdagid ¢apacity. The sales cycle for our equipmestesys can be a year or longer, invol
individuals from many different areas of Intevad amumerous product presentations and demonstratioosir prospective customers. Our
sales process also commonly includes productiGaoifples, customization of our products, and iredtalh of evaluation systems in the
factories of our prospective customers. We do nt#ranto long-term contracts with our customers] antil an order is actually submitted by
a customer there is no binding commitment to pusehaur systems.

Intevac Photonics’ business is also subject to kalgs cycles because many of its products, suobrasilitary imaging products, often
must be designed into the customers’ end produttich are often complex state-of-the-art produtiese development cycles are typically
multi-year, and our sales are contingent on outocasrs successfully integrating our product inirtiproduct, completing development of
their product and then obtaining production ordergheir product from the U.S. government or itiea.

Sales of new manufacturing systems are also dependebsolescence and replacement of the instiafied of our customers’ existing
equipment with newer, more capable equipment. dfrages are developed that extend the useful litheoinstalled base of systems, then we
tend to sell more upgrade products and fewer netesys, which can significantly reduce total reverar example, some of our 200 Lean
customers continue to use legacy systems for tugtion of perpendicular media, which delayedrémacement of such systems with new
200 Lean systems.

Our 200 Lean customers also experience compefittmn companies that produce alternative storagent@ogies like flash memory,
which offer smaller size, lower power consumption anore rugged designs. These storage technolagge®ing used increasingly in
enterprise applications and smaller form factohsas tablets, smart-phones, ultra-books, notepecdonal computers instead of hard disk
drives. Tablet computing devices and smart-phoa&e hever contained, nor are they likely in therfeito contain, a disk drive. Products
using alternative technologies, such as flash mgpoptical storage and other storage technologe®ecoming increasingly common and
could become a significant source of competitiopddicular applications of the products of our 2@@&n customers, which could adversely
affect our results of operations. If alternativehieologies, such as flash memory, replace harddtisks as a significant method of digital
storage, then demand for our hard disk manufagyrinducts would decrease.
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We operate in an intensely competitive marketplaged our competitors have greater resources thandee

In the market for our disk sputtering systems, wgeeience competition primarily from Canon Anelwdiich has sold a substantial
number of systems worldwide. In the PV equipmentkata Intevac faces competition from large estéigliscompetitors including Applied
Materials, Centrotherm Photovoltaics, Amtech, Jgsamd Von Ardenne. In the market for our militanyaiging products we experience
competition from companies such as ITT Exelis arRl Communications. Some of our competitors havetsutially greater financial,
technical, marketing, manufacturing and other resmsithan we do, especially in the PV equipmenketaDur competitors may develop
enhancements to, or future generations of, conigefiroducts that offer superior price or performmfeatures, and new competitors may
enter our markets and develop such enhanced psddoteover, competition for our customers is isesrand our competitors have
historically offered substantial pricing concessi@amd incentives to attract our customers or rekaim existing customers.

We are exposed to risks associated with a highlgaamtrated customer base.

Historically, a significant portion of our revenimeany particular period has been attributablealesof our disk sputtering systems to a
limited number of customers. This concentratiogugtomers, when combined with changes in the ciat@mapecific capacity plans and
market share shifts can lead to extreme variabilitgur revenue and financial results from periogériod.

The concentration of our customer base may enableustomers to demand pricing and other termsvanédle to Intevac, and makes
us more vulnerable to changes in demand by a giuetomer. Orders from a relatively limited numbemanufacturers have accounted for,
and will likely continue to account for, a substahportion of our revenues. The loss of one obthkarge customers, or delays in purchasing
by them, could have a material and adverse effecun revenues.

Our growth depends on development of technicallywadced new products and processes.

We have invested heavily, and continue to investhé development of new products, such as oul2@® system, our LEAN SOLAR
systems for PV applications, our digital night-wisiproducts and our near-eye display products.sOceess in developing and selling new
products depends upon a variety of factors, inalgidiur ability to: predict future customer requients, make technological advances,
achieve a low total cost of ownership for our praduintroduce new products on schedule, manufagitoducts cost-effectively including
transitioning production to volume manufacturingmranercialize and attain customer acceptance opmgducts; and achieve acceptable and
reliable performance of our new products in th&fi®©ur new product decisions and development camarits must anticipate continuously
evolving industry requirements significantly in ahee of sales. In addition, we are attempting {maax into new or related markets,
including the PV market. Our expansion into therR&tket is dependent upon the success of our custbdevelopment plans. To date we
have not recognized material revenue from suchymtsd Failure to correctly assess the size of takets, to successfully develop cost
effective products to address the markets or &béish effective sales and support of the new prtsdwould have a material adverse effec
future revenues and profits.

Rapid technological change in our served markefsires us to rapidly develop new technically adeahproducts. Our future success
depends in part on our ability to develop and offew products with improved capabilities and totoare to enhance our existing product:
new products have reliability or quality problerosr performance may be impacted by reduced ortigler manufacturing costs, delays in
acceptance and payment for new products and additi@rvice and warranty expenses.

Our operating results fluctuate significantly fromquarter to quarter, which can lead to volatility ithe price of our common stock.

Our quarterly revenues and common stock price Ractuated significantly. We anticipate that ouveaues, operating margins and
common stock price will continue to fluctuate fovariety of reasons, including: (1) changes indemand, due to seasonality, cyclicality and
other factors in the markets for computer systatmwage subsystems and consumer electronics cogfalisks our customers produce with
our systems; (2) delays or problems in the intrtidncand acceptance of our new products, or dglieéexisting products; (3) timing of
orders, acceptance of new systems by our custasneencellation of those orders; (4) new produsssyices or
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technological innovations by our competitors or(@3;changes in our manufacturing costs and opeyatkpense; (6) changes in general
economic, political, stock market and industry dtinds; and (7) any failure of our operating resuti meet the expectations of investment
research analysts or investors.

Any of these, or other factors, could lead to vibitptand/or a rapid change in the trading priceoaf common shares. In the past,
securities class action litigation has been in&iagainst companies following periods of voltiln the market price of their securities. Any
such litigation, if instituted against Intevac, twburesult in substantial costs and diversion of aggament time and attention.

Adverse economic conditions and volatility and diption of the capital and credit markets may negagiy impact our revenues and our
ability to access financing.

Economic conditions worldwide have contributed ¢ézmtased spending by our customers and a slowdotie ihard disk drive
industry. These factors have adversely impactedparating results and have caused us to be cauwlmut our future outlook. Our
customers also continue to remain cautious abeuttionomy. Negative macroeconomic and global remesy factors, further volatility or
disruption in the capital and credit markets otHar uncertainty or weakening in key markets cawddatively impact spending for our
products and may materially adversely affect owiress, operating results and financial condition.

In addition, while we intend to finance operatiavith existing cash and cash flow from operatiohagcessary, we may require
financing to support our continued operations. Buthe existing uncertainty in the capital and @rewarkets, our access to capital may na
available on terms acceptable to us or at all.

We may not be able to obtain export licenses frdma U.S. government permitting delivery of our prazts to international customers.

Many of our products, especially Intevac Photonmrsducts, require export licenses from U.S. gowemit agencies under the Export
Administration Act, the Trading with the Enemy Axft1917, the Arms Export Act of 1976 or the Intdfomal Traffic in Arms Regulations.
These regulations limit the potential market fomgoof our products. We can give no assurance thatibe successful in obtaining all the
licenses necessary to export our products. Heightgovernment scrutiny of export licenses for degarelated products has resulted in
lengthened review periods for our license appliseti Exports to countries that are not consideyetthd U.S. government to be allies are
likely to be prohibited, and even sales to U.Sealinay be limited. Failure to comply with expoohtrol laws, including identification and
reporting of all exports and re-exports of contrdltechnology or exports made without correct beeapproval or improper license use could
result in severe penalties and revocation of lieenBailure to obtain export licenses, delays aiong licenses, or revocation of previously
issued licenses would prevent us from selling ffected products outside the United States anddcoedjatively impact our results of
operations.

The Intevac Photonics business is dependent on ldg@/ernment contracts, which are subject to fixedcpng, immediate termination
and a number of procurement rules and regulations.

We sell our Photonics products and services diréotthe U.S. government, as well as to prime @mars for various U.S. government
programs. The U.S government is considering sicguifi changes in the level of existing, follow-orreplacement programs. We cannot
predict the impact of potential changes in priesttdue to military transformations and/or the retfrfuture war-related activities. A shift of
government priorities to programs in which we do participate and/or reductions in funding for loe termination of programs in which we
do participate, unless offset by other programsapmbrtunities, could have a material adverse effaour financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

Funding of multi-year government programs is suti@congressional appropriations, and there iguarantee that the U.S.
government will make further appropriations, patiely given the U.S. government’s recent focuspending in other areas. Sales to the
U.S. government and its prime contractors may la¢saffected by changes in procurement policiesgbudonsiderations and political
developments in the United States or abroad. Famele, if the U.S. government is less focused darte spending or there is a decrease in
hostilities, demand for our products could decre@be loss of funding for a government program wiaeisult in a loss of future revenues
attributable to that program. The influence of afithese factors, which are beyond our control]a¢oegatively impact our results of
operations.
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A significant portion of our U.S. government reveris derived from fixed-price development and pudidun contracts. Under fixed-
price contracts, unexpected increases in the oatdvelop or manufacture a product, whether dueaocurate estimates in the bidding
process, unanticipated increases in material caisced production volumes, inefficiencies or ofaetors, are borne by us. We have
experienced cost overruns in the past that hawdteesin losses on certain contracts, and may éxpeg additional cost overruns in the fut
We are required to recognize the total estimatqmhohof cost overruns in the period in which they farst identified. Such cost overruns
could have a material adverse effect on our restiligperations.

Generally, government contracts contain provisjpesnitting termination, in whole or in part, withqarior notice at the government’s
convenience upon the payment of compensation anlwérk done and commitments made at the timerafiteation. We cannot ensure that
one or more of the government contracts under wivighor our customers, operate will not be tern@dainder these circumstances. Also
cannot ensure that we, or our customers, wouldketa procure new government contracts to offsetréevenues lost as a result of any
termination of existing contracts, nor can we eaghat we, or our customers, will continue to ramiaigood standing as federal contractors.

As a U.S. government contractor we must comply wiiecific government rules and regulations andsabgect to routine audits and
investigations by U.S. government agencies. If aittd comply with these rules and regulations, rsults could include: (1) reductions in
the value of our contracts; (2) reductions in antsymeviously billed and recognized as revenuegc@®fract modifications or termination;
(4) the assessment of penalties and fines; ansu&ension or debarment from government contractisgibcontracting for a period of time
or permanently.

Changes to our effective tax rate affect our resutif operations.

As a global company, we are subject to taxatioménUnited States, Singapore and various othertdesnSignificant judgment is
required to determine and estimate worldwide talilities. Our future effective tax rate could Bgeeted by: (1) changes in tax laws; (2) the
allocation of earnings to countries with differitax rates; (3) changes in worldwide projected ahaaemings in current and future years:

(4) accounting pronouncements; or (5) changesarv#tiuation of our deferred tax assets and ligslitAlthough we believe our tax estimates
are reasonable, there can be no assurance thfihahgetermination will not be different from thieatment reflected in our historical income
tax provisions and accruals, which could resulidditional payments by Intevac.

Intevac enjoys a tax holiday in Singapore for aiparof its business through the tax years ending015. The tax holiday provides a
lower income tax rate on certain classes of incemng as certain thresholds of business invedtarehemployment levels are met in
Singapore. We may lose our eligibility for such &fits if, among other things, these requiremengsnat met or if Intevac incurs net losses in
Singapore for which it cannot claim a deductionst.of these tax benefits could result in our incam®ingapore being taxed at the statutory
rate of 17% instead of the agreed Pioneer Tax lyplidte of 0%. A loss of all or part of these taxé&fits would adversely affect our results
of operations and cash flows.

We booked significant tax benefits in 2008, 200%] 2011 based on our belief that we could bothydaarck losses and tax credits to
years Intevac paid income taxes and carry forwasdds and tax credits to future years where wevssliwe would generate taxable incol
In 2012, the Company established a $23.4 milliom-cash valuation allowance against certain of itS.ldeferred tax assets based upon an
evaluation of all available objectively verifiabdgidence, including but not limited to the cumulatloss incurred over the three-year period
ended December 31, 2012 by the Company’s U.S. tipesaThe establishment of the non-cash valuatltmwance on the Company’s U.S.
deferred tax assets did not have any impact aaih, nor does such an allowance preclude the Gonfgan utilizing its tax losses, tax
credits or other deferred tax assets in futureoplati

Intevac will need to generate approximately $44iflon of taxable income in Singapore in order tdly realize the foreign deferred t
assets, recorded as of December 31, 2012. If qpeatations of future income are incorrect, we cdiddequired to establish additional
valuation allowance against some or the entire i@imgdeferred tax assets which are primarily ltirdble to our Singapore operation.
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Our success depends on international sales andrtt@nagement of global operations.

The majority of our revenues come from regionsidetthe United States. Most of our internationésare to customers in Asia, wh
includes products shipped to overseas operatiobs®fcompanies. We currently have manufacturiedities in California, Wyoming and
Singapore and international customer support affineSingapore, Taiwan, China, and Malaysia. Weeekfhat international sales will
continue to account for a significant portion of tatal revenue in future years. Certain of ourgigps are also located outside the United
States.

Managing our global operations presents challeimgsding, but not limited to, those arising fro(i) global trade issues; (2) variatic
in protection of intellectual property and othegdérights in different countries; (3) concerndb$f. governmental agencies regarding pos
national commercial and/or security issues posegrbwing manufacturing business in Asia; (4) flattan of interest rates, raw material
costs, labor and operating costs, and exchangg, iatduding the weakening relative position of th&. dollar; (5) variations in the ability to
develop relationships with suppliers and other llbesinesses; (6) changes in the laws and regogtibthe United States, including export
restrictions, and other countries, as well as timérpretation and application; (7) the need wvjate technical and spares support in different
locations; (8) political and economic instabilif®) cultural differences; (10) varying governmantentives to promote development;
(11) shipping costs and delays; (12) adverse conditn credit markets; (13) variations in tariffgiotas, tax codes and other market barriers;
and (14) barriers to movement of cash.

We must regularly assess the size, capability acation of our global infrastructure and make appete changes to address these
issues.

We may be subject to additional impairment chargke to potential declines in the fair value of oassets.

As a result of our acquisitions, we have significatangible assets and had significant goodwilban balance sheet. We test these
assets for impairment on a periodic basis as reduand whenever events or changes in circumstamtieate that the carrying value may
be recoverable. The events or changes that cogldresus to test our intangible assets for impantigclude: a significant reduction in our
stock price, and as a result market capitalizattbanges in our estimated future cash flows, abasathanges in rates of growth in our
industry or in any of our reporting units. In theufth quarter of 2012, as a result of a declineunmarket capitalization and a reduction in
revenue expectations we recorded a goodwill impatneharge in the amount of $18.4 million. We wdhtinue to evaluate the carrying
value of our intangible assets and if we determmirtbe future that there is a potential further @mment, we may be required to record
additional charges to earnings which could matgredversely affect our financial results and coalsb materially adversely affect our
business. See Note 6 “Goodwill and Purchased littbngssets, Net” in the Notes to the Consoliddtethncial Statements for additional
information related to impairment of goodwill andangible assets.

Our success is dependent on recruiting and retaigia highly talented work force.

Our employees are vital to our success, and ounia@yagement, engineering and other employees flirliito replace. We generally
do not have employment contracts with our key eygss. Further, we do not maintain key person fifgifance on any of our employees.
The expansion of high technology companies worléwids increased demand and competition for qualfézsonnel, and has made
companies increasingly protective of prior emplaydemay be difficult for us to locate employedsonare not subject to non-competition
agreements and other restrictions.

The majority of our U.S. operations are locate@alifornia where the cost of living and of recrngiemployees is high. Our operating
results depend, in large part, upon our abilityetain and attract qualified management, engingenrarketing, manufacturing, customer
support, sales and administrative personnel. Furtbiee, we compete with industries such as the dsiddrive, semiconductor, and solar
industries for skilled employees. Failure to retaxisting key personnel, or to attract, assimitateetain additional highly qualified employe
to meet our needs in the future, could have a niahand adverse effect on our business, finanaabiion and results of operations.
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We are dependent on certain suppliers for parts dige our products.

We are a manufacturing business. Purchased parssittioe the largest component of our product dost. ability to manufacture
depends on the timely delivery of parts, componantssubassemblies from suppliers. We obtain sdriteedkey components and
subassemblies used in our products from a singiplign or a limited group of suppliers. If any afrasuppliers fail to deliver quality parts on
a timely basis, we may experience delays in marnuifimg), which could result in delayed product deties, increased costs to expedite
deliveries or develop alternative suppliers, oursgredesign of our products to accommodate atesm suppliers. Some of our suppliers are
thinly capitalized and may be vulnerable to failgreen recent economic conditions.

Our business depends on the integrity of our inégdtual property rights.

The success of our business depends upon theitptefour intellectual property rights, and we oahensure that: (1) any of our
pending or future patent applications will be altmivor that any of the allowed applications willissued as patents or will issue with claims
of the scope we sought; (2) any of our patentsnaitibe invalidated, deemed unenforceable, circuntegeor challenged; (3) the rights grar
under our patents will provide competitive advaetatp us; (4) other parties will not develop simgeoducts, duplicate our products or
design around our patents; or (5) our patent rightsllectual property laws or our agreements adlequately protect our intellectual property
or competitive position.

From time to time, we have received claims thataweeinfringing third parties’ intellectual propentghts or seeking to invalidate our
rights. We cannot ensure that third parties witlinahe future claim that we have infringed cutrenfuture patents, trademarks or other
proprietary rights relating to our products. Angiois, with or without merit, could be time-consuminesult in costly litigation, cause
product shipment delays or require us to enterrioyalty or licensing agreements. Such royaltyiaerising agreements, if required, may not
be available on terms acceptable to us.

We could be involved in litigation.

From time to time we may be involved in litigatiofivarious types, including litigation alleging fiffgement of intellectual property
rights and other claims. Litigation is expensiughjscts us to the risk of significant damages a&ulires significant management time and
attention and could have a material and adversetafih our business, financial condition and reseiltoperations.

Difficulties in integrating past or future acquisibns could adversely affect our business.

We have completed a number of acquisitions duringoperating history. For example, in 2007, we &eglicertain assets of DeltaNu,
LLC and certain assets of Creative Display Systémh€, in 2008 we acquired certain assets of OC ikamlBalzers Ltd., in 2010 we
acquired the outstanding shares of SIT and in 204 2ompleted the sale of certain semiconductor fraire technology assets to Brooks.
have spent and may continue to spend significaiurees identifying and pursuing future acquisitiq@portunities. Acquisitions involve
numerous risks including: (1) difficulties in int@ging the operations, technologies and producteeficquired companies; (2) the diversion
of our management’s attention from other busineseerns; and (3) the potential loss of key empley#dhe acquired companies. Failure to
achieve the anticipated benefits of the prior amglfature acquisitions or to successfully integithe operations of the companies we acquire
could have a material and adverse effect on ouness, financial condition and results of operatiofny future acquisitions could also result
in potentially dilutive issuance of equity secu®j acquisition- or divestiture-related write-affsthe assumption of debt and contingent
liabilities. In addition, we have made and will tione to consider making strategic divestituresthvdiny divestiture, there are risks that fu
operating results could be unfavorably impactadrdeted objectives, such as cost savings, araami¢ved or if other business disruptions
occur as a result of the divestiture or activitiglated to the divestiture.

We are subject to risks of non-compliance with emvimental and other governmental regulations.

We are subject to a variety of governmental regaiatrelating to the use, storage, discharge, hagpdtmission, generation,
manufacture, treatment and disposal of toxic oentise hazardous substances, chemicals,
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materials or waste. If we fail to comply with cunter future regulations, such failure could resulsuspension of our operations, alteratio
our manufacturing process, remediation costs astankial civil penalties or criminal fines againstor our officers, directors or employees.
Additionally, these regulations could require usitguire expensive remediation or abatement equiporeo incur substantial expenses to
comply with them.

We are also subject to a variety of other governalergulations and may incur significant costasged with the compliance with
these regulations. For example rules adopted b$H®@ to implement the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refamd Consumer Protection Act
impose diligence and disclosure requirements regguttie use of “conflict” minerals mined from the@mocratic Republic of Congo and
adjoining countries in the products we manufact@@mpliance with these regulations is likely touled additional costs and expenses or
may affect the sourcing and availability of the gmments used in the products we manufacture.

Business interruptions could adversely affect oyserations.

Our operations are vulnerable to interruption log,fearthquake, floods or other natural disastearantines or other disruptions
associated with infectious diseases, national tafase, terrorist activities, war, disruptions imwr@omputing and communications
infrastructure due to power loss, telecommunicati@ilure, human error, physical or electronic siggibreaches and computer viruses, and
other events beyond our control. We do not havetaildd disaster recovery plan. Despite our implaaiéon of network security measures,
our tools and servers may be vulnerable to commitgses, break-ins and similar disruptions fronawthorized tampering with our computer
systems and tools located at customer sites. €allitistability could cause us to incur increasestg in transportation, make such
transportation unreliable, increase our insuramséscor cause international currency markets widhte. All these unforeseen disruptions
instabilities could have the same effects on oppbers and their ability to timely deliver theirquucts. In addition, we do not carry suffici
business interruption insurance to compensateru|ftosses that may occur, and any losses or damiacurred by us could have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of tpesaFor example, we self-insure earthquake tilcause we believe this is the prudent
financial decision based on the high cost of thetéd coverage available in the earthquake inseramarket. An earthquake could
significantly disrupt our operations, most of whimte conducted in California. It could also sigrafitly delay our research and engineering
effort on new products, most of which is also castdd in California. We take steps to minimize tlaenége that would be caused by business
interruptions, but there is no certainty that offorés will prove successful.

We are required to evaluate our internal control @vfinancial reporting under Section 404 of the Saanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and any
adverse results from such evaluation could resulta loss of investor confidence in our financial perts and have an adverse effect on
our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, our management must perform evaluatiormiointernal control over
financial reporting. Beginning in 2004, our FormKMas included a report by management of theesssaent of the adequacy of such
internal control. Additionally, our independent istgred public accounting firm must publicly attesthe effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting.

We have completed the evaluation of our internatrais over financial reporting as required by 8scd04 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
Although our assessment, testing, and evaluatisultel in our conclusion that as of December 31220ur internal controls over financial
reporting were effective, we cannot predict thecoate of our testing in future periods. Ongoing cthamze with this requirement is complex,
costly and time-consuming. If Intevac fails to ntain effective internal control over financial repog; our management does not timely
assess the adequacy of such internal control; mindependent registered public accounting firmsdoet deliver an unqualified opinion as to
the effectiveness of our internal control over fic@l reporting, then we could be subject to restent of previously reported financial
results, regulatory sanctions and a decline irpth#ic’s perception of Intevac, which could have a maltarnd adverse effect on our busint
financial condition and results of operations.
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ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Intevac maintains its corporate headquarters ineS@atara, California. The location, approximateesind type of facility of the princip
properties are listed below. Intevac leases alisgfroperties and does not own any real estate.

Location Square Footag Principal Use
Santa Clara, CA 169,58 Corporate Headquarters; Equipment and Intevac

Photonics Marketing, Manufacturing, Engineering
and Customer Suppc

Fremont, CA 11,97: Intevac Photonics Sensor Fabricat

Laramie, WY 12,00( Intevac Photonics Raman Spectrometer
Manufacturing

Carlsbhad, CA 10,36( Intevac Photonics Micro Display Product
Manufacturing

Singapore 31,94% Equipment Manufacturing and Customer Sup

Malaysia 1,291 Equipment Customer Suppt¢

Taiwan 3,00: Equipment Customer Suppt¢

Shenzhen, Chin 2,56¢ Equipment Customer Suppt¢

Intevac considers these properties adequate toitaeeirrent and future requirements. Intevac radylassesses the size, capability and
location of its global infrastructure and periodiiganakes adjustments based on these assessments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, Intevac is involved in claimsddagal proceedings that arise in the ordinary sewf business. Intevac expects that
the number and significance of these matters ngitéase as Intevac’s business expands. Any claimoeedings against us, whether
meritorious or not, could be time consuming, resuttostly litigation, require significant amour@management time, result in the diversion
of significant operational resources, or requiréausnter into royalty or licensing agreements Wwhitrequired, may not be available on te|
favorable to us or at all. Intevac is not preseatparty to any lawsuit or proceeding that, inVatgs opinion, is likely to seriously harm
Intevac’s business.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registran's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit
Price Range of Common Stock

Intevac common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Starket (NASDAQ Global Select) under the symbol “IZA As of
February 22, 2013, there were 98 holders of redarfiscal years 2012 and 2011, Intevac did notatecor pay cash dividends to its
stockholders. Intevac currently has no plans tdadeor pay cash dividends.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsiiwy sale prices per share as reported on The N&tdak Market for the periods
indicated.

High Low

Fiscal 2012

First Quarte! $9.14 $ 7.3¢

Second Quarte 8.7¢ 7.14

Third Quartel 7.8: 5.1C

Fourth Quarte 6.01 4.3¢
Fiscal 2011

First Quartel $15.2¢ $11.0:2

Second Quarte 12.47 9.4z

Third Quartel 10.21 6.4z

Fourth Quarte 8.5¢ 6.11

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
None.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on Intevac’'s Common Stock withttbf the NASDAQ Stock
Market Total Return Index, a broad market indexlishled by the Center for Research in Security Br{t€RSP”), and the NASDAQ
Computer Manufacturers Stock Total Return Indexmited by CRSP. The comparison for each of the perassumes that $100 was inve
on December 31, 2007 in Intevac’s Common Stockstbeks included in the NASDAQ Stock Market Tot&t&®n Index and the stocks
included in the NASDAQ Computer Manufacturers Stdokal Return Index. These indices, which reflechfulas for dividend reinvestment
and weighting of individual stocks, do not neceibgaeflect returns that could be achieved by indihal investors.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN SINCE DECEMBE R 31, 2007
AMONG INTEVAC, NASDAQ STOCK MARKET TOTAL RETURN IND EX AND
NASDAQ COMPUTER MANUFACTURERS STOCK TOTAL RETURN IN DEX

250
—{F Intevac, Inc.
2010 2N NASDAQ Stock Market Total Return Index
—O— NASDAQ Computer Manufacturers Total Return Index /
o
B& | 150
- :
—_
= 1/\——&-/—/'&
S| o100 I ——
r:l T I I I T T
1243172007 1273172008 12/3 172009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012
12/31/0: 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1( 12/31/1: 12/31/1:
Intevac, Inc $ 10C $ 35 $ 79 $ 96 $ 51 $ 31
Nasdaq Stock Market Total Return Inc 10C 61 88 104 10t 124
Nasdaq Computer Manufacturers Total Return Ir 10C 42 92 132 15E 19€

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial information hashelerived from Intevac’s historical audited coigatked financial statements and
should be read in conjunction with the consoliddiedncial statements, the accompanying notes aandgement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationstf@ corresponding fiscal years.

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except per share datz
Net revenue $ 83,42 $ 82,97 $202,52¢ $ 77,98 $110,30°
Gross profit $ 34,15¢ $ 30,43: $ 87,67: $ 32,72 $ 43,33¢
Operating income (los: $(42,537) $(30,74) $ 31,23¢ $(17,34)  $(30,47)
Net income (loss $(55,319)  $(21,97H $ 28,04¢ $(10,077)  $(15,34Y
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic $ (2.39) $ (0.9¢) $ 1.2¢ $ (0.46) $ (0.7)
Diluted $ (2.39) $ (0.9¢) $ 122 $ (0.46) $ (0.7)
At year end:
Total asset $172,50: $225,82: $251,77: $203,37¢ $189,16¢
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is imded to facilitate an understanding of Intevac’sibess and results of
operations. This MD&A should be read in conjunctigith Intevac’s Consolidated Financial Statemenid the accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Form 10-K. The following discussion cangaforward-looking statements and
should also be read in conjunction with the cawtigrstatement set forth at the beginning of thist00-K. MD&A includes the following
sections:

» Overview:a summary of Intevi s business, measurements and opportun

» Results of Operationa discussion of operating resu

 Liquidity and Capital Resourcean analysis of cash flows, sources and uses of casltractual obligations and financial positi
 Critical Accounting Policiesa discussion of critical accounting policies theduire the exercise of judgments and estim;

Overview

Intevac provides process manufacturing equipmdatisas to the hard disk drive industry and higleguuctivity process manufacturing
equipment to the PV industry. Intevac also proviskssors, cameras and systems for government aiiqtis such as night vision and long-
range target identification and for commercial &agilons in the inspection, medical, scientificaphaceutical and security industries.
Intevac’s customers include manufacturers of héskl drives and PV cells as well as the U.S. govermmand its agencies and contractors;
and medical, scientific, pharmaceutical and othdustrial companies. Intevac reports two segmé&gaipment and Intevac Photonics.
During the first quarter of 2012, Intevac sold agrtassets comprising its semiconductor mainfrauokrtology to Brooks. During the third
quarter of 2012, Intevac wrote-off a promissoryen@ceivable and a deferred profit liability rethte certain thin-film PV equipment sold in
a previous year due to the insolvency of the custolBuring the fourth quarter of 2012, Intevac releal a goodwill and intangibles
impairment charge in the amount of $18.4 million @stablished a $23.4 million deferred tax valuatilowance against its U.S. deferred
assets.

Product development and manufacturing activitie=io North America and Asia. Intevac has fielflagfs in Asia to support its
equipment customers. Intevac’s equipment and sepricducts are highly technical and are sold piilsndirough Intevacs direct sales forc
Intevac also sells its products through distribsiiarJapan and China.

Intevac’s results are driven by worldwide demandhfard disk drives, which in turn depends on thengh in digital data creation and
storage, the rate of areal density improvemenésettd-user demand for personal computers, entergais: storage, including on-line, cloud
storage and near-line applications, personal aanlibvideo players and video game platforms thatiidecsuch drives. Demand for Intevac’s
equipment is impacted by Intevac’s customers’ ngdamarket share positions and production capads. Intevac continues to execute its
strategy of equipment diversification into new negkby introducing products for PV solar cell mawtfiring. Intevac believes that
expansion into this market, which is significartlyger than the hard disk drive deposition equipnmesrket, will result in incremental
equipment revenues for Intevac and decrease Irigestapendence on the hard disk drive industry vintes equipment business is subject to
cyclical industry conditions, as demand for mantifang equipment and services can change depemdisgipply and demand for hard disk
drives and PV cells, as well as other factors aschlobal economic conditions and technologicabades in fabrication processes.

Change Change
Fiscal Year 2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 2010
(in thousands, except percentages and per share anms)
Net revenue $ 83,42« $ 82,97« $202,52( $ 45(C $ (119,55)
Gross profit 34,15¢ 30,43: 87,67: 3,72 (57,247
Gross margin perce 40.% 36.7% 43.2% 4.2 point: (6.6) point:
Net income (loss (55,319 (21,97Y) 28,04¢ (33,349 (50,029
Earnings (loss) per diluted sh¢ $ (2.39) $ (0.9¢) $ 1.22 $ (1.4 $ (2.1¢)
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Fiscal 2010 financial results reflected improvedditions as Intevac’'s Equipment customers tookvaeji of systems to increase their
production capacity in response to the increasergahd for hard drives resulting from a generaléasing demand for digital storage in
multiple applications. In fiscal 2010 Intevac ailswested heavily in the development of its PV sof@nufacturing products and in late 2010,
Intevac acquired SIT to develop ion implementatigstems for PV cell manufacturing. Selling, genaral administrative expenses during
fiscal 2010 included variable compensation experiegal expenses associated with an arbitratioogading covering Intevac’s holdings of
auction rate securities (“ARS”) and transactionts@ssociated with the acquisition of SIT.

Fiscal 2011 financial results reflected a challegginvironment that resulted from consolidationthahard drive industry, a natural
disaster (flood) in Thailand, and the impact of Lg8vernment defense budget delays. Net revenuégsydiscal 2011 reflected lower
equipment sales to hard drive manufacturers andrdmtevac Photonics’ contract research and dewsdop (“R&D”) offset in part by higher
Intevac Photonics military product sales. Intevald $ewer 200 Lean systems in fiscal 2011, as but&ss/hard drive customers delayed
equipment purchases during the extended regulafmpyoval process for the two acquisitions by Seagat Western Digital. Also Intevac’s
hard drive customers had invested heavily in irsgdgroduction capacity in the previous year, whiet some of their 2011 capacity needs.
Finally, floods in Thailand resulted in supply ahdiisruptions for Intevac’s hard drive customersribg fiscal 2011, Intevac also continued
its efforts to diversify the equipment business eswbgnized the first revenue on its PV and sendaotor products. For fiscal 2011, Intevac
Photonics product revenue from low-light sensois @ameras increased; however, contract R&D revepakned as certain R&D contracts
had been completed in the prior year and contwaating for several large programs was impactedtdaelays in U.S. government defense
budget approvals. The fiscal 2011 net loss reftetdaer net revenues and increased operating egpdram the inclusion of SIT which was
acquired in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, effs-part by reduced variable compensation expeasd recognition of an income tax
benefit. During fiscal 2011, the Company did naiorel compensation expense in association withr@fitgsharing and executive incentive
variable compensation programs as a result of baiagoss position.

Fiscal 2012 financial results reflected a challaggenvironment as the global economic slowdownltedun lower sales of personal
computers and consumer electronic applicationd@mdr hard drive unit shipments by hard drive mastirers. Personal computer sales
were also negatively impacted by changing consureads toward higher usage of mobile and tableicgsy Although the hard drive
industry continues to expect growth in the entegdata storage market segment which includesendentralized storage or “cloud”
storage and near-line applications, the transttiotloud storage resulted in lower hard drive skipta in the near term. With hard drive unit
shipments down year over year, the Company shippgdtwo 200 Lean systems for capacity during 20M@wever, Intevac continues to
believe that long-term demand for hard disk driwésincrease, driven by growth in demand for dégistorage, declining growth rate in areal
density improvements, the need for corporationgptace and update employee computers, increagathistion technology spending to
support the transition to cloud storage and théfpration of personal computers into emerging ecoies. The number of disk manufactur
systems needed to support this growth as welltasetechnology transitions and improvements issetgd to vary from year to year
depending on the factors noted above. In fiscaR20itevac completed a customer qualification erPi¥ Etch manufacturing product as well
as delivered two beta ion implant systems thatiader-going qualification. During the first quartdr2012, Intevac discontinued offering
products to the semiconductor industry and solthaeassets which comprised its semiconductor meimé technology to Brooks.

In fiscal 2012, Intevac Photonics business levedsvgdriven primarily by the recovery of the contrB&D business, as several key U
defense programs received budgetary funding in2@iel and Intevac was awarded a major developnoenitact with the U.S. Army in the
second quarter of 2012. The U.S. military continteedevelop night vision solutions based on Int&vd@ital low-light sensor technology.
Substantial growth in future Intevac Photonics reses is dependent on the proliferation of Intesaethnology into major military progran
continued defense spending, the ability to obtapoe licenses for foreign customers, obtainingdoiciion subcontracts for these programs,
and Intevac’s development and market acceptancerofmercial products.

23



The fiscal 2012 net loss reflected slightly highet revenues, improved gross margins, increaseciipg expenses from the inclusion
of the $18.4 million goodwill and intangibles impaent charge and the $3.0 million write-off of @missory note receivable and higher
income tax expenses from the establishment of a4$88lion deferred tax valuation allowance. Durifigcal 2012, the Company did not
record compensation expense in association withrdft sharing and executive incentive variablenpensation programs as a result of being
in a loss position.

In fiscal 2013, Intevac expects that the effeatnaicro-economic environment conditions on demangdéosonal computers from
consumers and corporations, the continued protiferaf tablets and the increase in centralizedagt® will continue to negatively impact the
hard drive equipment business. The Company therefgpects that capacity shipments of Intevac egeiipito hard disk drive manufacturers
will be approximately at the same levels as 20042013, Intevac expects increased sales of PV ewripas Intevac completes its produc
qualifications, which Intevac expects will leadpmduction orders and additional customers in taranarket. For fiscal 2013, Intevac
expects that Intevac Photonics business levelsxected to be flat to up slightly from 2012 aslthsiness completes its major development
contract with the U.S. Army in advance of the flesge scale production shipments that will begitaie 2013.

Results of Operations
Net revenues

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201
(in thousands)

Equipment $52,53¢ $54,87¢ $168,25: $ (2,340 $ (113,379
Intevac Photonic

Contract R&D 15,75t 7,12¢ 18,30¢ 8,631 (11,189

Products 15,13: 20,97: 15,96¢ (5,847 5,007

30,88¢ 28,09¢ 34,27 2,79( (6,17¢)

Total net revenue $83,42¢ $82,97: $202,52¢ $ 45( $ (119,55))

Net revenues consist primarily of sales of equiphused to manufacture thin-film disks and PV cellsd related equipment and system
components; revenue from contract R&D related éod@velopment of electro-optical sensors, camerdsystems; and sales of low-light
imaging products and Raman spectroscopy instruments

The decrease in Equipment revenues in 2012 wagprilmarily to a decrease in the number of 200 Leatesns delivered to hard disk
drive manufacturers. Intevac delivered two 200 Legstems in 2012 compared to three 200 Lean systeB@l1 and compared to twergix
200 Lean systems in 2010. During fiscal 2012 Inteneognized revenue on its first LEAN SOLAR Nangfliee etch system for PV
applications. During fiscal 2011, Intevac recogdizevenue on the first LEAN SOLAR deposition systeand from its semiconductor
products. During the first quarter of 2012, Intedéscontinued offering products to the semiconduictdustry and sold certain assets which
comprised its semiconductor mainframe technologgrtioks. Revenues from disk equipment technologyragies and spare parts increased
in 2012 versus 2011 as Intevac’s customers invastedgrades for 200 Lean systems which increaseftficiency of target material
sputtered onto hard disk drives. Revenues from @igkpment technology upgrades and spare parteatssyul in 2011 versus 2010 as
Intevac’s customers delayed equipment purchases due petfting industry consolidation as well as reduasebfor upgrades in light of t|
level of new equipment purchased in fiscal 2010.

Equipment revenues in 2013 are expected to incidmgely from 2012 levels due to increased revefnom Intevac's new PV
equipment products partially, offset by a reduciimtechnology upgrade sales for the hard driveallesd base. Increases in system sales for
the hard drive industry will be driven by the néedincremental manufacturing capacity which isreuntly in an over-supply condition that is
expected to remain through 2013. Increases in RNpatgnt products will be driven by the adoptiomefv vacuum technologies in the
manufacturing of solar cells for both existing ax&dv production lines.
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Intevac Photonics revenues increased by 9.9% t®$80lion in 2012 over 2011 and decreased by 188%28.1 million in 2011 from
2010. Contract R&D revenue in 2012 increased a&saltrof a higher volume of contracts related to targe U.S. government defense
programs and due to the continued expansion o¥dwite low-light camera and sensor products in anjitapplications. The contract R&D
revenue decrease in 2011 was the result of a lealame of contracts due to the completion of sevafrintevac Photonics’ large
development contracts in 2010 and delays in U.8egonent defense budget approvals. Photonics ptoduenue decreased in 2012 as a
result of lower sales of low-light camera moduled a lower level of shipment volumes for long-raimgaging products as well as lower
sales of Raman spectroscopy products for commeapialications. Product revenues increased in 20&lta higher sales of loight sensor:
and cameras used in military night vision and loaigge imaging as well as commercial applicatiorth s Intevac’s near-eye display
products. In 2013, Intevac Photonics revenue igebtga to increase slightly from 2012 levels. Sutishgrowth in future Intevac Photonics
revenues is dependent on the proliferation of lt&/technology into major military programs, conted defense spending, the ability to
obtain export licenses for foreign customers, otitg production subcontracts for these programd,latevac’s development and market
acceptance of commercial products.

Intevac’s backlog of orders at December 31, 2012 $&b.2 million, as compared to $32.9 million atBaber 31, 2011 and
$46.7 million at December 31, 2010. Equipment baglkdt December 31, 2012 was $8.9 million compavekil¥.9 million at
December 31, 2011 and $27.3 million at Decembef810. Intevac Photonics backlog at December 312 2fas $26.3 million as compared
to $15.0 million at December 31, 2011 and $19.4ionilat December 31, 2010. Equipment backlog ateDdter 31, 2012 did not include any
200 Lean or LEAN SOLAR systems, as compared tolLdi®N SOLAR system at December 31, 2011, and two [284nh systems and two
LEAN SOLAR systems at December 31, 2010.

Significant portions of Intevac’s revenues in amytjgular period have been attributable to saleslimited number of customers. The
following customers accounted for at least 10 paroéIntevac’s consolidated net revenues in 2@0D2,1, and/or 2010.

201z 2011 201C
Seagate Technology 51% 41% 40%
U.S. Governmer 10% * *
HGST * 12% 26%
Fuji Electric * * 12%

* Less than 109

The magnetic disk manufacturing industry consi§is small number of large manufacturers. Sale®iP2o the U.S. government
represent contract R&D under contracts with the. Bugny and the U.S. Navy.

International sales totaled $52.6 million, $54.1lion, and $155.0 million in 2012, 2011, and 20déspectively, accounting for 63%,
65%, and 77% of net revenues. The decrease imattenal sales in 2012 vs. 2011 was primarily dul®wer net revenues from Intevac
Photonics’ digital night-vision camera sold to a N& customer. The decrease in international sal@®11i vs. 2010 was primarily due to
decreases in net revenues from disk sputteringsigstSubstantially all of Intevac’s internationales are to customers in Asia, which
includes products shipped to overseas operatiobs®fcompanies.

Gross margin

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201
(in thousands, except percentage:

Equipment gross prof $23,59¢ $22,31¢ $79,47: $  1,27¢ $ (57,159
% of Equipment net revenu 44.9% 40.7% 47.2%

Intevac Photonics gross prao $10,56¢ $ 8,11: $ 8,20( $ 2,451 $ (87)
% of Intevac Photonics net revent 34.2% 28.9% 23.%

Total gross profi $34,15¢ $30,43: $87,67: $ 3,72i $ (57,24)
% of net revenue 40.%% 36.7% 43.2%
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Cost of net revenues consists primarily of purctiasaterials and costs attributable to contract R&mJ also includes assembly, test
and installation labor and overhead, customer-fipemigineering costs, warranty costs, royalti@syisions for inventory reserves and scrap.

Equipment gross margin was 44.9% in 2012 compard® 7% in 2011 and 47.2% in 2010. Fiscal 2012gyneargins improved over
fiscal 2011 due primarily to a higher mix of upgeachnd spares shipments as well as higher systeginseoffset in part by lower factory
utilization and higher provisions for inventory eeges. Fiscal 2011 gross margins declined ovealfidg10 due to lower volume and
unabsorbed factory utilization costs. Gross margirtke Equipment business vary depending on a euwitfactors, including product mix,
product cost, system configuration and pricingtdacutilization, and provisions for excess andalete inventory.

Intevac Photonics gross margin was 34.2% in 20h2pewed 28.9% in 2011 and 23.9% in 2010. The impr@ré in gross margin in
2012 resulted primarily from cost reductions asated with digital night-vision products and warsanffset by slightly lower margins on
contract R&D. The increase in gross margin in 2fEsllted primarily from improved margins associatéith Intevac Photonicgiigh volume
digital night vision production shipments for a NABTcustomer and lower warranty provisions. Manufaetucosts for the digital night vision
product decreased in 2012 and 2011 as a resultsbfeductions and yield improvements.

Research and development

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201
(in thousands)
Research and development expe $31,76: $34,28’ $27,91¢ $ (2,529 $ 6,36¢

Research and development expense consists priroasblaries and related costs of employees engagattl prototype materials used
in ongoing research, design and development aetvibr PV cell manufacturing equipment, disk spuiig equipment, semiconductor
equipment and Intevac Photonics products. Duriedfitist quarter of 2012, Intevac sold certain assemprising its semiconductor
mainframe technology to Brooks and no longer penforesearch and development activities for semioctod equipment.

Research and development spending decreased fgmaeput during 2012 as compared to 2011 due prignarilower spending on
prototype materials for PV development and theatifouance of semiconductor equipment developniegearch and development
spending increased for Equipment during 2011 apeoed to 2010 due primarily to increased PV develat and the inclusion of SIT
which was acquired in the fourth quarter of fis2al 0.

Research and development spending decreased édoatnPhotonics during 2012 as compared to 201 iacdadnigher volume of billabl
contract R&D efforts and cost containment effoatsen early in 2012. Research and development spginttireased for Intevac Photonics
during 2011 as compared to 2010 due primarily ttnarease in yield improvement efforts, offset arttby cost containment efforts. Rese
and development expenses do not include costslo8$iillion, $4.9 million, and $12.9 million, in 2@, 2011, and 2010, respectively, which
are related to customer-funded contract R&D progrand therefore included in cost of net revenues.

Selling, general and administrative

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201
(in thousands)
Selling, general and administrative expe $25,70( $26,84: $28,51¢ $ (1,149 $ (1,679

Selling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of selling, marketing, customer suppéirtancial and management costs.
All domestic sales and the majority of internatioseles of disk sputtering products in Asia are endough Intevac’s direct sales force.
Intevac also sells its equipment through distribsito Japan and China. Intevac has offices in Siagg Malaysia and China to support
Intevac’s equipment customers in Asia.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses deeteim 2012 over the amount spent in 2011 due pityrta the lower charges
associated with the change in the fair value oftthrgingent consideration obligations related ® $hT acquisition and cost containment
efforts. Selling, general and administrative exgsrecreased in 2011 over the amount spent in @04 @rimarily to the reduction in varial
compensation accruals offset in part by acquisitedated charges and increased equity compensatjpense. Selling, general and
administrative expense include costs of $(219,08D2 million and $108,000, in 2012, 2011 and 20&6pectively, in charges associated
with the change in the fair value of the contingemnisideration obligations related to the SIT asitjon.

Bad debt expense

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201
(in thousands)
Bad debt expens $ 3,015 $ 41 $ — $ 2,97¢ $ 41

During the third quarter of 2012 Intevac wrote ®ffromissory note receivable and the related dedeprofit liability from the sale of
certain thin-film PV equipment in a previous yeadancurred bad debt expense of $3.0 million duthéoinsolvency of the customer. See
Note 5“Balance Sheet Details” in the notes to the codstdid financial statements for additional informatielated to the write-off.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles

Goodwill and Intevac’s indefinite life intangiblessets are tested for impairment on an annual basi®re frequently upon the
occurrence of circumstances that indicate that gilbdnd indefinite life intangible assets may bapaired. In the fourth quarter of 2012,
Intevac performed its 2012 annual assessment adirmpent. Intevac’s reporting units for goodwill imipment testing purposes are consistent
with the reportable segments: Equipment and Int@raatonics. Intevac tested goodwill for possibl@amment by first determining the fair
value of the related reporting unit and then corimggthis value to the recorded net assets of thertig unit.

The process of evaluating the potential impairnedérgoodwill is highly subjective and requires siigant judgment. Intevac used two
valuation methodologies, the market approach aadnttome approach, to determine the fair valuét$areporting units. In the Equipment
reporting unit the market approach was weightetbé&b and the income approach was weighted at 25%odine uncertainty in the near term
forecast. In the Intevac Photonics reporting uthi, income approach and the market approach weea giqual weighting. Under the income
approach, the fair value of each reporting unit easulated based on the present value of estinfatere cash flows, which were arrived at
by evaluating historical trends, current budgetgrating plans and industry data. Estimates ofuhee cash flows associated with the
businesses are critical to these assessmentssEhmptions used in the fair value calculation idellirevenue growth rates, operating
margins, risk adjusted discount rates and futuomeaic and market conditions. The market approackdd at the valuations of comparable
public companies which Intevac selected based spoitar industries and products. Intevac then eatald the reasonableness of the fair v
calculations of the reporting units by reconcilthg total of the fair values of the two reportingts to Intevac’s total market capitalization,
taking into account an appropriate control premitmtevac compared the carrying value of the repgrtinits to the fair value calculations.

The results of step one of the goodwill impairmeamalysis indicated that the fair values of bothElgelipment and Intevac Photonics
reporting units were less than their carrying valard potential impairment existed. Intevac conepléhe second step of the goodwiill
impairment analysis and determined that there wbaldo remaining implied value attributable to geiidn either reporting unit and
accordingly, Intevac wrote off all of the goodwilthich amounted to $10.5 million in the Equipmemgaging unit and $7.9 million in the
Intevac Photonics reporting unit.

In the second half of 2012, the Company experiercsignificant decline in its stock price whichuklted in the Company’s market
capitalization falling significantly below the recied value of its consolidated net assets. Theimmgat charge in the Equipment reporting
unit was primarily driven by lower projected result
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compared to prior forecasts. In the third quarfdisgal 2012, hard drive shipments were below stduexpectations and forecasted hard
drive units were expected to be down year over f@ahe second consecutive year. Also the timihbptievac’s penetration strategy for the
PV market was impacted by the overcapacity of PViufecturers and the oversupply of solar paneleémtarket. In light of these events,
Intevac lowered its near term forecast for the pognt reporting unit. The impairment charge inltitevac Photonics reporting unit was
primarily driven by adverse equity market conditian the Photonics industry due to concerns owgetdJ.S. government military spending
and budget constraints that caused a decreaserentmarket multiples compared with prior yeastitey.

Intevac acquired in-process research and develapffieR&D") of $4.0 million in connection with thacquisition of SIT in
November 2010. The fair value of the IPR&D was dutred through estimates and valuation technigassd on the terms of tl
acquisition. This IPR&D project is the developmehtntevac’s ENERGi ion implantation process tedbgy module for the LEAN SOLAR
platform to be used in the manufacturing of PV so#lls. Intevac expects to complete developmerth@project in the first half of
fiscal 2013. Upon completion of development andla&hment of technological feasibility, Intevadlwlietermine and begin amortization of
the acquired IPR&D over its useful life.

In conjunction with the annual impairment revietwe ICompany assessed the valuation of the IPR&D frenSIT acquisition. For
IPR&D, the review involved determining the presealue of future cash flows from the resulting prodioased on estimates, judgments, and
assumptions that management believes are app®foiathe circumstances. Based upon updated maresaggmojections related to the
IPR&D and on a discounted cash flow model, Intedieiermined the fair value of the IPR&D exceededdsying value.

Intevac also performed the annual impairment rexoéa tradename, an indefinite life intangible &sdering the fourth quarter of 2012
using a discounted cash flow model and the reti@fafroyalty method. Based on this review, Intevatednined the carrying value of the
tradename exceeded its fair value and recordechpaiiment charge of $30,000.

Intevac will continue to evaluate the carrying vabf intangible assets and if it is determined thate is a potential impairment; Inte\
may record additional charges which would adveraéfigct its financial results. For further detagege note 6 in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Gain on sale of mainframe technology

On January 6, 2012, the Company sold certain assdtgling intellectual property and residual assetiich comprised its
semiconductor mainframe technology for $3.0 milliorcash to Brooks and recorded a gain of $2.2anillSee Note 8 “Sale of Mainframe
Technology” in the notes to the consolidated finanstatements for additional information relatedte gain on sale of the mainframe
technology.

Interest income and other, net

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201
(in thousands)
Interest income and other, r $ 454 $ 63t $ 772 $ (181) $ (13¢)

Interest income and other, net in 2012 includeds$BW0 of interest income on investments partiaffged by $381,000 in realized loss
on the sale of ARS and $78,000 of foreign currdosges. Interest income and other, net in 201 Lded $847,000 of interest income on
investments and a gain of $109,000 related todhedf fixed assets partially offset by $308,000dalized losses on the sale of ARS that
were sold to the issuers at less than par valpadof tender offers and $32,000 of foreign cuckelosses. Interest income and other, net in
2010 included $899,000 of interest income on inmesits, a gain of $481,000 related to the remeasneai Intevac’s preacquisition equit
interest in SIT at the acquisition-date fair valpartially offset by $520,000 of foreign currenogs$es and $87,000 in net other expense. The
decreases in interest income in 2012 and 2011 dréren by lower interest rates on Intevac’s invessits.
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Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Years Ended December 31

Change Change
2012 vs. 2011 vs.
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Provision for (benefit from) income tax $13,24( $(8,13)) $3,96: $21,37: $(12,097)

Intevac’s effective income tax rate was (31.5%)ffecal 2012, 27.0% for fiscal 2011, and 12.4%ffscal 2010. Intevac’s tax rate
differs from the applicable statutory rates duenarily to establishment of a valuation allowante, titilization of deferred and current cre:
and the effect of permanent differences and adjgstenof prior permanent differences. Intevac’sfeiteffective income tax rate depends on
various factors including, the level of Intevact®jected earnings, the geographic composition atdwide earnings, tax regulations
governing each region, net operating loss carrydods, availability of tax credits and the effectiess of Intevac’s tax planning strategies.
Management carefully monitors these factors andlfiradjusts the effective income tax rate accotging

Intevac enjoys a tax holiday in Singapore for aiparof its business through the tax years endin20i15. The tax holiday provides a
lower income tax rate on certain classes of incantethe agreement requires that certain threslodldssiness investment and employment
levels be met in Singapore in order to maintain tidliday.

Management assesses the available positive antiveegaidence to estimate if sufficient future thkaincome will be generated to use
the existing deferred tax assets. A significantnget of objective negative evidence evaluated Wagtimulative loss incurred over the three-
year period ended December 31, 2012. Such objectigative evidence limits the ability to considdves subjective evidence such
Intevac’s projections for future growth. On theiba this analysis and the significant objectiegative evidence, for the year ended
December 31, 2012, a valuation allowance of $23ldomhas been added against the U.S. deferredsagt balance as it was determined
it was more likely than not that it will not be head. The amount of the deferred tax asset corsitiealizable, however, could be adjusted if
estimates of future taxable income during the darward period are increased, or if objective naga¢vidence in the form of cumulative
losses is no longer present and additional weighyt be given to subjective evidence such as oueptions for growth.

As of December 31, 2012, Intevac has recorded defetred tax asset of $10.9 million. Of this anto®8.4 million is in the U.S.
federal jurisdiction and $7.5 million is recordedSingapore. The realization of the deferred taetis primarily dependent on Intevac
generating sufficient taxable income in future dispears. Management believes that sufficient pes#évidence exists from historical
operations and projections of taxable income inrkiyears to conclude that it is more likely that that the Company will realize its
remaining deferred tax assets.

Business Combination

On November 19, 2010, Intevac acquired the outstgrghares of SIT, a privately-owned, developmésges company, developing an
ion implant module to be used in the manufactudhBV solar cells. Intevac’s primary reasons fas ticquisition were to complement its
existing product offerings and to provide opportiesi for future growth. The preliminary aggregateghase price was $12.4 million, which
consisted of an initial cash payment totaling $8ilfion and contingent consideration obligationshné fair value of $9.7 million payable in
cash based on the achievement of certain prodwel@ament milestones achieved over a specifieddeand revenue earnout on Intevac’s
net revenue from commercial sales of certain prtsdachieved over a specified period. On July 2112@pril 12, 2012, and July 1, 2012
Intevac made $2.4 million, $2.4 million and $95&00 payments to the selling shareholders for aemeent of the first, second and third
milestones. The fourth and final milestone wasauttieved on the targeted date outlined in the a@tepn agreement and will not be paid.
There is no remaining contingent considerationgattion associated with the milestone agreementae@ber 31, 2012. As of
December 31, 2012, Intevac has not made any pagrassabciated with the revenue earnout obligation.

For further details, see Note 7 of notes to codstdid financial statements.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardafiq“FASB”) amended its existing guidance for gadband other intangible
assets. This authoritative guidance gives compah@sption to first perform a qualitative assessinte determine whether it is more likely
than not that an indefinite-lived intangible assempaired. To perform a qualitative assessmeatmpany must identify and evaluate
changes in economic, industry and compapgeific events and circumstances that could affecsignificant inputs used to determine the
value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset. K@mpany determines that it is more likely thanthat the fair value of such an asset exceeds
its carrying amount, it would not need to calculdte fair value of the asset in that year. Thidatitative guidance becomes effective for
Intevac in the first quarter of fiscal 2013. Theplementation of this authoritative guidance is exjppected to have a material impact on
Intevac’s financial position or results of operaso

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2012, Intevac had $92.2 milliocédsh, cash equivalents, and investments compa®&blth8 million at
December 31, 2011. During fiscal 2012, cash, cgslivalents and investments decreased by $22.7omitlue primarily to cash used by
operating activities, payment of acquisitioglated contingent consideration and purchaseised fassets partially offset by cash received
the sale of the mainframe technology and the ddietevac common stock to Intevac’'s employees thholntevac’'s employee benefit plans.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments consibedbtlowing:

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 24,26 $ 23,56(
Shor-term investment 40,59: 58,58t
Long-term investment 27,31% 32,675
Total cash, cas-equivalents and investmer $ 92,16¢ $ 114,82:

Cash used by operating activities totaled $19.%aniin 2012 and $16.3 million in 2011. Cash getetlaby operating activities totaled
$51.3 million in 2010. Lower operating cash flow2012 was a result of the net loss adjusted taueecthe effect of non-cash charges
including, goodwill and intangible impairments, detd taxes, depreciation, amortization, chang#sariair value of acquisition-related
contingent consideration, bad debt expense andyeljased compensation. Higher levels of working capl&o contributed to the decreast
cash from operating activities as Intevac madestments for next generation PV products. Intevaitinaes to carefully manage working
capital.

Accounts receivable totaled $19.8 million at Decentl, 2012 compared to $18.6 million at Decemlie2B11. The number of days
outstanding for Intevac’s accounts receivable Wik dt December 31, 2012 compared to 88 at DeceBih@011. The increase in the
receivable balance and days outstanding was doaply to a higher level of unbilled receivables émntract R&D due to delays in
approvals from the U.S. government. Net inventaii¢asled $26.2 million at December 31, 2012 comgaoe$18.1 million at
December 31, 2011. Inventory turns were 1.7 irafi@®12 compared to 2.7 in fiscal 2011. The inaaéaghe inventory balance and the
decline in turns were due primarily to investmantgventories for next generation PV productsuiahg placing systems under evaluation
agreements at customers. Accounts payable totdl&dndillion at December 31, 2012 compared to $4ilBom at December 31, 2011.
Customer advances decreased from $5.0 million eedber 31, 2011 to $2.2 million at December 312201

Investing activities generated cash of $21.9 mmillio 2012, used cash of $70.2 million in 2011, gaderated cash of $37.7 million in
2010. In 2012, proceeds from sales and maturifi@svestments, net of purchases, totaled $22.Zianilln 2011, purchases of investments,
net of proceeds from sales and maturities, toth&H9 million. In 2010, proceeds from sales andumiiis of investments, net of purchases,
totaled $47.4 million. On January 6, 2012, the Canypsold certain assets which comprised its serdiettor
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mainframe technology for $3.0 million in cash t@Bks. During 2010, Intevac acquired the outstandhmyes of SIT for a preliminary
aggregate purchase price of $12.4 million, whichststed of an initial cash payment totaling $2.#iam and a contingent consideration
obligation with a fair value of $9.7 million payabih cash. Capital expenditures were $3.3 millim2012, $5.6 million in 2011, and
$7.1 million in 2010.

Financing activities used cash of $1.5 million 012 and generated cash of $535,000 in 2011 andhdiflidn in 2010. In connection
with the acquisition of SIT, Intevac agreed to payto an aggregate of $7.0 million in cash to #lérgy shareholders if certain milestones are
achieved over a specified period. On July 21, 2@til 12, 2012, and July 1, 2012 Intevac made $@ilion, $2.4 million, and $956,000 in
payments to the selling shareholders for achievéwighe first, second and third milestones. Thetio and final milestone was not achieved
on the targeted date outlined in the acquisitiora@gent and will not be paid. There is no remaimioigtingent consideration obligation
associated with the milestone agreement at DeceBihe2012. Subsequent to the SIT acquisition, bteuaid in full $177,000 in notes
payable to certain selling shareholders assumed t@acquisition. The sale of Intevac common stodktevac’s employees through
Intevac’'s employee benefit plans provided $1.9iarilin 2012, $2.9 million in 2011, and $2.8 millian2010.

Intevac’s investment portfolio consists principadifyinvestment grade money market mutual funds, Ur8asury and agency securities,
commercial paper, municipal bonds, corporate bamdkvariable rate demand notes (“VRDNSs"). Intevegutarly monitors the credit risk in
its investment portfolio and takes measures, whiely include the sale of certain securities, to rgarsuch risks in accordance with its
investment policies.

Intevac previously held ARS that, due to their la€kiquidity, were categorized as Level 3 secastilntevac did not hold any ARS at
December 31, 2012. During 2012 Intevac sold AR® wipar value of $4.9 million, collected $4.5 noilliand recognized realized losses on
the sales of $381,000. During 2011, Intevac paditeid in three tender offers, sold ARS with paugalof $5.5 million, collected $5.2 million
and recognized realized losses on the sales of @308Additionally, during 2011, $500,000 of ARSr&eedeemed at par. On July 27, 2010,
as a result of a favorable ruling from the Finahkridustry Regulatory Authority arbitration pankitevac received $54.8 million from the
repurchase of by Citigroup of previously held AR®ar including interest.

As of December 31, 2012, approximately $7.6 millidrcash and cash equivalents and $7.6 milliomeéstments were domiciled in
foreign tax jurisdictions. Intevac expects a sigaifit portion of these funds to remain off shoréhie short term. If the Company chose to
repatriate these funds to the United States, ildvba required to accrue and pay additional taxeary portion of the repatriation where no
United States income tax had been previously peakid

Intevac believes that its existing cash, cash ed@nts and investments will be sufficient to megevacs cash requirements for the n
12 months. Intevac intends to undertake approximn&&0 million — $6.0 million in capital expendites during the next 12 months.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes Intevac’s contractldigations as of December 31, 2012:

Payments due by perioc

Total <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years

(in thousands)
Operating lease obligatiol $ 7,96( $ 2,19¢ $ 3,631 $2,127 $ —
Purchase obligations and commitme! 7,771 7,771 — — —
Other lon¢-term liabilities2 4 90 90 — — —
Total 3.4 $15,82: $10,05; $ 3,63 $2,127 $ —

1 Purchase obligations include agreements to psechaods or services that are enforceable andyidgatling on Intevac and that specify
all significant terms, including fixed or minimunuantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or vdgglyice provisions; and the
approximate timing of the transaction. Purchas&abibns exclude agreements that are cancelabfmutipenalty. These purchase
obligations are related principally to inventorydasther items
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2 Intevac is unable to reliably estimate the timiiguture payments related to uncertain tax posgj therefore, $4.3 million of
unrecognized tax benefits has been excluded fremathle above

3 Total excludes contractual obligations alreadyrded on the consolidated balance sheet as cliabifities (except other long-term
liabilities) and certain purchase obligatio

4 Total excludes contingent consideration that mapdid pursuant to asset purchases or business catiais.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012, Intevac did not have aaienmal off-balance sheet arrangements (as defingdm 303(a)(4)(ii) of
Regulation S-K).

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmant related disclosures in conformity with ac¢mgnprinciples generally accepted
in the United States of America requires manageritemake judgments, assumptions and estimatesaffest the amounts reported. Note 1
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements @essthe significant accounting policies used m pheparation of the consolidated finan
statements. Certain of these significant accourginigies are considered to be critical accoungioticies.

A critical accounting policy is defined as one ttsaboth material to the presentation of Intevagasolidated financial statements and
requires management to make difficult, subjectiveamplex judgments that could have a materialcéd@ Intevac’s financial condition or
results of operations. Specifically, these polidiase the following attributes: (1) Intevac is riggd to make assumptions about matters that
are highly uncertain at the time of the estimate} &) different estimates Intevac could reasonhble used, or changes in the estimate that
are reasonably likely to occur, would have a mateifect on Intevac's financial condition or ressubf operations.

Estimates and assumptions about future eventshadeffects cannot be determined with certaintjevac bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumsptbelieved to be applicable and reasonable uhderircumstances. These estimates may
change as new events occur, as additional infoomasi obtained and as Intevac’s operating envirgriroleanges. These changes have
historically been minor and have been includedhe&donsolidated financial statements as soon ggame known. In addition,
management is periodically faced with uncertainties outcomes of which are not within its conantl will not be known for prolonged
periods of time. These uncertainties are discusstte section above entitled “Risk Factors.” Basad critical assessment of its accounting
policies and the underlying judgments and uncetitsraffecting the application of those policiesmagement believes that Intevac’s
consolidated financial statements are fairly statemccordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United States of America,
and provide a meaningful presentation of Intevéioancial condition and results of operations.

Management believes that the following are critmadounting policies:

Revenue Recognition

Intevac recognizes revenue when persuasive eviddrarearrangement exists, delivery has occurreitile and risk of loss have
passed to Intevac’s customer or services have feeelered, the price is fixed or determinable, asibbctibility is reasonably assured.
Intevac’s shipping terms are customarily FOB shiggioint or equivalent terms. Intevac’s revenu@gedion policy generally results in
revenue recognition at the following points: (1) &l transactions where legal title passes tactigtomer upon shipment, Intevac recognizes
revenue upon shipment for all products that haeslzkemonstrated to meet product specifications psishipment; the portion of revenue
associated with certain installation-related tasldeferred, and that revenue is recognized upaorptaiion of the installation-related tasks;
(2) for products that have not been demonstratedeet product specifications prior to shipmenterawe is recognized at customer
acceptance; and (3) for arrangements containingpteublements, the revenue relating to the undedist elements is deferred until deliver
the deferred elements. When a sales arrangemetatim®multiple elements, Intevac allocates reveanwEach element based on a selling
hierarchy. The selling price for a deliverable é&séd
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on its vendor specific evidence (“VSOE”) if availapthird party evidence (“TPE”) if VSOE is not adle, or best estimate of selling price
(“ESP") if neither VSOE nor TPE is available. Int&vgenerally utilizes the ESP due to the natursgfroducts. In certain cases, technology
upgrade sales are accounted for as multiple-elearesmigements, usually split between delivery efgihrts and installation on the custorser’
systems. In these cases, Intevac recognizes reventhe relative sales price of the parts upoprsigint and transfer of title, and recognizes
revenue for the relative sales price of installaservices when those services are completed. Revetated to sales of spare parts is
generally recognized upon shipment. Revenue retatedrvices is generally recognized upon compiatiothe services. In addition, Intevac
uses the installment method to record revenue basedsh receipts in situations where the accaaativable is collected over an extended
period of time and in management’s judgment theakegf collectibility is uncertain.

Intevac performs research and development workrwatéous government-sponsored research conti@eigenue on cost-plus-fee
contracts is recognized to the extent of costsadlgtincurred plus a proportionate amount of the éarned. Intevac considers fixed fees under
cost-plus-fee contracts to be earned in propottiche allowable costs actually incurred in perfance of the contract. Revenue on fixed-
price contracts is recognized on a milestone metinguercentage-of-completion method of contracbanting. For contracts structured as
milestone agreements, revenue is recognized wispeafied milestone is achieved, provided thatlig#)milestone event is substantive in
nature and there is substantial uncertainty alimuathievement of the milestone at the incepticdh@figreement, (2) the milestone payment
is non-refundable, and (3) there is no continuiaggrmance obligations associated with the milestoslyment. Any milestone payments
received prior to satisfying these revenue recamgnitriteria are deferred. Intevac generally deteem the percentage completed based on the
percentage of costs incurred to date in relaticdotal estimated costs expected through completighe contract. When estimates of total
costs to be incurred on a contract exceed estinohtesal revenue to be earned, a provision forethére loss on the contract is recorded in
period the loss is determined.

Inventories

Inventories are valued using average actual cost@ee stated at the lower of cost or market. Ewgying value of inventory is reduced
for estimated obsolescence by the difference betieeost and the estimated market value based aggumptions about future demand.
Intevac evaluates the inventory carrying valuepitiential excess and obsolete inventory exposwyresalyzing historical and anticipated
demand. In addition, inventories are evaluategdential obsolescence due to the effect of knomchamticipated engineering change orders
and new products. If actual demand were to be antiatly lower than estimated, additional inventadjustments for excess or obsolete
inventory might be required, which could have aamat adverse effect on Intevac’s business, firermndition and results of operations.

Warranty

Intevac estimates the costs that may be incurrddruhe warranty it provides and records a ligbilitthe amount of such costs at the
time the related revenue is recognized. Estimatedamty costs are determined by analyzing spegifiduct and historical configuration
statistics and regional warranty support costeviat’s warranty obligation is affected by prodwilure rates, material usage, and labor costs
incurred in correcting product failures during tharranty period. As Intevac’s customer service Begis and process support engineers are
highly trained and deployed globally, labor availibis a significant factor in determining laboosts. The quantity and availability of criti
replacement parts is another significant factarstimating warranty costs. Unforeseen componehiréas or exceptional component
performance can also result in changes to warreogts. If actual warranty costs differ substantifdbm our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required.

Income Taxes

Intevac accounts for income taxes by recognizirfgrded tax assets and liabilities using enacteddses for the effect of temporary
differences between the book and tax bases ofdedassets and liabilities, net operating lossdgancredit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets are also reduced by a valuation allowarite if
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is more likely than not that a portion of the dedertax asset will not be realized. Managementdetsrmined that it is more likely than not
that its future taxable income will not be suffiti¢o realize its entire deferred tax assets.

The effective tax rate is highly dependent upongbegraphic composition of worldwide earnings, iegulations governing each
region, non-tax deductible expenses and availghifitax credits. Management carefully monitors ¢hanges in many factors and adjusts the
effective income tax rate as required. If actualites differ from these estimates, Intevac coulddupiired to record additional valuation
allowances on deferred tax assets or adjust ks®@fe income tax rate, which could have a matadlakerse effect on Intevac’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves sigmiéint judgment in estimating the impact of uncettain the application of complex tax
laws. Resolution of these uncertainties in a mamm@@mesistent with Intevac’s expectations couldehavmaterial impact on Intevad'esults ¢
operations and financial condition.

Valuation of IPR&D, Contingent Consideration, Goodlvand Other Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquired business isa#idcas applicable, between IPR&D, other ideftifiantangible assets, net tangible
assets and goodwill. IPR&D is defined as the valssigned to those projects for which the relatedycts have no alternative future use.
Determining the portion of the purchase price a@ted to IPR&D and other intangible assets require<Company to make significant
estimates. The amount of the purchase price adddatIPR&D and other intangible assets is detegnhiny estimating the future cash flows
of each project or technology and discounting thiecash flows back to their present values. Theodist rate used is determined at the time
of the acquisition in accordance with accepted atédm methods. For IPR&D, these valuation methogiel® include consideration of the risk
of the project not achieving commercial feasibility

Contingent consideration is recorded at the actipristiate at the estimated fair value of the caygiit payments. The acquisition date
fair value is measured based on the considerakipacted to be transferred (probability-weighted§cdunted back to present value. The
discount rate used is determined at the time otugiisition in accordance with accepted valuati@thods. The fair value of the contingent
consideration is remeasured at the estimated &ilevat each reporting period with the changeiimvieiue recognized as income or expense
in the consolidated statements of operations.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the aggregatehpse price over the fair value of net assetsydicy IPR&D, of acquired business
Intevac’s methodology for allocating the purchaseeprelating to purchase acquisitions is deterahitheough established and generally
accepted valuation techniques. Goodwill is measasetthe excess of the cost of the acquisition thesum of the amounts assigned to
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acgliess liabilities assumed. Intevac assigns assefsired (including goodwill) and liabilities
assumed to a reporting unit as of the date of atpn.

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets with iimitef useful lives are not amortized, but are rexd for impairment annually during
the fourth quarter of each fiscal year and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicate ieatdrrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable. For goodwill, Intevac performs a twepsmpairment test. In the first step, Intevac pames the fair value of each reporting unit
to its carrying value. Intevac’s reporting unite aonsistent with the reportable segments idedtifieNote 13, based on the manner in which
Intevac operates its business and the nature sétbperations. Depending on the facts and circurossalntevac determines the fair value of
each of its reporting units based upon the mostagiate valuation technique using the income agginpthe market approach or a
combination thereof. The income and market appresglere selected as management believes theseaappsagenerally provide the most
reliable indications of fair value when the valddh® operations is more dependent on the abdityenerate earnings than on the value of the
assets used in the production process. Under tiognia approach Intevac calculates the fair valueefeporting units based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows. Under theketaaipproach Intevac estimates the fair value basadarket multiples of revenue or
earnings for comparable companies. Each valuagicmigue has advantages and drawbacks, which raustrisidered when applying those
techniques. The income approach closely corretatesanagement’s expectations of future results but

34



requires significant assumptions which can be ligkhsitive. The market approach is relativelyightiorward to measure, but it may be
difficult to find directly comparable companiesthre marketplace. If the fair value of the reportingt exceeds the carrying value of the net
assets assigned to that unit, goodwill is not imgohand no further testing is performed. If thegag value of the net assets assigned to the
reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the rapgrtnit, then Intevac would perform the secong stethe impairment test in order to
determine the implied fair value of the reportingtis goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporgirunit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair
value, Intevac would record an impairment loss etputhe difference.

Equity-Based Compensation

Intevac records compensation expense for equitgebawards using the Black-Scholes option pricinglehol his model requires
Intevac to estimate the expected volatility of piniee of Intevac’s common stock and the expectieddli the equitybased awards. Intevac a
estimates the forfeiture of the equity-based awdEdimating volatility, expected life and forfeiéis requires significant judgment and an
analysis of historical data. Intevac may have twéase or decrease compensation expense for dgsied awards if actual results differ
significantly from Intevac's estimates.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk

Interest rate risk. Intevac’s exposure to market risk for changes iergst rates relates primarily to its investmentfpbo. Intevac
does not use derivative financial instruments tevac’s investment portfolio. The Company has agldgin investment policy and established
guidelines relating to credit quality, diversifizat and maturities of its investments in order teserve principal and maintain liquidity. All
investment securities in Intevac's portfolio haveimvestment grade credit rating. Investments sipicconsist of commercial paper,
obligations of the U.S. government and its agenciegporate debt securities, municipal bonds an®NMR

The table below presents principal amounts ande@hlaeighted-average interest rates by year of@gdematurity for Intevac’s
investment portfolio at December 31, 2012.

Fair
2013 2014 201t 201€¢ 2017 Total Value
Cash equivalent
Variable rate amoun $18,32: — — — —  $18,32. $18,32.
Weightec-average rat 0.1(% — — — —
Shor-term investment
Fixed rate amount $38,18: — — — — $38,18! $38,21¢
Weightec-average rat 1.8% — — — —
Variable rate amoun $ 2,37¢ — — — — $237 $ 2,37
Weightec-average rat 1.64% — — — —
Long-term investment
Fixed rate amount — $27,27* — — —  $27,27F  $27,31%
Weightec-average rat — 20% — — —
Total investment portfoli $58,88( $27,27¢ — — — $86,15¢ $86,23(

Foreign exchange risk. From time to time, Intevac enters into foreign eny forward exchange contracts to hedge certaitis of
anticipated foreign currency re-measurement exgasdrhe objective of these contracts is to mininttiseimpact of foreign currency
exchange rate movements on Intevac’s operatindtse3ine notional amount of Company’s foreign conogderivatives was $491,000 at
December 31, 2012. Intevac had no foreign currémeyard exchange contracts during any of the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Intevac, Inc. (a Delaware corporatoi) subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, aeddfated consolidated statements of operatiomspoehensive income (loss),
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efitiree years in the period ended December 31, 20iE&e financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupoasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on lasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 312 2nd 2011 and the results of their operatiodstlagir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2012 inoconiy with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of Americ

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2012, based on criteria estadiininternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repated
February 22, 2013 expressed an unqualified opioiothe effectiveness of the Company’s internal mmtver financial reporting.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
February 22, 2013
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INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Trade, notes and other accounts receivable, redtafances of $0 and $41 at December 31, 2012 and, 2
respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deferred income tax asst
Total current asse
Property, plant and equipment, |
Long-term investment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net of amortization 0882,and $2,344 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, ctspy
Deferred income taxes and other |-term asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related liabiliti¢
Other accrued liabilitie
Customer advance
Deferred income taxe
Total current liabilities
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:
Undesignated preferred stock, $0.001 par valu®000shares authorized, no shares issued and adliteg
Common stock, $0.001 par valu
Authorized shares — 50,000 issued and outstandiiages — 23,466 and 23,122 at December 31, 2012
2011, respectivel
Additional paic-in-capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Retained earnings (accumulated defi
Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands, except pal
value)
$ 24,261 $ 23,56(

40,591 58,58¢
19,82 18,56!
26,19: 18,07(
2,12( 7,11¢
— 2,202
112,98 128,09:.
13,42¢ 14,44¢
27,311 32,67
— 18,38¢
5,86¢ 6,441
12,90¢ 25,77
$172,50: $225,82:
$ 4,47¢ $ 4,851
4,194 4,20t
8,48¢ 9,88i
2,19:¢ 5,04(
1,281 —
20,63¢ 23,98¢
9,23 9,927
23 23
151,99¢ 146,30°
76¢ 414
(10,157 45,16¢
142,63 191,91(
$172,50: $225,82:




INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenues
Systems and componel
Technology developmel
Total net revenue
Cost of net revenue
Systems and componel
Technology developmel
Total cost of net revenus
Gross profit
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Bad debt expens
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass
Total operating expens
Gain on sale of mainframe technolc
Operating income (los!
Interest incom
Other income (expense), r
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision (benefit) for income tax

Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per shal
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31

$

2012

2011

2010

(In thousands, except per share amount:

67,66¢

15,75¢

83,42¢

37,93

11,33¢

49,26¢
34,15¢

31,76:
25,70(
3,017

18,41¢

78,89¢

2,207

(42,53)
80€

(352)

(42,079
13,24(

$ (55,319

$
$

(2.37)
(2.37)

23,33¢
23,33¢

$ 75,85( $184,21°
7,12¢ 18,30¢
82,97« 202,52
47,60 101,97
4,94: 12,87¢
52,54: 114,85:
30,43 87,67
34,28 27,91¢
26,84« 28 51¢
41 —
61,17: 56,43
(30,74’ 31,23¢
847 89¢
(212) (126)
(30,106) 32,01
(8,13]) 3,967

$ (21,979 $ 28,04
$  (0.96) $  1.2¢
$  (0.96) $ 122
22,90: 22,34(
22,90: 22,97



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Net income (loss
Other comprehensive income, before

INTEVAC, INC.

Change in unrealized net loss on avail-for-sale investment

Foreign currency translation gai

Income tax expense related to items in other cohgmrgive incomi

Other comprehensive income, net of
Comprehensive income (los

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

$(55,319)  $(21,97)  $28,04¢
48€ 217 3,07z

13 18 86

49¢ 23t 3,15¢
(144) (76) (1,079
35E 15¢ 2,08:
$(54,969  $(21,816  $30,13:




INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

Accumulated Retained
Common Stock Additional Other Earnings Total
Paid-In Comprehensive (Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit) Equity

Balance at December 31, 2009 22,07¢ $ 22 $134,07: $ 1,82y $ 39,09: $ 171,35

Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior 224 1 1,74C — — 1,741
Employee stock purchase pl 25k — 1,025 — — 1,025

Net income tax detriment from activity in employ

stock plans — — 279) — — (279
Equity-based compensatic — — 3,26¢ — — 3,26t
Net income — — — — 28,04¢ 28,04¢
Other comprehensive incor — — — 2,08: — 2,08:
Balance at December 31, 20 22,55¢ $ 23 $139,82- $ 25t $ 67,14 $ 207,24:

Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior 33C — 1,53¢ — — 1,53¢
Employee stock purchase pl 234 — 1,38t — — 1,38¢

Net income tax detriment from activity in employ

stock plan: — — 477 — — (477
Equity-based compensatic — — 4,03( — — 4,03(
Net loss — — — — (21,97%) (21,97
Other comprehensive incor — — — 15¢ 15¢
Balance at December 31, 20 23,12: $ 23  $146,30 $ 414 $ 45,16¢ $ 191,91(

Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior 43 — 142 — — 142
Employee stock purchase pl 301 — 1,72¢ — — 1,72¢
Equity-based compensatic — — 3,82( — — 3,82(
Net loss — — — — (55,319 (55,319
Other comprehensive incor — — — 35E — 35E
Balance at December 31, 20 23,46t $ 23 $151,99¢ $ 76¢ $ (10,159 $ 142,63!

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcand cash equivalents provided by (us

in) operating activities

Depreciation & amortizatio

Net amortization (accretion) of investment premiwand discount
Net loss on sale of investmel

Gain on acquisitiol

Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass
Amortization of intangible asse

Bad debt expens

Equity-based compensatic

Deferred income taxe

Deferred income taxes valuation allowal

Excess tax benefits from eqi-based compensatic
Gain on sale of mainframe technolc

Change in the fair value of acquisit-related contingent considerati

Loss (gain) on disposal of equipmt
Changes in assets and liabiliti

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Accounts payabl

Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilit

Customer advanc
Total adjustment
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usegpi@jating activitie:
Investing activities
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investrr
Acquisition of SIT, net of cash acquir
Proceeds from sale of mainframe technol
Proceeds from sale of equipm
Purchase of equipme
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usadve}ting activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Payment of acquisitic-related contingent considerati
Payment of notes payable assumed upon SIT acqui
Excess tax benefits from eqi-based compensatic
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usefihamcing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Cash paid (received) fa

Income taxe:
Income tax refunt

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$(55,319 $ (21,979  $ 28,04
3,93¢ 4,88( 5,307
1,31€ 1,40¢ —
362 30¢ —
— — (481)
18,41¢ — —
54z 542 554
3,017 41 —
3,82( 4,03( 3,31¢
(10,099 (7,140) (2,142
23,43’ — —
— — (299
(2,207) — —
(219) 1,247 10¢
19C (78) 152
(3,531) 7,30¢ 18,84¢
(8,739 2,601 (1,555)
6,08¢ 87 (2,66%)
(37¢) (70E) 45¢
2,49; (9,00¢) 9,981
(2,847) 17¢ (8,319
35,60: 5,69¢ 23,26
(19,716 (16,279 51,31
(47,199 (111,940 (20,68%)
69,36( 47,03 68,05(
— — (2,63¢)
3,00( — —
— 24¢ —
(3,280) (5,587) (7,05%)
21,88 (70,232 37,67
1,86¢ 2,92¢ 2,76¢
(3,345) (2,389 —
— — (177)
— — 29¢
(1,476) 53¢ 2,89(
12 18 50
701 (85,96() 91,92¢
23,56( 109,52 17,59:
$2426° $ 2356(  $109,52
$ 24 $ 33 $ 1,82
$ (4609 $ (68 $ (48))



INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentati

The consolidated financial statements include to@ants of Intevac, Inc. and its subsidiaries (tateor the Company) after eliminati
of inter-company balances and transactions.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the amounts reported in the conatditifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differamiatly from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Intevac considers all highly liquid investmentshwitriginal maturities of three months or less wparchased to be cash equivalents.
Available-for-sale securities, comprised of commnednpaper, obligations of the U.S. government dadgencies, corporate debt securities,
municipal bonds, VRDNs and ARS, are carried at\falue, with unrealized gains and losses recordédmother comprehensive income
(loss) as a separate component of stockholder#fyedrealized gains and losses and declines inevidged to be other than temporary, if
any, on available-for-sale securities are incluideglarnings. The cost of investment securities sottbtermined by the specific identification
method.

Fair Value Measurement — Definition and Hierarchy

Intevac reports certain financial assets and ligdsl at fair value. Intevac defines fair valuetlaes price that would be received from
selling an asset or paid to transfer a liabilityamorderly transaction between market participantee measurement date.

Fair value measurements are classified and distiosene of the following three categories:
Level 1— Valuations based on quoted prices in active ntarke identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2— Valuations based on other than quoted pricestineamarkets for identical assets and liabilitiggoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in in@et markets, or other inputs that are observableaarbe corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of #ssets or liabilities.

Level 3— Valuations based on inputs that are generallypser/able and typically reflect management's egesaf assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing tesed or liability.

Business Combinations

Intevac accounts for business combinations usie@dguisition method of accounting. Transactioriscare expensed as incurred.
IPR&D costs are capitalized as an intangible agd@attingent consideration is recorded as a lighditthe measurement date with subsequent
re-measurements recorded as general and admimistexpense. Costs for business restructuring ain@etivities related to the acquired
company are included in the post-combination fim@mesults. During 2010, Intevac incurred $255,00@cquisition-related costs which
have been included in selling, general and adnnatise expenses on the consolidated statemenigesations.

Trade Accounts and Notes Receivables and Doubtfotdunts

Intevac evaluates the collectibility of trade aatisureceivables and notes receivable on an ondpziaig and provides reserves against
potential losses when appropriate. Management aesilyistorical bad debts, customer concentratmrstpmer creditworthiness, changes in
customer payment tendencies and current
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

economic trends when evaluating the adequacy dditberance for doubtful accounts. Customer accoargsnritten off against the allowar
when the amount is deemed uncollectible. Also, astdetermined to be uncollectible are put in won#al status whereby interest is not
accrued on those accounts.

Inventories
Inventories are generally stated at the lower ot oo market, with cost determined on an average lzasis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Equipment and leasehold improvements are stategsatDepreciation is computed using the straigig-#nethod over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows: computetssaftware, 3 years; machinery and equipment, ssy@arniture, 7 years; vehicles, 4 years;
and leasehold improvements, remaining lease term.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquired business isa#d¢as applicable, between IPR&D, other idefti§iantangible assets, net tangible
assets and goodwill. IPR&D is defined as the valssigned to those projects for which the relatedycts have no alternative future use.
Determining the portion of the purchase price a@ted to IPR&D and other intangible assets require<Company to make significant
estimates. The amount of the purchase price adddatIPR&D and other intangible assets is detegnhiny estimating the future cash flows
of each project or technology and discounting tbecash flows back to their present values. Theodist rate used is determined at the time
of the acquisition in accordance with acceptedatadm methods. For IPR&D, these valuation methogiel® include consideration of the risk
of the project not achieving commercial feasibilithe IPR&D will be subject to amortization upomumercialization. If the technology is
abandoned, the IPR&D will be written-off.

Contingent consideration is recorded at the actipristiate at the estimated fair value of the caygiit payments. The acquisition date
fair value is measured based on the considerakipacted to be transferred (probability-weighted§cdunted back to present value. The
discount rate used is determined at the time otugiisition in accordance with accepted valuati@mthods. The fair value of the contingent
consideration is remeasured at the estimated &tilevat each reporting period with the changeiimvielue recognized as income or expense
in the consolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregatshpae price over the fair value of net assetsudey IPR&D, of acquired business
Intevac’s methodology for allocating the purchaseeprelating to purchase acquisitions is deterahitheough established and generally
accepted valuation techniques. Goodwill is measasetthe excess of the cost of the acquisition thesum of the amounts assigned to
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acgliess liabilities assumed. Intevac assigns assefsired (including goodwill) and liabilities
assumed to a reporting unit as of the date of atopn.

Purchased intangible assets other than goodwita@rtized over their useful lives unless thesediare determined to be indefinite.
Purchased intangible assets are carried at cestatcumulated amortization. Amortization is coragudver the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets, generally one to thirteen yesing the straight line method.

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets with iimitef useful lives are not amortized, but are rexd for impairment annually during
the fourth quarter of each fiscal year and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicate hieatdrrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable. For goodwill, Intevac performs a twgpsmpairment test. In the first step, Intevac pames the fair value of each reporting unit
to its carrying value. Intevac’s reporting unite aonsistent with the reportable segments idedtifieNote 13, based on the
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

manner in which Intevac operates its business lamdature of those operations. Depending on the fax circumstances Intevac determines
the fair value of each of its reporting units bagpdn the most appropriate valuation techniqueguie income approach, the market
approach or a combination thereof. The income aarket approaches were selected as managementdselimse approaches generally
provide the most reliable indications of fair valubken the value of the operations is more depenatetite ability to generate earnings than
on the value of the assets used in the productiotegs. Under the income approach Intevac calautheefair value of the reporting units
based on the present value of estimated futureftash. Under the market approach Intevac estimiwe$air value based on market
multiples of revenue or earnings for comparable ganies. Each valuation technique has advantagedramdbacks, which must be
considered when applying those techniques. Thanecapproach closely correlates to management’'sceadpens of future results but
requires significant assumptions which can be ligkhsitive. The market approach is relativelyightiorward to measure, but it may be
difficult to find directly comparable companiesthre marketplace. If the fair value of the reportimgt exceeds the carrying value of the net
assets assigned to that unit, goodwill is not imgohand no further testing is performed. If theyag value of the net assets assigned to the
reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the rapgrtnit, then Intevac would perform the secong stethe impairment test in order to
determine the implied fair value of the reportingtis goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporgirunit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair
value, Intevac would record an impairment loss etputhe difference.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable finite=tl intangible assets to be held and used arewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the icey@mount of such assets may not be recoveralel@ridination of recoverability of long-
lived assets is based on an estimate of undiscodntere cash flows resulting from the use of thsed and its eventual disposition.
Measurement of an impairment loss for long-liveseds and certain identifiable intangible assetsrittanagement expects to hold and use is
based on the fair value of the asset. When an nmeait loss is recognized, the carrying amount efasset is reduced to its estimated fair
value. No impairment charges were recognized oafig012, 2011 and 2010.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognimedg enacted tax rates for the effect of tempodéfgrences between book and tax
bases of recorded assets and liabilities. Defdeedssets are reduced by a valuation allowaritéifmore likely than not that a portion of |
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

On a quatrterly basis, Intevac provides for incom@s$ based upon an annual effective income taxTh&eeffective tax rate is highly
dependent upon the level of Intevac’s projectediags, the geographic composition of worldwide @ags, tax regulations governing each
region, net operating loss carryforwards, availgbdf tax credits and the effectiveness of Intégdax planning strategies. Intevac carefully
monitors the changes in many factors and adjustfiéstive income tax rate on a timely basis. tatresults differ from the estimates, this
could have a material effect on Intevac’s businfisancial condition and results of operations.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves sigriéint judgment in estimating the impact of uncetiesnin the application of complex tax
laws. Resolution of these uncertainties in a maimeemsistent with Intevac’s expectations couldéhavmaterial effect on Intevac’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Intevac recognizes accrued interest and penaétleted to unrecognized tax benefits in the prowi$ay income taxes.

Sales and Value Added Taxes

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are presented on a net basieiaccompanying consolidated
statements of operations.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Revenue Recognition

Intevac recognizes revenue when persuasive eviddrarearrangement exists, delivery has occurreltile and risk of loss have
passed to Intevac’s customer or services have legeiered, the price is fixed or determinable, asibbctibility is reasonably assured.
Intevac’s shipping terms are customarily FOB shiggpoint or equivalent terms. Intevac’s revenu@gadion policy generally results in
revenue recognition at the following points: (1) &l transactions where legal title passes tactitomer upon shipment, Intevac recognizes
revenue upon shipment for all products that hawsltkemonstrated to meet product specifications pishipment; the portion of revenue
associated with certain installation-related tasldeferred, and that revenue is recognized upomptation of the installation-related tasks;
(2) for products that have not been demonstratedetet product specifications prior to shipmenterawe is recognized at customer
acceptance; and (3) for arrangements containingipfeielements, the revenue relating to the undedigt elements is deferred until deliver
the deferred elements. When a sales arrangemetaticomultiple elements, Intevac allocates revdowEach element based on a selling
hierarchy. The selling price for a deliverable @séd on its VSOE if available, TPE if VSOE is neditable, or best ESP if neither VSOE nor
TPE is available. Intevac generally utilizes théPEfie to the nature of its products. In certaiesatechnology upgrade sales are accounted
for as multiple-element arrangements, usually $gitveen delivery of the parts and installatiorttencustomer’s systems. In these cases,
Intevac recognizes revenue for the relative saliee pf the parts upon shipment and transfer I, tiind recognizes revenue for the relative
sales price of installation services when thoseices are completed. Revenue related to salesaoé ggarts is generally recognized upon
shipment. Revenue related to services is genaedlygnized upon completion of the services. Intamiti Intevac uses the installment metl
to record revenue based on cash receipts in sihsativhere the account receivable is collected amextended period of time and in
management’s judgment the degree of collectibidityncertain.

Intevac performs research and development workrwaléous government-sponsored research conti@eigenue on cost-plus-fee
contracts is recognized to the extent of costsadigtincurred plus a proportionate amount of the éarned. Intevac considers fixed fees under
cost-plus-fee contracts to be earned in propottiche allowable costs actually incurred in perfance of the contract. Revenue on fixed-
price contracts is recognized on a milestone metiguercentage-of-completion method of contracbanting. For contracts structured as
milestone agreements, revenue is recognized wispeafied milestone is achieved, provided thatlig)milestone event is substantive in
nature and there is substantial uncertainty alimuathievement of the milestone at the incepticdh@figreement, (2) the milestone payment
is non-refundable, and (3) there is no continuiaggrmance obligations associated with the milestoslyment. Any milestone payments
received prior to satisfying these revenue recamgmnitriteria are deferred. Intevac generally deteem the percentage completed based on the
percentage of costs incurred to date in relaticotal estimated costs expected through completighe contract. When estimates of total
costs to be incurred on a contract exceed estinhtesal revenue to be earned, a provision forethére loss on the contract is recorded in
period the loss is determined.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsiegiicosts were not material for all periods présdn

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of Intevac’s foreign sulisis in Singapore and Hong Kong and the Taiwamdin is the U.S. dollar. The
functional currency of Intevac’s foreign subsidégrin China, Malaysia and Korea is the local cluayesf the country in which the respective
subsidiary operates. Assets and liabilities reabiddoreign currencies are translated at yearewthange rates; revenues and expenses are
translated at average exchange rates during thie Mea effect of foreign currency translation adijusnts are included in stockholders’ equity
as a component of accumulated other comprehensieenie in the accompanying
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consolidated balance sheets. The effects of forgigrency transactions are included in other incomtee determination of net income. Net
losses from foreign currency transactions were ®I®,$32,000 and $520,000 in 2012, 2011 and 2@kpectively.
Comprehensive Income
The components of accumulated other comprehensigarie (loss), were as follows at December 31, 201t22011:

December 31

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Accumulated net unrealized holding gain (loss) wailable-for-sale investment $ 75 $(417)
Income tax benefi = 144
75 (267)
Foreign currency translation gai 694 681
Total accumulated other comprehensive inci $76¢ $414

Employee Stock Plans

Intevac has equity-based compensation plans thaide for the grant to employees of equity-basedrds; including incentive or non-
statutory stock options, restricted stock, stoghrapiation rights, restricted stock units (‘“RSUaareferred to as performance units) and
performance shares. In addition, these plans pedadthe grant of non-statutory stock options R&Us to non-employee directors and
consultants. Intevac also has an employee stoatpse plan, which provides Intevac’'s employees thighopportunity to purchase Intevac
common stock at a discount through payroll dedusti@ee Note 2 for a complete description of tipéeses and their accounting treatment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2012, the FASB amended its existing gui@sioc goodwill and other intangible assets. Thithatitative guidance gives
companies the option to first perform a qualitatgsessment to determine whether it is more litkelp not that an indefinite-lived intangible
asset is impaired. To perform a qualitative assesgma company must identify and evaluate changesanomic, industry and company-
specific events and circumstances that could affexsignificant inputs used to determine thevalue of an indefinite-lived intangible asset.
If a company determines that it is more likely thmet that the fair value of such an asset excded=mirying amount, it would not need to
calculate the fair value of the asset in that y&his authoritative guidance becomes effectivdritevac in the first quarter of fiscal 2013. T
implementation of this authoritative guidance i$ @xpected to have a material impact on Intevanaicial position or results of operations.

2. Equity-Based Compensation

Intevac accounts for share-based awards in accoedaith the provisions of the accounting guidantectv requires the measurement
and recognition of compensation expense for alleshased payment awards made to employees, cantsudiad directors based upon the
grant-date fair value of those awards. The estithtie value of Intevac’s equitpased awards, less expected forfeitures, is anedrtizer the
awards’ service periods using the graded vestimidpation method.
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Descriptions of Plans
Equity Incentive Plans

At December 31, 2012, Intevac had equity-based dsvantstanding under the 2012 Equity Incentive Riaen 2004 Equity Incentive
Plan and the 1995 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plrasd the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan @8PP"). Intevac’s stockholders
approved all of these plans.

The Plans are a broad-based, long-term retentimgram intended to attract and retain qualified myangent and employees, and align
stockholder and employee interests. The Plans p#mmgrant of incentive or non-statutory stocki@ps, restricted stock, stock appreciation
rights, RSUs and performance shares. Option pristjng period, and other terms are determined&ytiministrator of the Plans, but the
option price shall generally not be less than 1@¥%e fair market value per share on the dateafity As of December 31, 2012,

4.5 million shares of common stock were authorioeduture issuance under the Plans. The 2012 &tpires no later than May 8, 2022.

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2003, Intevac’s stockholders approved adoptioth® ESPP, which serves as the successor to tipbolfee Stock Purchase Plan
originally adopted in 1995. Upon adoption of thePPS all shares available for issuance under tloe pkan were transferred to the ESPP. The
ESPP provides that eligible employees may purchseac common stock through payroll deductions ptice equal to 85% of the lower of
the fair market value at the beginning of the aggille offering period or at the end of each applEe@urchase interval. Offering periods are
generally two years in length, and consist of &sesf sixmonth purchase intervals. Eligible employees maytjoe ESPP at the beginning
any six-month purchase interval. Under the termth@fESPP, employees can choose to have up to fi¥iobase earnings withheld to
purchase Intevac common stock. As of December @12,2301,000 shares remained available for issuander the ESPP.

The effect of recording equityased compensation for the years ended Decemb2032, 2011 and 2010 was as follows (in thousa

2012 2011 2010
Equity-based compensation by type of aw:
Stock options $2,30: $ 2,92¢ $ 2,96¢
RSUs 201 — —
Employee stock purchase pl 1,315 1,10¢ 351
Total equit-based compensatic 3,82( 4,03( 3,31¢
Tax effect on equi-based compensati (870 (1,030 1,06¢
Net effect on net income (los $2,95( $ 3,00( $ 2,24¢
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Stock Options

The exercise price of each stock option equalsihkket price of Intevac’s stock on the date of gritost options are scheduled to vest
over four years and expire no later than ten yaties the grant date. The fair value of each opgiant is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This modek developed for use in estimating the value bfiply traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferabléeVac’'s employee stock options have characterisiggsficantly different from those of
publicly traded options. The weighted average agsioms used in the model are outlined in the foitaytable:

2012 2011 2010
Stock Options
Weighe(-average fair value of grants per sh $ 3.82 $ 5.9¢ $ 6.6
Expected volatility 63.56% 64.82% 67.7"%
Risk free interest rai 0.7% 1.71% 1.6<%
Expected term of options (in yea 4.6( 4.7t 4.5
Dividend yield None None None

The computation of the expected volatility assumptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is based on historical
volatility of Intevac’s stock price. The risk-frémterest rate is based on the yield available @ Ureasury Strips with an equivalent
remaining term. The expected life of employee stmutons represents the weighted-average periddhbastock options are expected to
remain outstanding and was determined based arricetexperience of similar awards, giving consadien to the contractual terms of the
stock-based awards and vesting schedules. Thesdidigield assumption is based on Intevac’s hisbbryot paying dividends and the
assumption of not paying dividends in the future.

A summary of the stock option activity is as follaw

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted Average Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Term
Shares Exercise Price (years) Value
Options outstanding at
December 31, 201 3,391,92! $ 12.0: 5.5: $ 1,384,553
Options grante 404,00! $ 7.5¢4
Options forfeitec (624,98)) $ 12.2i
Options exercise (42,53)) $ 3.3¢
Options outstanding at
December 31, 201 3,128,40: $ 11.5Z 4.0¢ $ 181,01¢
Vested and expected to vest at
December 31, 201 3,023,79 $ 11.5¢ 4.0z $ 180,31:
Options exercisable at
December 31, 201 2,318,07! $ 12.2¢ 3.52 $ 146,49

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $194,aQ00, iillion and $1.3 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2012, Intevac ha@ #iillion of total unrecognized compensation exgemet of estimated forfeitures, related
to stock option plans that will be recognized oer weighted average period of 1.29 years.
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The options outstanding and currently exercisabl@e@ember 31, 2012 were in the following exergisee ranges:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average

Remaining
Number of Contractual Term Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
Shares Vested and
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding (In Years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$3.91-$9.99 997,88« 4.4% $ 6.5t 580,38t $ 6.0¢
$10.00- $19.99 1,904,52. 3.92 $ 12.8¢ 1,511,68. $ 13.1¢
$20.00- $29.45 226,00( 3.8¢ $ 22.1¢ 226,00( $ 22.1¢
$3.91- $29.45 3,128,40: 4.0¢ $ 11.5Z 2,318,071 $ 12.2¢
RSUs
A summary of the RSU activity is as follows:
Weighted
Average
Weighted Average Remaining
Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Grant Date Fair Term
Shares Value (years) Value
Non-vested RSUs at
December 31, 201 — $ — — $ —
Grantec 110,00: $ 7.3t
Vested — $ —
Cancellec (9,540 $ 7.58
Non-vested RSUs at
December 31, 201 100,46 $ 7.3t 1.8¢€ $ 459,10’
RSUs expected to vest at
December 31, 201 82,21¢ $ 7.3< 1.7¢ $ 375,74

RSUs are converted into shares of Intevac comnumk stpon vesting on a one-for-one basis. RSUs &jfpiare scheduled to vest over
four years. Vesting of RSUs is subject to the gratstcontinued service with Intevac. The compeasatkpense related to these awards is
determined using the fair market value of Intevammon stock on the date of the grant, and the casgi®n expense is recognized over the
vesting period. At December 31, 2012, Intevac hézP$00 of total unrecognized compensation exparetef estimated forfeitures, related
to RSUs that will be recognized over the weighteerage period of 2.04 years.

ESPP

The fair value of the employee stock purchase liglbstimated on the date of grant using the Baclkeles option pricing model with
the following weighted-average assumptions:

2012 2011 2010
Stock Purchase Right
Weighe(-average fair value of grants per sh $ 3.01 $ 4.84 $ 4.6:
Expected volatility 62.3% 51.6% 55.2(%
Risk free interest rat 0.28% 0.44% 0.41%
Expected term of purchase rights (in yei 1.6¢ 1.3€ 0.73
Dividend yield None None None

The expected life of purchase rights is the peabtime remaining in the current offering period.
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The ESPP activity during the years ended Decembe?(®L2, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per shar
amounts)
Shares purchast¢ 301 234 25k
Weighted average purchase price per s $5.7¢ $ 5.92 $ 4.0Z
Aggregate intrinsic value of purchase rights exsad $ 304 $1,361 $2,18(

As of December 31, 2012, Intevac had $957,000taf towrecognized compensation expense, net of asdrforfeitures related to
purchase rights that will be recognized over theghted average period of 0.7 years.
3. Earnings Per Share

Intevac calculates basic earnings per share (“EBSit)g net income (loss) and the weighted-averageber of shares outstanding
during the reporting period. Diluted EPS includes ¢ffect from potential issuance of common stagispant to the exercise of employee
stock options and vesting of RSUs.

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted income (loss) per share:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per shar
amounts)
Net income (loss $(55,319) $(21,975) $28,04¢
Weightec-average share— basic 23,33t 22,90z 22,34(
Effect of dilutive potential common shar — 637
Weightec-average share— diluted 23,33¢ 22,90 22,97
Net income (loss) per she— basic $ (2.30) $ (0.9¢) $ 1.2¢
Net income (loss) per she— diluted $ (2.39) $ (0.9¢) $ 1.22
Antidilutive shares based on employee awards exd 3,00¢ 2,69¢ 1,89¢

Potentially dilutive common shares consist of sh@suable upon exercise of employee stock optodsvesting of RSUs and are
excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS whesirteffect would be anti-dilutive.

4. Concentrations
Credit Risk and Significant Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject @mmpany to significant concentrations of credik Bensist of cash equivalents, short-
and long-term investments, and accounts and netesviable. Intevac generally invests its excesls tamoney market funds, commercial
paper, obligations of the U.S. government andgenaies, corporate debt securities, municipal bamdsVRDNs. The Company has adopted
an investment policy and established guidelinestireg to credit quality, diversification and matigs of its investments in order to preserve
principal and maintain liquidity. All investmentaeities in Intevac’s portfolio have an investmgrade credit rating.

Intevac’s accounts receivable tend to be concertriata limited number of customers. The followgstomers accounted for at least
10 percent of Intevac’s accounts receivable at Bes 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012 2011
U.S. Government 2% *
Seagate Technolog 24% 37%

* Less than 109
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Intevac’s largest customers tend to change froriog@eo period. Historically, a significant portiafi Intevacs revenues in any particu
period have been attributable to sales to a limitemhber of customers. Intevac performs credit extadas of its customers’ financial

condition and generally requires deposits on systatars but does not generally require collateraitber security to support customer
receivables.

The following customers accounted for at least é@ent of Intevac’s consolidated net revenues 220011, and/or 2010.

2012 2011 201C
Seagate Technology 51% 41% 40%
U.S. Governmer 10% * *
HGST * 12% 26%
Fuji Electric * * 12%

* Less than 109

Products
Disk manufacturing products contributed a signiiicportion of Intevac’s revenues in 2012, 2011, 28#0. Intevac expects that the
ability to maintain or expand its current levelsefenues in the future will depend upon continuimayket demand for its products; its
success in enhancing its existing systems and olgwgl and manufacturing competitive disk manufaotequipment, such as the 200 Lean;
Intevac’s success in developing both military anchmercial products based on its low-light techngjand its success in utilizing Intevac’s
expertise in complex manufacturing equipment toettgy and sell new equipment products for PV manufag.
5. Balance Sheet Details
Balance sheet details were as follows as of DeceB8the2012 and 2011:
Trade, Notes and Other Accounts receivable, Net
Receivables consisted of the following components:

December 31

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Trade receivables and otr $14,877 $16,05’
Unbilled costs and accrued prol 4,94¢ 99¢
Current portion of promissory note receiva — 1,54¢
Less: allowance for doubtful accoul — (41)

$19,82: $18,56:

Included in trade receivables at December 31, 291e current portion of a discounted promissaterfrom a customer. The non-
current portion of the note receivable of $3.0 imillwas included in other long-term assets.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The following table represents a reconciliatiorttaf allowance for doubtful accounts for the yeardesl December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010:

2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)
Opening balanc $ 41 $ 55 $13¢
Bad debt expens 3,017 41 —
Write-offs (3,059 (59 (78
Closing balanc: $ — $41 $ 55

Intevac held a promissory note from a customer kvinias secured by the equipment sold to this custameeprior year under a prodt
and sales agreement. The note was to be repaidrithiy installment payments ending in March 201Be Tevenue associated with this sale
had been accounted for under the installment methadcounting whereby revenue was recognized tonilye extent cash had been recei
During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the custsrbecame delinquent in its monthly installmentmagits and the note was put on non-
accrual status. On September 27, 2012, the custiaquétated its operating assets in an auction. 8dnapment which collateralized the
promissory note was sold in the liquidation auctiowl Intevac received the proceeds. On Septemb@028, the customer announced that it
was discontinuing its operations effective Octa®e?012 and Intevac concluded that none of theyiceyvalue of the promissory note
receivable was collectible and recorded a bad dedntge.

The following table summarizes the components eflthd debt expense for the year ended Decemb2032,(in thousands):

Promissory not $ 4,08t

Deferred profit on installment sa (1,029

Cash recovery from liquidation se (40

Bad debt expens $ 3,017
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of average @ostarket and consist of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Raw material $14,92: $12,66:

Work-in-progres: 5,52¢ 3,02(

Finished good 5,74¢ 2,38¢

$26,19: $18,07(

Finished goods inventory consists primarily of cdeted systems at customer sites that are undergustaylation and acceptance
testing and evaluation inventory.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Leasehold improvemen $15,25- $14,93¢
Machinery and equipme 37,37: 40,46¢
52,62’ 55,40¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 39,20: 40,95¢
Total property, plant and equipment, $13,42¢ $14,44¢

Customer Advances
Customer advances generally represent nonrefundablesits invoiced by the Company in connectiomwnéceiving customer purche
orders and other events preceding acceptance tefinisysCustomer advances related to products thetiat been shipped to customers and
included in accounts receivable were $1.6 millibDacember 31, 2012 and $1.9 million at DecembefB11.
Accounts Payable
Included in accounts payable is $505,000 and $DD400 book overdraft at December 31, 2012 and 268shectively.

Other Accrued Liabilities

December 31

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Deferred revenu $4,641 $1,66¢
Accrued product warrantie 2,25¢ 2,58¢
Other taxes payab 72¢ 714
Acquisitior-related contingent considerati 265 3,94
Accrued income taxe 207 18¢
Other 38¢ 797
Total other accrued liabilitie $8,48¢ $9,88i

Other Long-Term Liabilities

December 31

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Acquisitior-related contingent considerati $4,88¢ $4,77:
Accrued income taxe 4,25¢ 4,191
Deferred profit — 82C
Accrued product warrantie 90 13¢
Total other lon-term liabilities $9,23: $9,92:

6. Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets é&sted for impairment on an annual basis or maguiently upon the occurrence of
circumstances that indicate that goodwill and imdef life intangible assets may be impaired.
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Intevac performed its annual goodwill impairmerst i@ the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, and, bagedtep one of the impairment
analysis, Intevac determined that the fair valudsoth its Equipment and Intevac Photonics repgrtinits were less than their carrying value
and potential impairment existed. Intevac complétedsecond step of the goodwill impairment analgsid determined that there would be
no remaining implied value attributable to goodwilkeither reporting unit and accordingly, Intewvamte off all of the goodwill in both its
Equipment and Intevac Photonics reporting unitshénsecond half of 2012, the Company experiencgdraficant decline in its stock price
which resulted in the Company’s market capital@afialling significantly below the recorded valufeits consolidated net assets.

Intevac also performed its annual impairment testgts indefinite life intangible assets in the fibuquarter of fiscal 2012, and, basec
the impairment analysis, Intevac determined thatnkefinite life tradename was impaired and reedran immaterial impairment charge.
The IPR&D was not impaired.

Intevac conducted its annual impairment testsénftlurth quarter of fiscal 2011 and 2010 and tisalte of these tests indicated that
Intevac’s goodwill and purchased intangible asaets indefinite useful lives were not impaired.

Information regarding goodwill by reportable seginfen the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2044 fisllows:

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Intevac Intevac
Equipment Photonics Total Equipment Photonics Total
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 10,48 $ 7,90¢ $ 18,38¢ $ 10,48 $ 7,90¢ $18,38¢
Impairment charge (10,489 (7,905 (18,389 — — —
Ending balanc $ — $ — $ — $ 10,48 $ 7,90¢ $18,38¢
Information regarding other acquisition-relatecaimgible assets is as follows:
December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(in thousands)
Customer relationshif $3,181 $ 1,86¢ $1,312 $3,181 $ 1,472 $1,70¢
Purchased technolog 1,14¢ 67¢ 46€ 1,14¢ 53z 61z
Covenants not to compe 14C 14C — 14C 14C —
Backlog 19¢ 19¢ — 19¢ 19¢ —
Total amortizable intangible ass: 4,66~ 2,881 1,77¢ 4,66 2,34¢ 2,321
IPR&D 4,00( — 4,00C 4,00C — 4,00(
Tradenamt 0 — 0 12C — 12C
Total intangible asse $8,75¢ $ 2,88i $5,86¢ $8,78¢ $ 2,344 $6,44]

Intangible assets by segment as of December 32, &@las follows: Equipment; $5.1 million and I@ewhotonics; $731,000.

Total amortization expense of purchased intangitiethe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ahd &és $543,000, $543,000 &
$554,000 respectively.
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Estimated future amortization expense relatednitefilived purchased intangible assets as of Deeei®b, 2012, is as follows.

(In thousands)

2013 541
2014 363
2015 283
2016 281
2017 187
Thereaftel 122

$1,77¢

7. Business Combination

On November 19, 2010, Intevac acquired the outstgrghares of SIT, a privately-owned, developméares company, which was
focused on creating an ion implant module to bel isehe manufacturing of photovoltaic cells. Irdeis primary reasons for this acquisition
were to complement its existing product offeringd #o provide opportunities for future growth. Treliminary aggregate purchase price
$12.4 million, which consisted of an initial casiyment totaling $2.7 million and a contingent cdesation obligation with a fair value of
$9.7 million payable in cash. In connection witk #icquisition, Intevac acquired IPR&D, tangiblesssand goodwill and assumed tangible
liabilities. Intevac also recorded a net defergedliability to reflect the tax impact of the idéred intangible assets that will not generate tax
deductible amortization expense net of the futarebienefit of acquired net operating loss carryfods. The value attributable to IPR&D has
been capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangdsset. Goodwill is attributable to estimated syigargrising from the acquisition and other
intangible assets that do not qualify for separategnition. Goodwill is not deductible for tax poses.

Intevac accounted for the acquisition of SIT asisitiess combination. Under business combinatioauaitg, the assets and liabilities
of SIT were recorded as of the acquisition dat#heit respective fair values, and consolidatedh wie Company. The purchase price
allocation was based on estimates of the fair vafiessets acquired and liabilities assumed. Sulesgdo the acquisition, Intevac paid in full
the outstanding notes payable to certain of tHengeshareholders assumed upon the acquisition plinehase price was allocated as follows:

(in thousands)

Cash $ 38
Other current asse 2
Property, plant, and equipme 3
IPR&D 4,00(
Goodwill 10,48¢
Long-term deferred tax asse 697
Total assets acquire 15,22
Notes payable to selle 177
Current liabilities 52¢
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie 1,52¢
Total liabilities assume 2,22
Net assets acquire $12,99:
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In connection with the acquisition of SIT, Intevegreed to pay up to an aggregate of $7.0 milliocash to the selling shareholders if
certain milestones were achieved over a specifgebg. Intevac has made payments to the sellingehloéders for achievement of the first,
second and third milestones. The fourth and findédstone was not achieved on the targeted dataedtin the acquisition agreement and
will not be paid. There is no remaining contingeomsideration obligation associated with the milestagreement at December 31, 2012.

In connection with the acquisition of SIT, Intewaso agreed to pay to the selling shareholderash a revenue earnout on Intesaeé!
revenue from commercial sales of certain produets a specified period up to an aggregate of $9lllom Intevac estimated the fair value
of this contingent consideration on December 31228ased on probability-based forecasted reveraflesting Intevac’s own assumptions
concerning future revenue from such products. ABexfember 31, 2012, Intevac has not made any pagrassociated with the revenue
earnout obligation.

The fair value measurement of contingent considaras based on significant inputs not observablthe market and thus represents a
Level 3 measurement. The following table represt@sjuantitative range of the significant unobable inputs used in the calculation of -
value of the continent consideration liability dD@cember 31, 2012. Significant increases or dege in any of these inputs even in isolz
would result in a significantly lower (higher) faialue measurement.

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 20:

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(In thousands, except for percentage:
Revenue Earnout $ 5,15: Discounted cash flow Weighted average cost of Capitaj 14.8%
Probability weighting of
achieving revenue foreca: 2.0%— 43.0% (29.5%

Any change in fair value of the contingent consadien subsequent to the acquisition date is re@eghin operating income within the
statement of operations. The following table repnés a reconciliation of the change in the faiueaineasurement of the contingent
consideration liability for the years ended Decengfe 2012, 2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Beginning balanc $ 8,71t $ 9,857 $ —

Contingent consideration acquired during the pe — — 9,74¢

Changes in fair valu (219 1,245 10¢

Cash payments mau (3,345 (2,389 —

Ending balanc: $ 5,151 $8,71¢ $9,85i

Prior to the acquisition, Intevac had an equitgtiest in SIT with a cost basis of $94,000 that aaounted for under the cost method.
As a result of revaluing Intevac’s equity interesSIT on the acquisition date, the Company reczgphia gain of $481,000, which was
included in other income, net, in the consolidatedement of operations for the year ended DeceBihe2010.

Intevac’s consolidated financial statements incI8tEs operating results from the date of acquisitiNovember 19, 2010. The pro
forma impact of the above acquisition was not gigaint to Intevac’s results for the year ended Delzer 31, 2010.
8. Sale of Mainframe Technology

On January 6, 2012, the Company sold certain agggisling intellectual property and residual assehich comprised its
semiconductor mainframe technology to Brooks.
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The following table summarizes the components efgain (in thousands):

Cash proceec

Assets sold

Inventories

Property, plant and equipme
Transaction and other co:

Gain on sal¢

9. Financial Instruments

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investmenttoag-term investments consist of:

Cash and cash equivaler
Cash
Money market fund
Total cash and cash equivale
Shor-term investments
Commercial pape
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes
Municipal bonds
U.S. treasury and agency securii
VRDNs
Total shor-term investment
Long-term investments
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes
Municipal bonds
U.S. treasury and agency securii
Total lon¢-term investment

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investm
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$3,00(
58¢
17¢
26
$2,20i
December 31. 201,
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized
Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)

$ 5,93¢ $ — $ — $ 5,93¢
18,32: — — 18,32:
$24,26: $ — $ — $24,26:
$ 2,49t $ — $ — $ 2,49t
19,53¢ 13 4 19,54¢
1,20z 1 — 1,204
16,97¢ 23 — 16,99¢
34E — 34<
$40,55¢ $ 37 $ 4 $40,59:
$16,77¢ $ 33 $ 7 $16,80:
1,00( 2 — 1,00z
9,49¢ 14 — 9,51¢
$27,27" $ 49 $ 7 $27,31°
$92,09¢ $ 86 $ 11 $92,16¢
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December 31, 201

Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivaler

Cash $ 14,26¢ $ — $ — $ 14,26¢
Money market fund 4,84~ — — 4,84~
Commercial pape 4,44 — — 4,44
Total cash and cash equivale $ 23,56( $ — $ — $ 23,56(
Shor-term investments
Commercial pape $ 1,05C $ — $ — $ 1,05C
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes 26,66: 28 78 26,61¢
FDIC insured corporate bon 9,59¢ 23 — 9,61¢
Municipal bonds 4,89¢ 10 — 4,90¢
U.S. treasury and agency securii 13,981 56 — 14,04:
VRDNs 2,35( — — 2,35(
Total shor-term investment $ 58,54¢ $ 117 $ 78 $ 58,58¢
Long-term investments
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes $ 14,76: $ 16 $ 77 $ 14,70(
U.S. treasury and agency securi 13,46¢ 22 1 13,48:
ARS 4,90( — 41C 4,49(
Total lon¢-term investment $ 33,12} $ 38 $ 48t $ 32,67:
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investm $115,23: $ 15F $ 56€ $114,82.

The contractual maturities of available-for-saleuséies at December 31, 2012 are presented ifotloaving table.

Amortized
Fair
Cost Value
(In thousands)

Due in one year or le: $56,50¢ $56,54(
Due after one through two ye: 29,30¢ 29,34¢
Due after ten yeal 34k 34¢

$86,15¢ $86,23(

The following table provides the fair market vabfdntevac'’s investments with unrealized losse$ #na not deemed to be other-than
temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2012.

December 31, 201,

In Loss Position for In Loss Position for
Less than 12 Months Greater than 12 Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands)
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes $13,57¢ $ 11 $ — $ =

All prices for the fixed maturity securities incindg U.S. Treasury and agency securities, commepeipér, corporate bonds, VRDNs
and municipal bonds are received from independecing services utilized by Intevac’s outside intmeent manager. This investment
manager performs a review of the pricing methodetog
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and inputs utilized by the independent pricing & for each asset type priced by the vendorddiitian, on at least an annual basis, the
investment manager conducts due diligence vistlisigtierviews with each pricing vendor to verify tinputs utilized for each asset class. The
due diligence visits include a review of the praged performed by each vendor to ensure that grie#aluations are representative of the
price that would be received to sell a securitarinorderly transaction. Any pricing where the injgubased solely on a broker price is deemed
to be a Level 3 price. Intevac uses the pricing ddtained from its outside investment managenagtimary input to make its assessments
and determinations as to the ultimate valuatiothefabove-mentioned securities and has not madegdie periods presented, any material
adjustments to such inputs.

The following table represents the fair value hielg of Intevac’s available-fosale securities measured at fair value on a requbasi:
as of December 31, 2012.
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 201

Total Level 1 Level 2
(in thousands)

Recurring fair value measuremer
Available-for-sale securitie

Money market fund $ 18,32: $ 18,32 $ —
U.S. treasury and agency securi 26,51z 9,70z 16,81(
Commercial pape 2,49t — 2,49t
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes 36,35( — 36,35(
Municipal bonds 2,20¢ — 2,20¢
VRDNs 34E — 34E
Total recurring fair value measureme $ 86,23( $ 28,02 $ 58,20¢

The following table presents the changes in LeviesBuments which consisted of ARS which weresifeedd as available-for-sale
securities and which were measured on a recur@asgslfor the years ended December 31, 2012, 204 2@t0.

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Opening balanc $ 4,49( $10,27: $ 66,24¢
Total gains (losses) for the peri

Included in earning (381) (30¢) —

Included in other comprehensive inco 41( 217 3,07¢
Proceeds from sal¢ (1,749 — —
Proceeds from tender offe (2,777) (5,192 —
Redemptions at p: — (500 (59,050
Closing balanc $ — $ 4,49( $10,27:

Derivatives

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracisitigate variability in gains and losses geteatdrom the re-measurement of
certain monetary assets and liabilities denominatdédreign currencies. These hedges do not quadifgpecial hedge accounting treatment.
These derivatives are carried at fair value witanges recorded in interest income and other, néeiconsolidated statements of operations.
Changes in the fair value of these derivativedangely offset by re-measurement of the underlyrgets and liabilities. Cash flows from
such derivatives are classified as operating digts/iThe derivatives have maturities of approxehyabne month. The notional amount of
Company'’s foreign currency derivatives was $491,@0December 31, 2012. There were no outstandimigfo currency derivatives at
December 31, 2011.
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10. Income Taxes

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes ondme (loss) from continuing operations consistheffollowing (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Federal:
Current $ 3 $ (899 $ 5,241
Deferred 17,16( (3,639 (1,706
17,16% (4,537) 3,53¢
State:
Current (13 8 8
Deferred — — —
(13 8 8
Foreign:
Current (150 141 41¢
Deferred (3,760 (3,749 —
(3,910 (3,607 41¢
Total $13,24( $(8,13)) $ 3,96
Income (loss) before income taxes (benefit) coedisf the following (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
u.s $(32,12¢) $(15,07¢) $ 384
Foreign (9,959 (15,029 31,62%
$(42,079) $(30,100) $32,01:
Effective tax rate (31.5% 27.(% 12.2%

The tax benefits associated with exercises of nailifipd stock options and disqualifying dispositsoof stock acquired through
incentive stock options and the employee stocklage plan increased income taxes receivable by, @29® 2010. Such benefits were

credited to additional paid-in capital.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettermporary differences between the carrying anmohassets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts foorime tax purposes. Significant components of dedfieiax assets are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Vacation, warranty and other accru $ 1,48¢ $ 1,50¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,391 503
Intangible amortizatiol 4,95¢ 1,92
Inventory valuatior 1,547 1,16:
Deferred incomt 1,132 52¢
Equity-based compensatic 7,44( 6,65t
Net operating loss, research and other tax cradiyforwards 35,69: 27,097
Impairment losses on availa-for-sale securitie 144
Other 127 (281
53,77¢ 39,24
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (38,999 (13,169
Total deferred tax asse 14,775 26,08(
Deferred tax liabilities
Purchased technolog (1,659 (1,529
Unbilled revenu (1,925 (319
Other (309 (319
Total deferred tax liabilitie (3,887) (2,167
Net deferred tax asse $ 10,89t $ 23,91¢
As reported on the balance she¢
Current deferred tax asst $ — $ 2,202
Non-current deferred tax asst 12,17¢ 21,717
Current deferred tax liabilit (1,287 —
$ 10,89t $ 23,21¢

Intevac accounts for income taxes in accordande agtounting standards for such taxes, which regulrat deferred tax assets and
liabilities be recognized using enacted tax ratedte effect of temporary differences betweerfithencial reporting and tax bases of recol
assets and liabilities. Accounting standards asire that deferred tax assets be reduced byuati@h allowance if it is more likely than not
that some portion of or all of the deferred taxeassll not be realized.

Management assesses the available positive antiveegaidence to estimate if sufficient future thlaincome will be generated to use
the existing deferred tax assets. A significantnglet of objective negative evidence evaluated Wagtimulative loss incurred over the three-
year period ended December 31, 2012. Such objeetince limits the ability to consider other sdijve evidence such as Inte’s
projections for future growth. On the basis of thmalysis and the significant negative objectivielence, for the year ended
December 31, 2012, a valuation allowance of $23ldomhas been added to record only the portiothefU.S. federal deferred tax asset that
more likely than not will be realized. The amouhtte deferred tax asset considered realizablegkiewy could be adjusted if estimates of
future taxable income during the carryforward pe@oe reduced or increased, or if objective negagitidence in the form of cumulative
losses is no longer present and additional weighyt be given to subjective evidence such as oueptions for growth.

A valuation allowance is recorded against the ergiate deferred tax asset which consists of stedene tax temporary differences and
deferred research and other tax credits that areenbtizable in the foreseeable future. State rebezaredit carry-forwards of $9.9 million do
not expire.
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The difference between the tax provision (benefithe statutory federal income tax rate and tkgtavision (benefit) was as follows
(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate $(14,729 $(10,53Y) $ 11,20
State income taxes, net of federal ber (15) 5 5
Valuation allowanct 23,33( 10€ —
Effect of foreign operations taxes at various r: (42¢) 1,65:% (10,65()
Nondeductible goodwill impairmel 3,67( — —
Research tax credi — (1,200 (500
Effect of tax rate changes, permanent differences a

adjustments of prior deferre 367 852 187
Unrecognized tax benefi 1,044 98¢ 3,71¢

Total $ 13,24( $ (8,13)) $ 3,967

Intevac has not provided for U.S. federal income fameign withholding taxes on approximately $2@flion of undistributed earnings
from non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 20t2lme Intevac intends to reinvest such earningimtély outside of the United States.
If Intevac were to distribute these earnings, fgmaix credits may become available under cureamttd reduce the resulting U.S. income tax
liability. Determination of the amount of unrecopmil deferred tax liability related to these earsiisgnot practicable. Intevac will remit the
non-indefinitely reinvested earnings, if any, ofeivac’s non-U.S. subsidiaries where excess cashdtasnulated and Intevac determines that
it is advantageous for business operations, taash reasons.

Intevac enjoys a tax holiday in Singapore for aiparof its business through the tax years endin20i15. The tax holiday provides a
lower income tax rate on certain classes of incantethe agreement requires that certain threslodldssiness investment and employment
levels be met in Singapore in order to maintais tialiday. As a result of this incentive, the imipaicthe tax holiday decreased income taxes
by $1.6 million, $1.2 million and $5.1 million ir022, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The benefit eftéx holiday on net income (loss) per
share (diluted) was approximately $0.07, $0.05,%Mm@&2 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Included in prepaid expenses and other currentsaas®ecember 31, 2012 and 2011 is $912,000 ardngiflion, respectively, of
federal income taxes receivable which representawats available as a result of carryback of losaesf December 31, 2012, the Company
had federal NOL carryforwards available to offagufe taxable income of approximately $15.1 millthat expire between 2028 and 2032.
As of December 31, 2012, the Company had state bidtyforwards available to offset future state td®ancome of approximately
$53.2 million that expire between 2015 and 2032ddition, the Company had various federal ane $ta¢ credit carryforwards combined of
approximately $18.4 million. Approximately $8.1 figh of the credit carryforwards are available ftset future tax liabilities and expire
between 2019 and 2031. The remaining amount isadkaiindefinitely. Certain of these carryforwardden realized, will be credited to
additional paid-in capital.
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None of the gross unrecognized tax benefits asegkehber 31, 2012, would affect Intevac’s effectaserate if realized. The aggregate
changes in the balance of gross unrecognized tafitewere as follows for the years ended DecerBhe2012, 2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Beginning balanc $5,027 $4,49¢ $ 782
Additions based on tax positions related to theaniryeal 97¢ 92¢ 3,712
Additions for tax positions of prior yea — — —
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye:i — — —
Settlement: — (400 =
Lapse of statute of limitatior — — _
Ending balanci $6,00( $5,022 $4,49¢

The Company does not anticipate any changes iartfeaint of unrecognized tax benefits in the nextwevenonths. It is Intevas’policy
to include interest and penalties related to urgeized tax benefits in the provision for incomeaswon the consolidated statements of
operations. During fiscal 2012 and 2011, Intevaogaized a net tax expense for interest of $65z0@D$61,000, respectively. As of
December 31, 2012 Intevac had $130,000 of accntedeist related to unrecognized tax benefits, whiakh classified as a long-term liability
in the consolidated balance sheets. Intevac didooue any penalties related to these unrecogtazeienefits because Intevac has other tax
attributes which would offset any potential taxes.d

Intevac is subject to income taxes in the U.S. f@ldarisdiction, and various state and foreignigdictions. Tax regulations within each
jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation lof telated tax laws and regulations and requingfgignt judgment to apply. With fe'
exceptions, Intevac is not subject to U.S. fedettake and local, or international jurisdictionsdme tax examinations by tax authorities for
the years before 2007. Tax years 1999 through 28®8ubject to income tax examinations by U.S.reddend California tax authorities to 1
extent of tax credit carry forwards remaining dlized in an otherwise open year. Tax years 2008utph 2012 generally remain open for
examinations by the tax authorities. During fis2@11, the California income tax examination focéisyears ended 2005, 2006 and 2007 was
completed. During 2012, the Internal Revenue Sergampleted its review of the Company’s fiscal y2@09 tax return which arose from an
income tax refund generated by a carry-back cléiddlitionally, the Singapore Inland Revenue Authoiét conducting an examination of the
fiscal 2009 and 2010 tax returns of the Companyislly-owned subsidiary, Intevac Asia Pte. Ltd. eraly, there are no other active income
tax examinations in the jurisdictions where Intevaerates.

11. Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Savings and Retirement Plan

In 1991, Intevac established a defined contributeimement plan with 401(k) plan features. Thengtavers all United States employ
eighteen years and older. Employees may make batitins by a percentage reduction in their salariesto exceed the statutorily prescri
annual limit. Intevac made cash contributions @500, $540,000 and $438,000 for the years enéegmber 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. Employees may choose among severastiment options for their contributions and ttskiare of Intevac’s contributions, and
they are able to move funds between investmenbaptt any time. Intevac’s common stock is notafitbe investment options.
Administrative expenses relating to the plan asggimficant.

Employee Bonus Plans

Intevac has various employee bonus plans. A psbfiiring plan provides for the distribution of agesrtage of pre-tax profits to
substantially all of Intevac’s employees not eligifor other performance-based incentive plangpupmaximum percentage of
compensation. Other plans award annual or quaremyses to
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Intevac’s executives and key contributors basetherachievement of profitability and other specgiferformance criteria. Charges to expense
under these plans were $210,000, $720,000 andndilién, respectively for the years ended DecenBier2012, 2011 and 2010.
12. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

Intevac leases certain facilities under non-carfdelaperating leases that expire at various tinpetoiMarch 2017 and has options to
renew most leases, with rentals to be negotiateda of Intevac’s leases contain provisions értal adjustments. Included in other long-
term assets on the consolidated balance shedigd%0R0 of prepaid rent related to the effectivd on Intevac’s long-term lease for Intevac’
Santa Clara facility. The facility leases requingelac to pay for all normal maintenance costss&rental expense was approximately
$3.0 million, $2.9 million and $3.3 million for theears ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 20&at@sely.

Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2fH as follows.

(In thousands)

2013 $2,19¢
2014 1,82
2015 1,81¢
2016 1,72¢
2017 401
$7,96(

Guarantees

Officer and Director Indemnifications

As permitted or required under Delaware law antthéomaximum extent allowable under that law, Intelvas certain obligations to
indemnify its current and former officers and diogs for certain events or occurrences while tHigef or director is, or was serving, at
Intevac’s request in such capacity. These inderatifin obligations are valid as long as the dineotmfficer acted in good faith and in a
manner the person reasonably believed to be imtoopposed to the best interests of the Companyveitid respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believa hisr conduct was unlawful. The maximum potergtrabunt of future payments Intevac
could be required to make under these indemnitioatbligations is unlimited; however, Intevac hatiractor and officer insurance policy
that mitigates Intevac’s exposure and enables &atéw recover a portion of any future amounts pagla result of Intevac’s insurance policy
coverage, Intevac believes the estimated fair vafubese indemnification obligations is not maderi

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in Intevac’s industry, many of irge’s contracts provide remedies to certain third parsuch as defense, settlemen
payment of judgment for intellectual property clainelated to the use of its products. Such inddoatibn obligations may not be subject to
maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments matited to these indemnifications have been imnadteri

Warranty

Intevac provides for the estimated cost of warravitgn revenue is recognized. Intevac’s warranpeiscontract terms and for its disk
manufacturing systems the warranty typically rarggtsveen 12 and 24 months from customer accept&ocsystems sold through a
distributor, Intevac offers a 3 month warranty. Tamainder of any warranty period is the respotigitof the distributor. During this
warranty period any
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defective non-consumable parts are replaced atallad at no charge to the customer. The warraatiod on consumable parts is limited to
their reasonable usable lives. Intevac uses egdrrapair or replacement costs along with its hisabwarranty experience to determine its
warranty obligation. Intevac generally providesvalve month warranty on its Intevac Photonics’ uatd. The provision for the estimated
future costs of warranty is based upon historicat @and product performance experience. Intevaceses judgment in determining the
underlying estimates.

On the consolidated balance sheets, the shortgertion of the warranty provision is included imet accrued liabilities, while the
long-term portion is included in other long-terraHilities. The expense associated with productawdies issued or adjusted is included in
cost of net revenues on the consolidated stateroéofserations.

The following table displays the activity in the manty provision account for 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $2,72¢ $ 3,41¢
Expenditures incurred under warrani (1,567 (2,169
Accruals for product warrantie 1,28¢ 1,54:
Adjustments to previously existing warranty accst (96) (65)
Ending balanci $ 2,34¢ $ 2,72¢

Legal Matters

From time to time, Intevac receives notificatioarfr third parties, including customers and supplisegking indemnification, litigation
support, payment of money or other actions in cotioe with claims made against them. In additioonf time to time, Intevac receives
notification from third parties claiming that Inw may be or is infringing their intellectual profyeor other rights. Intevac also is subject to
various other legal proceedings and claims, batkréed and unasserted, that arise in the ordimamse of business. Although the outcom
these claims and proceedings cannot be predictidceitainty, Intevac does not believe that anghege other existing proceedings or claims
will have a material adverse effect on its consakd financial condition or results of operations.

13. Segment and Geographic Information

Intevac’s two reportable segments are: Equipmedtiatevac Photonics. Intevac’s chief operating sieci-maker has been identified as
the Chairman and CEO, who reviews operating resultsake decisions about allocating resources asésaing performance for the entire
Company. Segment information is presented based iqtevac’s management organization structure @eckmber 31, 2012 and the
distinctive nature of each segment. Future chat@#ss internal financial structure may resulthmnges to the reportable segments
disclosed.

Each reportable segment is separately managedaanskparate financial results that are revieweddteyac’s chief operating decision-
maker. Each reportable segment contains closayectproducts that are unique to the particulamssg. Segment operating profit is
determined based upon internal performance meagseekby the chief operating decision-maker.

Intevac derives the segment results from its imtienmanagement reporting system. The accountingipslintevac uses to derive
reportable segment results are substantially thee ses those used for external reporting purposasalyement measures the performance of
each reportable segment based upon several métdtgding orders, net revenues and operating ircdvianagement uses these results to
evaluate the performance of, and to assign resstiogeach of the reportable segments. Intevac gesnzertain operating expenses separ
at the corporate level. Intevac allocates certath@se corporate expenses to the segments in an
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amount equal to 3% of net revenues. Segment opgrisitome excludes interest income/expense and fattaacial charges and income ta
according to how a particular reportable segmantsagement is measured. Management does not coimsflrment charges, gains and
losses on divestitures and sales of intellectughgnty, and unallocated costs in measuring theopmence of the reportable segments.

The Equipment segment designs, develops and marketsim process equipment solutions for high-voloma@ufacturing of small
substrates with precise thin film properties forchdrive and solar cell manufacturers. Historicathe majority of Intevac’s revenue has been
derived from the Equipment segment and Intevac @spbat the majority of its revenues for the reeiteral years will continue to be derived
from the Equipment segment.

The Intevac Photonics segment develops compadtetfestive, high-sensitivity digital-optical prodts for the capture and display of
low-light images and the optical analysis of materiaievac provides sensors, cameras and systemge¥ernment applications such as n
vision and long-range target identification anddommercial applications in the inspection, lanoeoément, scientific and medical
industries.

Net Revenues

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Equipment $52,53¢ $54,87¢ $168,25:
Intevac Photonic 30,88¢ 28,09¢ 34,27«

Total segment net revenu $83,42- $82,97- $202,52¢

Operating Profit (Loss)

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Equipment $(19,939) $(20,32)) $40,28¢
Intevac Photonic (20€) (4,147 (4,909
Total segment operating profit (los (20,140 (24,467) 35,38t
Unallocated cost (6,187 (6,279 (4,147
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass (18,419 — —
Gain on sale of mainframe technolc 2,201 — —
Operating income (lost (42,537 (30,749 31,23¢
Interest incomt 80¢€ 847 89¢
Other income and expense, (352) (212) (126)
Income (loss) before income tay $(42,079 $(30,10¢) $32,01:

Depreciation and amortization

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Equipment $2,00: $2,901 $3,12¢
Intevac Photonic 1,80¢ 1,36¢ 1,35¢
Total segment depreciation and amortiza 3,80¢ 4,27( 4,48:
Unallocated cost 67C 1,15: 1,37¢

Total consolidated depreciation and amortiza $4,47¢ $5,42: $5,861
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Capital Additions

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Equipment $1,26( $2,717 $1,54(
Intevac Photonic 1,53¢ 2,14¢ 5,167
Total segment capital additio 2,79¢ 4,86¢ 6,707
Unallocatec 48t 717 34¢

Total consolidated capital additio $3,28( $5,58: $7,05¢

Segment Assets

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Equipment $ 37,37¢ $ 48,13:
Intevac Photonic 27,05: 29,947
Total segment asse 64,42¢ 78,08(
Cash and investmen 92,16¢ 114,82:
Deferred income taxe 12,17¢ 23,91¢
Other current asse 1,87( 6,84¢
Common property, plant and equipm 1,211 1,36¢€
Other asset 64¢ 78€
Consolidated total asse $172,50: $225,82:

Geographic revenue information for the three yeaed December 31, 2012 is based on the locatitreafustomer. Revenue from
unaffiliated customers by geographic region/countag as follows:

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

United State: $30,84! $28,90" $ 47,55¢

Asia (*) 47,71 47,32t 149,45¢

Europe 3,79¢ 6,12¢ 5,00(

Rest of world 1,072 614 51€

Total net revenue $83,42¢ $82,97: $202,52¢

(*) Revenues are attributable to the geographia arevhich Intevac’s customers are located. Netetn@venues in Asia include shipments
to Singapore, China, Japan and Malay

Net property, plant and equipment by geographi@regt December 31 was as follows:

2012 2011
(in thousands)

United State: $12,96: $14,00"

Asia 464 447

Net property, plant & equipme $13,42¢ $14,44¢

14. Subsequent Event

On February 1, 2013, the Company announced a liedtictforce to reduce costs that is expected tecaipproximately 13 percent of
its global workforce. The Company expects the rédoean-force to reduce costs by approximately $#iion to $5.0 million on an annual
basis. The Company expects to incur time cash charges of approximately $500,000 inrsene pay expenses and related cash expen
connection with the workforce reduction.
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15. Selected Quarterly Consolidated Financial Da (Unaudited)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
June 30, Sept. 29, Dec. 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012
(in thousands, except per share datz
Net sales $17,31¢ $31,79: $16,83¢ $ 17,48t
Gross profit 6,82¢ 14,25¢ 5,732 7,34(
Net loss (3,16)) (1,499 (8,007%) (42,659
Basic and diluted loss per sh: $ (0.19) $ (0.06) $ (0.39 $ (1.89
Three Months Ended
April 2, July 2, Oct. 1, Dec. 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011
(in thousands, except per share datz
Net sales $17,42: $27,58¢ $19,32: $18,64*
Gross profit 6,38( 10,13} 7,51¢ 6,39¢
Net loss (7,03)) (2,619 (6,116 (6,209
Basic and diluted loss per shi $ (0.3)) $ (0.1 $ (0.29) $ (0.29)
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Iltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Management’'s Report on Assessment of Internal Contils Over Financial Reporting
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on Intevac’s management’s evaluation (wighpidrticipation of Intevac’s chief executive offi@nd chief financial officer), as of
the end of the period covered by this report, latév chief executive officer and chief financiafioér have concluded that Intevac’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as definediiesRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitiehdhge Act of 1934, as amended, (the
“Exchange Act")) are effective to ensure that imi@tion required to be disclosed by Intevac in reptirat Intevac files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegatted within the time periods specified in Séms and Exchange Commission ru
and forms and is accumulated and communicated¢vdn’s management, including Intevac’s chief ekigewfficer and chief financial
officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisioegarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finara Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaing for Intevac. Internal conti
over financial reporting is a process designeprtwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabflfinancial reporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toetance with generally accepted accounting priasignternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras {f) pertain to the maintenance of records ithatasonable detail accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tleetmsof the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assearthat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stateisiin accordance with generally accepted acomyiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management aedtdirs of the Company; and
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prievemr timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlanéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

Management (with the participation of the chiefaxeve officer and chief financial officer) condedtan evaluation of the effectiven:
of Intevac’s internal control over financial repog based on the framework limternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®@ommission. Based on this evaluation, manageoweriuded that Intevag'interna
control over financial reporting was effective december 31, 2012. Grant Thornton LLP, an inddpenregistered public accounting fil
has audited the effectiveness of Intevac’s intecoatrol over financial reporting and has issuedport on Intevac’s internal control over
financial reporting, which is included in their @pon the following page.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

There was no change in our internal control ovweairfcial reporting during our fourth quarter of 2012 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Int&vs internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited the internal control over finanglorting of Intevac, Inc. (a Delaware corpora}iand subsidiaries’ (the “Company”)
as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria estedli)internal Control — Integrated Framwork issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSOfe Company’s management is responsible for mainigieffective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmerhefeffectiveness of internal control over finahogporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Assessment of Internal GEn®ver Financial Reporting. Our responsibilitfdsexpress an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet andbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizh statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries rtaiimed, in all material respects, effective intéauntrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishedeémal Control — Integrated Framewoiésued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asad#rileer 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consatiddiatements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ eqaityl cash flows for each of the three years in gregd ended December 31, 2012. Our
report dated February 22, 2013 expressed an ufigdadipinion on those consolidated financial staats.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
February 22, 2013
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ltem 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverrae

The information required by this item relating b@ tCompany’s directors and nominees, disclosuatimgl to compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@®d information regarding Intevac’s code of ehaudit committee and stockholder
recommendations for director nominees is includedien the captions “Election of Directors,” “Nomirsge“Business Experience of
Nominees for Election as Directc” “Board Meetings and Committees,” “Corporate Gaarce Matters,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Code of Bustn€onduct and Ethics” in the Company’s Proxy $tate for the 2013 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated hebgimeference. The information required by this itetating to the Company’s executive
officers and key employees is included under thtica “Executive Officers of the Registranthider Item 1 in Part | of this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is includeter the caption “Executive Compensation and Relattormation” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Megetif Stockholders and is incorporated herein ligremce.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Securities authorized for issuance under equitypmmeation plansThe following table summarizes the number of oulditag options
granted to employees and directors, as well aauher of securities remaining available for futigsiance, under Intevac’s equity
compensation plans at December 31, 2012.

@ (b) ©

Number of securities Number of securities
to be issued upon Weighted-average remaining available
exercise of exercise price of for future issuance
outstanding options outstanding options under equity
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights compensation plans

(@)
Equity compensation plans approved
security holders(2 3,228,86! $ 11.52 1,508,16.
Equity compensation plans not appro
by security holder — — —

Total 3,228,86! $ 11.52 1,508,16:

(1) Excludes securities reflected in column
(2) Included in the column (c) amount are 301,417 shavailable for future issuance under Int¢s 2003 Employee Stock Purchase P

The other information required by this item is iméd under the caption “Ownership of Securitiesthim Company’s Proxy Statement
for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders anshéorporated herein by reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aRatector Independence

The information required by this item is includetter the captions “Certain Transactions” and “Coap@ Governance Matters” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Megtif Stockholders and is incorporated herein ligremce.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is includeter the caption “Fees Paid To Accountants ForiSes\Rendered During 2012” in
the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annuegtihg of Stockholders and is incorporated hergireference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements
(&) The following documents are filed as parthi§ Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Financial Statements:
See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statement$?an I, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

All other schedules have been omitted since theired information is not present in amounts sudfitito require submission of the
schedule or because the information required isidted in the consolidated financial statementsatesithereto.

2. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(2) Certificate of Incorporation of the Registr:
3.2(2) Bylaws of the Registrant, as amen

10.1+(3) The Registrars 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as ame

10.2+(4) The Registrars 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, as amen

10.3+(5) The Registrar s 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as ame

10.4+(5) The Registrars 2012 Equity Incentive Ple

10.5+(5) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for 2012i1iBgIncentive Plar

10.6+(5) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for 2012 Eqlrigentive Plar

10.7+(5) Form of Stock Option Agreement for 2012 Equity Imibee Plan

10.8(6) Lease, dated February 5, 2001 regarding the spaated at 3510, 3544, 3560, 3570 and 3580 BadsetitSSanta Clara,
California, including the First through Seventh Ardenents

10.9+(3) The Registrars 401(k) Profit Sharing Ple

10.10(7) Director and Officer Indemnification Agreeme
10.11+(8) The Registrar s Executive Incentive Ple
10.12+ Separation Agreement and Release of Kevin Fairltiited November 30, 20:
10.13+(9) Form of Severance Agreement (CF
10.14+(9) Form of Severance Agreement (-CFO)
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registre
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page i
31.1 Certification of Chairman of the Board and ChieEwutive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the 8ads-Oxley Act of
2002
31.2 Certification of Vice-President, Finance and Adretration, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer andi®tary Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certifications Pursuant to U.S.C. 1350, adoptedfamt to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutrie
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101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhé&r
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenii

(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed July 23, 200’

(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed November 19, 200

(3) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrat&tatement on Form-1 (No. 3:-97806)

(4) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed May 3, 2011

(5) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed May 1, 201z

(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1K filed February 25, 201

(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1+-K filed March 14, 200¢

(8) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1+-K filed March 4, 200¢

(9) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed December 26, 201

+ Management compensatory plan or arrangement rebigriee filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 1%fbfform 1(-K

*  Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, thederactive data files are deemed not filed or ph& egistration statement or prospectus
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securfigtsof 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exg®wAct of 1934 and otherwise are not
subject to liability under those sectiol
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedmy authorized, on February 22, 2013.

INTEVAC, INC.

/s/ JEFFREY ANDRESOI

Jeffrey Andresol

Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratio
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre!

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes anairgppgNorman
Pond and Jeffrey Andreson and each of them, asugisand lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, Wiithpower of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place steéd, in any and all capacities, to sign any dreth@ndments (including post-effective
amendments) to this Report on Form 10-K, and &otfie same, with all exhibits thereto, and oth@&udtents in connection therewith, with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting seid attorneys-in-fact and agents, and eachesnf full power and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisitereneéssary to be done in connection therewith, lastéuall intents and purposes as he m
or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirgnall that said attorneys-in-fact and agentsgror of them, or their or his substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ NORMAN H. POND Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer February 22, 2013
(Norman H. Pond (Principal Executive Officer)
/s JEFFREY ANDRESON Executive Vice President, Finance and February 22 2013
(Jeffrey Andreson) Administration, Chief Financial Officer Treasurer
and Secretary (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
/s/ DAVID S. DURY Director February 22, 2013
(David S. Dury)
/sl  STANLEY J. HILL Director February 22, 2013
(Stanley J. Hill)
/sl THOMAS M. ROHRS Director February 22 2013
(Thomas M. Rohrs
/s/  JOHN F. SCHAEFER Director February 22, 2013
(John F. Schaefe
/sl  PING YANG Director February 22, 2013
(Ping Yang)
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Exhibit 10.12

SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Separation Agreement and Release (“Agreeméntt)ade by and between Kevin Fairbairn (“Employeeid Intevac, Inc. (the
“Company”) (collectively referred to as the “Pasti®r individually referred to as a “Party”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Employee was employed by the Company;

WHEREAS, Employee signed an Employee Proprietafigrination Agreement with the Company on Februar@@®?2 (the
“Confidentiality Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Company granted to Employee certatioog (each, an “Option” and collectively, the “@pis”) that remained
outstanding as of the Separation Date (such oulstgiOptions are listed on Exhibit #&tached hereto) to purchase shares of the Congpany’
common stock under the Company’s 2004 Equity IneerRlan or prior equity incentive plan (collectivethe “Plan”) and subject to those
certain stock option agreements evidencing thedDpt(the “Option Agreements”);

WHEREAS, Employee and the Company entered intdff@n letter dated January 24, 2002, and most récamended November 12,
2008 (the “Offer Letter”);

WHEREAS, Employee separated from employment wighGompany effective November 16, 2012 (the “Separddate”); and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to resolve any and albdiies, claims, complaints, grievances, chargéisnac petitions, and demands t
the Employee may have against the Company andfahg &eleasees as defined below, including, bttimited to, any and all claims
arising out of or in any way related to Employeersployment with or separation from the Company;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual pisee made herein, the Company and Employee heggbg as follows:

COVENANTS

1. Consideration The Company agrees to pay Employee a total & Rwndred Thousand Eleven Dollars and Twenty Cents
($500,011.20), less applicable withholding, whidl e paid in a series of installments in the foofrsalary continuation for twelve
(12) months following the Separation Date, in ademce with the Comparg/regular payroll practices. Any installments thidgierwise woulc
have been due under this Agreement prior to theckffe Date will be paid in a lump sum as soonrastjtable following the Effective Date,
and the remaining payments shall be made in acooedaith the terms herein.

2. Stock. The Parties agree that for purposes of determitiia number of shares of the Company’s commorkdtat Employee is
entitled to purchase from the Company, pursuatiti¢@xercise of outstanding Options, Employee b@lconsidered to have vested only u
the Separation Date. Employee acknowledges thaitthe Separation Date, Employee will have vestetthé number of shares set forth in
Exhibit A and no more. The exercise of Employee’s vestetib@p shall continue to be governed by the terntscmditions of the Plan and
the Option Agreements.
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3. Benefits. Employee’s health insurance benefits shall ceaghe last day of November 2012, subject to Enmgsdg/right to continue
his health insurance under COBRA. Emplogggarticipation in all benefits and incidents offgoyment, including, but not limited to, vesti
in stock options, and the accrual of bonuses, @tadnd paid time off, ceased as of the Separ&iate.

4. Payment of Salary and Receipt of All BenefiEanployee acknowledges and represents that, titaerthe consideration set forth in
this Agreement, the Company has paid or providesddry, wages, bonuses, accrued vacation/paiel diifip premiums, leaves, housing
allowances, relocation costs, interest, severangplacement costs, fees, reimbursable expensesnissions, stock, stock options, vesting,
and any and all other benefits and compensatiorialiEenployee.

5. Employeés Release of ClaimsEmployee agrees that the foregoing consideraéipresents settlement in full of all outstanding
obligations owed to Employee by the Company andutsent and former officers, directors, employeggnts, investors, attorneys,
shareholders, administrators, affiliates, benéfihg, plan administrators, insurers, trusteessitius, and subsidiaries, and predecessor and
successor corporations and assigns (collectiviety;Releasees”). Employee, on his own behalf andedralf of his respective heirs, family
members, executors, agents, and assigns, hereligrandr releases the Releasees from, and agréés suee concerning, or in any manne
institute, prosecute, or pursue, any claim, complaharge, duty, obligation, demand, or causectiba relating to any matters of any kind,
whether presently known or unknown, suspected suspected, that Employee may possess against &éng Beleasees arising from any
omissions, acts, facts, or damages that have @ttup until and including the Effective Date ofstihigreement, including, without limitatio

a. any and all claims relating to or arising fromdoyee’s employment relationship with the Company the termination of that
relationship;

b. any and all claims relating to, or arising frdmployee’s right to purchase, or actual purchdshares of stock of the
Company, including, without limitation, any claiffes fraud, misrepresentation, breach of fiduciamyd breach of duty under applicable s
corporate law, and securities fraud under any statederal law;

c. any and all claims for wrongful discharge of émyment; termination in violation of public policgiscrimination; harassment;
retaliation; breach of contract, both express amglied; breach of covenant of good faith and faalthg, both express and implied;
promissory estoppel; negligent or intentional otfbn of emotional distress; fraud; negligent deirtional misrepresentation; negligent or
intentional interference with contract or prospeeiconomic advantage; unfair business practiefanthtion; libel; slander; negligence;
personal injury; assault; battery; invasion of pdy; false imprisonment; conversion; and disabbigpnefits;
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d. any and all claims for violation of any federgthte, or municipal statute, including, but notited to, Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964; the Civil Rights Act of 199hiet Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Americans witls&@bilities Act of 1990; the Equal Pay
Act; the Fair Labor Standards Act; the Fair Cr&#porting Act; the Age Discrimination in Employmeitt of 1967; the Older Workers
Benefit Protection Act; the Employee Retiremenbime Security Act of 1974; the Worker Adjustment &watraining Notification Act; the
Family and Medical Leave Act; the Sarbanes-Oxley &2002; the Immigration Control and Reform Attte California Family Rights Act;
the California Labor Code; the California Worke@dmpensation Act; and the California Fair Employireerd Housing Act;

e. any and all claims for violation of the fedesakany state constitution;
f. any and all claims arising out of any other laamsl regulations relating to employment or emplayhaiscrimination;

g. any claim for any loss, cost, damage, or exparising out of any dispute over the nonwithholdangther tax treatment of any
of the proceeds received by Employee as a restiiiofAgreement; and

h. any and all claims for attorneys’ fees and costs

Employee agrees that the release set forth irséggon shall be and remain in effect in all re¢pas a complete general release as to the
matters released. This release does not extend/toldigations incurred under this Agreement. Tkisase does not release any any rights to
indemnification that Employee may enjoy pursuardrg indemnification agreement with the Companyspant to applicable, by-laws, or
provided under applicable law, including the Catifa Labor Code. Similarly, this release does et#ase claims that cannot be released as a
matter of law, including, but not limited to, Empk®’s right to file a charge with or participatesitharge by the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission, or any other local, statefederal administrative body or government agehay is authorized to enforce or
administer laws related to employment, agains@bmpany (with the understanding that any suchdibin participation does not give
Employee the right to recover any monetary damagamst the Company; Employee’s release of claiensih bars Employee from
recovering such monetary relief from the Compalygtwithstanding the foregoing, Employee acknowledipat any and all disputed wage
claims that are released herein shall be subjdaihtting arbitration in accordance with Paragraghekcept as required by applicable law.
Employee represents that he has made no assigomeansfer of any right, claim, complaint, chardety, obligation, demand, cause of
action, or other matter waived or released by $@stion.

6. Acknowledgment of Waiver of Claims under ADEEmployee acknowledges that he is waiving andchséhg any rights he may he
under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act &6 (“ADEA”"), and that this waiver and release i®ting and voluntary. Employee
agrees that this waiver and release does not applyy rights or claims that may arise under theeAlafter the Effective Date of this
Agreement. Employee acknowledges that the congidargiven for this waiver and release is in additto anything of value to which
Employee was already entitled. Employee furthenawkedges that he has been advised by this wiikiag (a) he should consult with an
attorney_priotto executing this Agreement; (b) he has twenty{@i¢ days
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within which to consider this Agreement; (c) he bBasen (7) days following his execution of this égment to revoke this Agreement;

(d) this Agreement shall not be effective untieafthe revocation period has expired; and (e) ngti this Agreement prevents or precludes
Employee from challenging or seeking a determimaitiogood faith of the validity of this waiver unddae ADEA, nor does it impose any
condition precedent, penalties, or costs for demgunless specifically authorized by federal lawthe event Employee signs this Agreement
and returns it to the Company in less than thel@i period identified above, Employee hereby ackadges that he has freely and voluntz
chosen to waive the time period allotted for coesity this Agreement. Employee acknowledges an@nstands that revocation must be
accomplished by a written notification to the perssecuting this Agreement on the Company’s behalfis received prior to the Effective
Date. The parties agree that changes, whetherialaiteimmaterial, do not restart the running cé 21 -day period. Employee understands
and acknowledges that no severance payments ofitsemid be due to him under this Agreement ifgligreement has not become effective
and irrevocable no later than sixty (60) days felltg the Separation Date (the “Release Deadlined)within the time frames required under
this Agreement.

7. Companis Release of ClaimsThe Company hereby and forever releases Emplogee and agrees not to sue Employee
concerning, or in any manner to institute, prosecaot pursue, any claim, complaint, charge, dutjigation, or cause of action relating to any
matters of any kind arising from any omissionssafects, or damages that have occurred up urttiiresiuding the Effective Date of this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any release providedhéoein, this Agreement shall not serve to releaseclaims by the Company against
Employee for any claims relating to fraud, embex&at, or the misappropriation of the Company’séradcrets. Moreover, this release does
not extend to any obligations incurred under thige®ment, and does not release claims that caeneiéased as a matter of law.

8. California Civil Code Section 154ZFach Party acknowledge that he/it has been atltgseonsult with legal counsel and is familiar
with the provisions of California Civil Code Segtid542, a statute that otherwise prohibits theassdeof unknown claims, which provides as
follows:

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICHHE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO

EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTINGHE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST
HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITHTHE DEBTOR.

Each Party, being aware of said code section, agoeexpressly waive any rights he/it may haveatheder, as well as under any other
statute or common law principles of similar effect.

9. No Pending or Future LawsuitEmployee represents that he has no lawsuitsns|air actions pending in his name, or on behalf of
any other person or entity, against the Comparangrof the other Releasees. Employee also repeetaithe does not intend to bring any
claims on his own behalf or on behalf of any ofherson or entity against the Company or any obther Releasees.
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10. Confidentiality. Employee agrees to maintain in complete confidehe existence of this Agreement, the contentdeunds of this
Agreement, and the consideration for this Agreenflesiteinafter collectively referred to as “Sepamatinformation”). Except as required by
law, Employee may disclose Separation Informatioly o his immediate family members, the Courtiy @roceedings to enforce the terms
of this Agreement, Employee’s attorney(s), and Expgé’s accountant and any professional tax adtistite extent that they need to know
the Separation Information in order to provide advdn tax treatment or to prepare tax returnsnamst prevent disclosure of any Separation
Information to all other third parties. Employeaes that he will not publicize, directly or inditly, any Separation Information.

Employee acknowledges and agrees that the conidignof the Separation Information is of the asse The Parties agree that if the
Company proves that Employee breached this Cortfadiy provision, the Company shall be entitledaio award of its costs spent enforcing
this provision, including all reasonable attornefgsls associated with the enforcement action, withegard to whether the Company can
establish actual damages from Employee’s breadgptto the extent that such breach constitutegal bction by Employee that directly
pertains to the ADEA. Any such individual breachdesclosure shall not excuse Employee from hisgattions hereunder, nor permit him to
make additional disclosures. Employee warrantstbadtas not disclosed, orally or in writing, difgar indirectly, any of the Separation
Information to any unauthorized party.

11. Trade Secrets and Confidential Information/CanypProperty Employee reaffirms and agrees to observe anddlyidhe terms of
the Confidentiality Agreement, specifically incladithe provisions therein regarding nondisclostithe® Company'’s trade secrets and
confidential and proprietary information, and ndigtation of Company employees.

Employee agrees at all times hereafter to holtiénstrictest confidence, and not to use or disdlos@y person or entity, any Confidential
Information of the Company. Employee understands‘i@onfidential Information” means any Companyprietary information, technical
data, trade secrets or know-how, including, butlinaited to, research, product plans, productsyises, proposals, proposed business
dealings, customer lists and customers (includiog not limited to, customers of the Company on mtemployee has called or with whom
he became acquainted during the term of his empog)nmarkets, software, developments, inventiprecesses, formulas, technology,
designs, drawings, engineering, hardware configarabformation, marketing, finances, or other Imgsis information disclosed to Employee
by the Company either directly or indirectly, initivrg, orally, or by drawings or observation of {gor equipment. Employee further
understands that Confidential Information doesimcitide any of the foregoing items that have becpmigicly known and made generally
available through no wrongful act of Employee’sobothers who were under confidentiality obligataas to the item or items involved or
improvements or new versions thereof. Employeelhegeants consent to notification by the Compangrg new employer about
Employees$ obligations under this paragraph. Employee reptsghat he has not to date misused or disclosafidéntial Information to an
unauthorized party. Employee’s signature below tituries his certification under penalty of perjiimat he has returned all documents and
other items provided to Employee by the Companyeligped or obtained by Employee in connection Wwithemployment with the
Company, or otherwise belonging to the Company.
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12. No CooperationEmployee agrees that he will not knowingly eneoa, counsel, or assist any attorneys or theintslie the
presentation or prosecution of any disputes, diffees, grievances, claims, charges, or complayné¥ third party against any of the
Releasees, unless under a subpoena or other cdartto do so or as related directly to the ADEAwsain this Agreement. Employee agrt
both to immediately notify the Company upon receipany such subpoena or court order, and to fhrmthin three (3) business days of its
receipt, a copy of such subpoena or other coudrotflapproached by anyone for counsel or assistanthe presentation or prosecution of
any disputes, differences, grievances, claims,ggsrmor complaints against any of the Releaseepldyee shall state no more than that he
cannot provide counsel or assistance.

13. NondisparagemenEmployee agrees to refrain from any disparagendefamation, libel, or slander of any of the Retsss, and
agrees to refrain from any tortious interferencthwlie contracts and relationships of any of thie&ees. Employee shall direct any inquiries
by potential future employers to the Company’s hnmesources department.

14. Breach In addition to the rights provided in the “Att@ys’ Fees” section below, Employee acknowledgesagnees that any
material breach of this Agreement, unless suchchreanstitutes a legal action by Employee challeggir seeking a determination in good
faith of the validity of the waiver herein undeetADEA, or of any provision of the Confidentialiygreement shall entitle the Company
immediately to recover and/or cease providing theseration provided to Employee under this Agreetand to obtain damages, except as
provided by law.

15. No Admission of Liability Employee understands and acknowledges that tirisefnent constitutes a compromise and settlem
any and all actual or potential disputed claim&byployee. No action taken by the Company heretbeepreviously or in connection with
this Agreement, shall be deemed or construed {@)o&n admission of the truth or falsity of anyuatior potential claims or (b) an
acknowledgment or admission by the Company of anit br liability whatsoever to Employee or to ghird party.

16. Nonsolicitation Employee agrees that for a period of twelve (hahths immediately following the Effective Datetbfs
Agreement, Employee shall not directly or indirgablicit any employee or service provider of thengpany to leave the Company for any
reason.

17. Costs The Parties shall each bear their own costs;regys’ fees, and other fees incurred in conneatith the preparation of this
Agreement.

18. ARBITRATION. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ANY AND ALL DISPUTES ARISNG OUT OF THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT, THEIR INTERPRETATION, AND ANY OF THE MATERS HEREIN RELEASED, SHALL BE SUBJECT TO
ARBITRATION IN SANTA CLARA COUNTY, BEFORE JUDICIALARBITRATION & MEDIATION SERVICES (*JAMS"),
PURSUANT TO ITS EMPLOYMENT ARBITRATION RULES & PROEDURES (“*JAMS RULES”). THE ARBITRATOR MAY GRANT
INJUNCTIONS AND OTHER RELIEF IN SUCH DISPUTES. THERBITRATOR SHALL ADMINISTER AND CONDUCT ANY
ARBITRATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA LAW, INCLUDING THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE,
AND THE ARBITRATOR SHALL APPLY SUBSTANTIVE AND PROEDURAL CALIFORNIA LAW TO ANY DISPUTE OR CLAIM,
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WITHOUT REFERENCE TO ANY CONFLICT-OF-LAW PROVISIONSGF ANY JURISDICTION. TO THE EXTENT THAT THE JAMS
RULES CONFLICT WITH CALIFORNIA LAW, CALIFORNIA LAW SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE. THE DECISION OF THE
ARBITRATOR SHALL BE FINAL, CONCLUSIVE, AND BINDINGON THE PARTIES TO THE ARBITRATION. THE PARTIES
AGREE THAT THE PREVAILING PARTY IN ANY ARBITRATIONSHALL BE ENTITLED TO INJUNCTIVE RELIEF IN ANY
COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION TO ENFORCE THE ARBRATION AWARD. THE PARTIES TO THE ARBITRATION
SHALL EACH PAY AN EQUAL SHARE OF THE COSTS AND EXMESES OF SUCH ARBITRATION, AND EACH PARTY SHALL
SEPARATELY PAY FOR ITS RESPECTIVE COUNSEL FEES ANBXPENSES; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THE ARBITRATOR
SHALL AWARD ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS TO THE PREVAING PARTY, EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED BY LAW. THE
PARTIES HEREBY AGREE TO WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO HAVE RY DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM RESOLVED IN A COURT OF
LAW BY A JUDGE OR JURY. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREG®IG, THIS SECTION WILL NOT PREVENT EITHER PARTY
FROM SEEKING INJUNCTIVE RELIEF (OR ANY OTHER PROVIGNAL REMEDY) FROM ANY COURT HAVING JURISDICTION
OVER THE PARTIES AND THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THEIR SPUTE RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE
AGREEMENTS INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. SHOUIANY PART OF THE ARBITRATION AGREEMENT
CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH CONFLICT WITH ANY OTHERARBITRATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES, THE
PARTIES AGREE THAT THIS ARBITRATION AGREEMENT SHALIGOVERN.

19. Tax Consequence3he Company makes no representations or warsantth respect to the tax consequences of the patgnaad
any other consideration provided to Employee orenaa his behalf under the terms of this Agreentemployee agrees and understands that
he is responsible for payment, if any, of locadtet and/or federal taxes on the payments and they consideration provided hereunder by
the Company and any penalties or assessments thé&weployee further agrees to indemnify and ho&@ompany harmless from any
claims, demands, deficiencies, penalties, inteassgessments, executions, judgments, or recoumriasy government agency against the
Company for any amounts claimed due on accourd)dEnployee’s failure to pay or delayed paymerfedéral or state taxes, or
(b) damages sustained by the Company by reasamyafuech claims, including attorneys’ fees and costs

20. Section 409A; Taxeall payments under this Agreement shall be reduoaeflect applicable tax or other required withdings ant
Employee shall be solely responsible for any ahthaes arising in connection with this Agreememtl @ompensation paid or payment to
Employee under this Agreement, including, but iratted to, any taxes that may be imposed on Em@@gea result of Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the final regariatand any guidance promulgated thereunder (i@e409A"). The foregoing provisior
and all compensation and benefits provided for utlide Agreement are intended to comply with, oekempt from, the requirements of
Section 409A and any ambiguities or ambiguous tdrensin will be interpreted to so comply and/orelempt from Section 409A. Each
installment and other payment or benefit to be paidrovided under this Agreement is intended tostitute a separate payment for purposes
of Section 1.409A-2(b)(2) of the Treasury RegulasioThe Company and Employee will work togethagdnd faith to consider either
(i) amendments to this Agreement; or
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(ii) revisions to this Agreement with respect te frayment of any awards, which are necessary goppate to avoid imposition of any
additional tax or income recognition prior to theual payment to Employee under Section 409A. thésCompany’s expectation that
severance payments under this Agreement will benpk&om Section 409A. However, if and to the extescessary to avoid imposition of
additional tax or income recognition under Sectl@8A, any severance payments or separation betteditsare considered deferred
compensation under Section 409A that are payatitémthe first six (6) months following Employedermination of employment shall
instead be delayed as provided for “Payments” énQiffer Letter.

21. Authority. The Company represents and warrants that thersigded has the authority to act on behalf of tbenGany and to bind
the Company and all who may claim through it totdrens and conditions of this Agreement. Employsgmesents and warrants that he has
the capacity to act on his own behalf and on bedfadil who might claim through him to bind themth® terms and conditions of this
Agreement. Each Party warrants and representshibic are no liens or claims of lien or assignméentaw or equity or otherwise of or
against any of the claims or causes of action sel@&erein.

22. No RepresentationEmployee represents that he has had an oppgrtonibnsult with an attorney, and has carefulbdrand
understands the scope and effect of the provisibttsis Agreement. Employee has not relied uponrapyesentations or statements made by
the Company that are not specifically set fortthis Agreement.

23. Severability In the event that any provision or any portiorany provision hereof or any surviving agreementiena part hereof
becomes or is declared by a court of competerddiation or arbitrator to be illegal, unenforceallevoid, this Agreement shall continue in
full force and effect without said provision or fon of provision.

24, Attorneys Fees. Except with regard to a legal action challengingeeking a determination in good faith of thedigf of the
waiver herein under the ADEA, in the event that@itParty brings an action to enforce or effectights under this Agreement, the prevail
Party shall be entitled to recover its costs amukasges, including the costs of mediation, arbdratiitigation, court fees, and reasonable
attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with suctaetion.

25. Entire AgreementThis Agreement represents the entire agreemehtiatierstanding between the Company and Employee
concerning the subject matter of this AgreementEmgloyee’s employment with and separation fromGoenpany and the events leading
thereto and associated therewith, and supersedagplaces any and all prior agreements and urahelisigs concerning the subject matte
this Agreement and Employee’s relationship with@wmpany, with the exception of the Plan, the OpAgreements and the Confidentiality
Agreement, except as modified herein.

26. No Oral Modification This Agreement may only be amended in a writigged by Employee and the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer.

27. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by the lawsefState of California, without regard for choiddaw
provisions. Employee consents to personal and six@yurisdiction and venue in the State of Cafifar
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28. Effective Date Employee understands that this Agreement shaiulieand void if not executed by him within twerdge
(21) days. Each Party has seven (7) days aftePtddy signs this Agreement to revoke it. This Agment will become effective on the eighth
(8th) day after Employee signed this Agreementprg as it has been signed by the Parties anddtdseen revoked by either Party before
that date (the “Effective Date”). Notwithstandirgetforegoing, no revocation of this Agreement mdlufe of this Agreement to become
effective shall have any effect upon the validityeffectiveness of the resignations by Employeerrefl to in Section 5 of this Agreement,

29. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in counterpadsbgrfacsimile, and each counterpart and facsisfill have the
same force and effect as an original and shallt#atesan effective, binding agreement on the pagach of the undersigned.

30. Voluntary Execution of AgreemenEmployee understands and agrees that he exabtigeflgreement voluntarily, without any
duress or undue influence on the part or behatli@Company or any third party, with the full intexf releasing all of his claims against the
Company and any of the other Releasees. Employematedges that:

(&) he has read this Agreeme

(b)  he has been represented in the preparationtindgn, and execution of this Agreement by legainsel of his own choice
or has elected not to retain legal coun

(c) heunderstands the terms and consequences ofgregrient and of the releases it contains;
(d) heis fully aware of the legal and binding effettros Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executedAlgieement on the respective dates set forth below.

KEVIN FAIRBAIRN, an individual

Dated: November 30, 2012 /s KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
(Kevin Fairbairn)
INTEVAC, INC.
Dated: November 30, 2012 By /s/ NORMAN H. POND

(Norman H. Pond
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office
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Date of Gran

02/19/2004
02/01/200%
08/30/200¢
08/30/2007
08/21/200¢
02/27/200¢
05/20/201C
05/19/2011
06/21/2012
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Number of Shares Vested and Exercisable as

Separation Dat

50,00(
50,00(
75,00(
75,00(
75,00(
56,25(
37,50(
18,75(
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Intevac Photonics, Ini

Intevac Pacific Group Holdings Ltd. F- Singapore
Lotus Technologies, In— Santa Clara, Californi
IRPC, Inc.— Santa Clara, Californi

Solar Implant Technologies, In- California
Intevac Foreign Sales Corporati- Barbados
Intevac Asia Private Limite— Singapore

Intevac Malaysia Sdn BF— Malaysia

Intevac Limited- Hong Kong

Intevac (Shenzhen) Co. Lt- China

IVAC Co. Ltd.— Korea

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated February 22, 2@ft8respect to the consolidated financial statetsiand internal control over
financial reporting included in the Annual Repdirimevac, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form 10-K far year ended December 31, 2012. We
hereby consent to the incorporation by referencgaaf reports in the Registration Statements @viat, Inc. and subsidiaries on Forms S-8
(File No. 333-181929, effective June 6, 2012; Ne 333-175979, effective August 2, 2011, File R83-168505, effective August 3, 2010;
File No. 333-160596, effective July 15, 2009; ile. 333-152773, effective August 5, 2008; File 883-143418, effective May 31, 2007;
File No. 333-134422, effective May 24, 2006; File.[$33-125523, effective June 6, 2005; File No.-389260, effective
September 29, 2003; File No. 333-106960, effeclivg 11, 2003; File No. 333-50166, effective Novemb7, 2000; and File No. 335421
effective October 7, 1998).

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
February 22, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Norman H. Pond, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc..

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveaditial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegggnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldlave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal ctsmtreer financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 201

/s/ NORMAN H. POND
Norman H. Ponc

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

I, Jeffrey Andreson, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc..

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveaditial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegggnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldlave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal ctsmtreer financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 201

/s/ JEFFREY ANDRESOI!

Jeffrey Andresol

Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratio
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre!




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Norman H. Pond, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.€ctibn 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9fitecFarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on FormKLar the period ended December 31, 2012 fully chespwith the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @d4.8nd that information contained in such Form 1faidy presents in all material respects
the financial condition and results of operatiohintevac, Inc.

Date: February 22, 201

/s/ NORMAN H. POND
Norman H. Ponc

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office

I, Jeffrey Andreson, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS@ction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section B Garbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on FormKLbr the period ended December 31, 2012 fully chespwith the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @4L8nd that information contained in such Form 1fxiKy presents in all material respects
the financial condition and results of operatiohintevac, Inc.

Date: February 22, 201

/s/ JEFFREY ANDRESO!

Jeffrey Andresol

Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratio
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre!

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Intevac,dnd.will be retained by Intevac, Ir
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon reque:



